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The Full Council of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 20 
Council convened in the Bon Secour Bay Room of the Renaissance 21 
Hotel, Mobile, Alabama, Wednesday afternoon, October 29, 2008, 22 
and was called to order at 1:00 p.m. by Chairman Tom McIlwain. 23 
 24 
CHAIRMAN TOM MCILWAIN:  Council members please take your seats 25 

and I’ll call the council meeting to order.  I want to call to 26 
order the 218th meeting of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 27 
Council.  My name is Tom McIlwain and as chairman of the 28 
council, I welcome you all. 29 
 30 
Members of the public will be permitted to present oral 31 
statements in accordance with the schedule published in the 32 
agenda.  Please advise the council staff if you desire to 33 
address the council.  Please give written statements to the 34 
council staff who are sitting at the tables over to my right. 35 
 36 
1996 amendments to the Fishery Management Act require all oral 37 
or written statements to include a brief description of the 38 
background and interest of the persons in the subject of the 39 
statement.  All written information shall include a statement of 40 
the source and date of such information. 41 
 42 
It is unlawful for any person to knowingly and willfully submit 43 
to the council false information regarding any manner the 44 
council is considering in the course of carrying out the 45 
Fisheries Act.  If you have a cell phone, pager, or similar 46 
device, we ask that you keep them on silent or vibrating mode 47 
during the council and committee sessions.  A digital recording 48 
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is used for the public record and therefore, for the purpose of 1 
voice identification, each member is requested to identify him 2 
or herself, starting on my left. 3 
 4 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR RICK LEARD:  Rick Leard, Gulf Council 5 

staff. 6 
 7 
MR. VERNON MINTON:  Vernon Minton, Alabama. 8 

 9 
MR. DOUG FRUGE:  Doug Fruge, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. 10 

 11 
MR. ROBIN RIECHERS:  Robin Riechers, Texas. 12 

 13 
MR. MIKE RAY:  Mike Ray, Texas. 14 

 15 
MR. JOE HENDRIX:  Joe Hendrix, Texas. 16 

 17 
MR. SHEPHERD GRIMES:  Shepherd Grimes, NOAA General Counsel, 18 

Southeast Region. 19 
 20 
DR. ROY CRABTREE:  Roy Crabtree, Fisheries Service. 21 

 22 
MR. PHIL STEELE:  Phil Steele, National Marine Fisheries 23 

Service. 24 
 25 
DR. BONNIE PONWITH:  Bonnie Ponwith, NOAA Fisheries Service. 26 

 27 
MS. KAY WILLIAMS:  Kay Williams, Mississippi. 28 

 29 
MS. KAREN FOOTE:  Karen Foote, Louisiana. 30 

 31 
MR. HARLON PEARCE:  Harlon Pearce, the great state of Louisiana. 32 
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MR. BILL TEEHAN:  Bill Teehan, the great state of Florida and 34 

chili capital of the world. 35 
 36 
MS. JULIE MORRIS:  Julie Morris, Florida. 37 

 38 
MR. BOB GILL:  Bob Gill, Florida. 39 

 40 
MS. BOBBI WALKER:  Bobbi Walker, the greater state of Alabama. 41 

 42 
MS. SUSAN VILLERE:  Susan Villere, Louisiana. 43 

 44 
MR. ED SAPP:  Ed Sapp, Florida. 45 

 46 
LCDR CARMEN DEGEORGE:  Carmen DeGeorge, Coast Guard District 8, 47 

New Orleans. 48 
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 1 
MR. LARRY SIMPSON:  Larry Simpson, Gulf States Marine Fisheries 2 

Commission. 3 
 4 
DR. BOB SHIPP:  Bob Shipp, Alabama. 5 

 6 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you.  I have a few housekeeping things 7 

I would like to take care of right now, but I guess the first 8 
one that I would like to mention was I picked up the paper this 9 
morning and the headline reads “Another Mess at the Polls” and 10 
my first reaction was we had a mess in the voting at the chili 11 
cook-off last night, but we’ve checked the votes again and 12 
everything was okay and the winners stand. 13 
 14 
I would like to ask Doug Fruge to come up.  Doug, on behalf of 15 
the council, I would like to present this plaque to you.  You’ve 16 
been coming to these council meetings since 1992 and my hat is 17 
off to you for your endurance and we’re going to miss you. 18 
 19 
For those that don’t know, Doug is moving out to Colorado and 20 
then transferred out of our region and we’ll miss him, but I 21 
know you think you’re going to a better place, but once you get 22 
up there, you’re going to miss the Gulf of Mexico. 23 
 24 
MR. FRUGE:  I know it. 25 

 26 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Doug. 27 

 28 
MR. FRUGE:  Thank you, Tom. 29 

 30 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 31 

 32 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  If you take a look at the agenda, I’ve got a 33 

couple of suggested changes and additions to the agenda.  We’re 34 
going to move the Joint Reef Fish/Mackerel/Red Drum Committee 35 
report to the first thing in the morning.  We’re not going to 36 
have the closed sessions for the Joint SSC 37 
Selection/Administrative Policy or the Budget/Personnel and then 38 
under Other Items, I would like to add two travel requests.  39 
I’ve been asked to attend the World Aquaculture Society Meeting 40 
in February of 2009 and then also MAFAC in a couple of weeks to 41 
talk about the Aquaculture FMP and so I would like to add those 42 
two items to the agenda.  Are there any other additions or 43 
changes to the agenda?  If not, I would entertain a motion. 44 
 45 
MR. GILL:  So moved. 46 

 47 
DR. SHIPP:  Second. 48 
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 1 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  All those in favor say aye.  You’ve had a 2 

chance to look at the minutes. 3 
 4 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 5 

 6 
MR. GRIMES:  Page 35, Line 31, the first “we’re” should be 7 

“we’ve” and thank you, Mr. Chairman. 8 
 9 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, sir.  Are there any other 10 

additions, deletions, corrections to the minutes?  If not, I 11 
would entertain a motion. 12 
 13 
MR. GILL:  So moved. 14 

 15 
MS. WALKER:  Second. 16 

 17 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  It’s been moved and seconded that we accept 18 

the minutes.  All in favor say aye; opposed like sign.  The 19 
minutes are approved.  You also have the committee roster for 20 
2009.  Hopefully you’ve reviewed that by now. 21 
 22 

APPROVAL OF 2009 COMMITTEE ROSTER 23 

 24 
MS. WALKER:  I move to accept the chairman’s recommendations. 25 

 26 
MR. GILL:  Second. 27 

 28 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We have a motion and a second to accept the 29 

committee appointments as proposed.  Is there any discussion? 30 
 31 
DR. LEARD:  I just wanted to bring up one thing that we talked 32 

about a little bit in some of the committees and that is that 33 
we’re going to be working on the development of an ACL/AM 34 
generic amendment to address those and maybe some other things 35 
this year and probably into next year.  It’s due in 2011 and I 36 
was just wanting some guidance from the council as to whether or 37 
not you all want to have a separate ad hoc committee to do that 38 
or whether or not we can do that under the Sustainable 39 
Fisheries/Ecosystem Committee.  It’s your pleasure. 40 
 41 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there any discussion or any guidance that 42 

we can provide Dr. Leard? 43 
 44 
MS. WALKER:  Is it appropriate for us to vote on the first 45 

motion first and then accept another motion? 46 
 47 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We did have a motion on the floor.  All 48 
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those in favor of the motion to accept the chairman’s 1 
recommendations for committees for 2009 say aye; all opposed.  2 
That stands approved. 3 
 4 
MS. WALKER:  Now would you accept a recommendation or a motion 5 
to allow the Sustainability Committee to handle the generic -- 6 
Rick, what did you call it, generic ACL? 7 

 8 
DR. LEARD:  Yes, generic ACL/AM.  We’ll come up with probably a 9 

better name for it as we get a little further along. 10 
 11 
MS. MORRIS:  Who is Branham/Sullivan on the Sustainable 12 

Fisheries/Ecosystem Committee?  I apologize in advance if this 13 
person is here and I don’t them.  Branham/Sullivan is a member 14 
of the Sustainable Fisheries Committee and who is that?  Who do 15 
they represent? 16 
 17 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  That’s the 7th Coast Guard District.  Let’s 18 

get the motion up. 19 
 20 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I assume I’m just confused again.  Where is this 21 

generic ACL amendment at?  When you say to move and will be 22 
handled by the Sustainability -- 23 
 24 
DR. LEARD:  We’ve just started.  We’ve had one meeting with some 25 

of the regional office personnel and we’ve brought in a couple 26 
of people from the Center to start talking about it more and 27 
putting together some alternatives and some ideas as to how 28 
we’ll deal with accountability measures and annual catch limits 29 
for the other species that aren’t overfishing and overfished, 30 
which is required to have those benchmarks in place by 2011. 31 
 32 
We’ve just started on it, but we are planning to make a little 33 
more progress during this year.  All we’re asking or I guess all 34 
I’m saying is that it seems appropriate that the Sustainable 35 
Fisheries/Ecosystem Committee could handle that amendment, the 36 
scoping document and options paper, all the things that would 37 
come up and we would bring to you during the next year. 38 
 39 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Okay, but you’re not asking us to approve 40 

anything without seeing it.  You’re just asking for that 41 
committee to be the ones to look at it and make recommendations 42 
that will come before this council each time. 43 
 44 
DR. LEARD:  That’s correct.  It would be just like Reef Fish 45 

handling reef fish, but since this will include mackerel, stone 46 
crab, spiny lobster, all of the other species pretty much, other 47 
than the ones that we’ve identified and have already addressed 48 
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ACLs and AMs for that are overfished or undergoing overfishing. 1 
 2 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Other comments?  We have a motion.  The 3 

motion is that the Generic ACL Amendment will be handled by the 4 
council’s Sustainable Fisheries/Ecosystem Committee.  All those 5 
in favor of the motion say aye; opposed.  The motion carries.   6 

 7 
This brings us to our public testimony and the first thing we’re 8 
going to do is take testimony on exempted fishing permits.  I 9 
have one here.  I had Mr. Bob Zales on exempted fishing permits. 10 
 11 
DR. STEELE:  Mr. Chairman, I think a little brief overview of 12 

the EFP that’s being submitted by Gulf Fishermen’s Association 13 
may be appropriate, just to let the council know what’s going 14 
on.  If you’ll look at Tab P, Number 1(b) and 1(c), it gives you 15 
pretty much the information that’s needed. 16 
 17 
Gulf Fishermen’s Association has applied for an EFP to basically 18 
look at reef fish/finfish bycatch in the Gulf of Mexico under 19 
the cooperative research program.  They’ll be using a variety of 20 
gear types, longlines and bandit gear, to look at bycatch and 21 
discard mortalities and also kind of segue into a project that 22 
we completed last year at the Southeast Regional Office.  23 
They’ll be having video monitoring onboard this thing, to take a 24 
look at what the bycatch and the discard mortalities are, and 25 
they’ll also compare some of this data to the logbooks.  That’s, 26 
in general, what they’re applying for. 27 
 28 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Go ahead, Mr. Zales, to the exempted fishing 29 

permit. 30 
 31 

PUBLIC TESTIMONY ON EXEMPTED FISHING PERMITS 32 
 33 

MR. BOB ZALES, II:  Bob Zales, II, and thank you for the brief 34 

explanation, because I’m not sure anybody here is really up to 35 
speed on this.  I found it by reading Federal Register notices 36 
here a couple of weeks ago. 37 
 38 
I have got some concerns about this plan, because in reading 39 
what’s in the briefing book, they talk about professionals doing 40 
an evaluation, but there’s no indication of who the 41 
professionals are going to be, what kind of education they’ve 42 
got and what their background is and what their experience is. 43 
 44 
They talk about ten to twenty boats being involved.  Is the 45 
exempted permit going to be per vessel or is it going to be as a 46 
total group?  How are you going to know when what’s happening?  47 
There is some concerns.  I don’t even know if you all are going 48 
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to take any action on this issue, because it wasn’t on the 1 
agenda.  That’s just kind of my brief concerns. 2 
 3 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Zales. 4 

 5 
MR. GRIMES:  Just one correction.  It actually was listed on the 6 

agenda.  You always have pending EFP applications and so we did 7 
include it on the agenda. 8 
 9 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you.  We’ll move into Aquaculture and 10 

the first presenter will be Marianne Cufone.  She’ll be followed 11 
by Dennis O’Hern.  If you would, come over and take your place 12 
behind the speaker and let’s move on.  We’re going to give three 13 
minutes to each speaker. 14 
 15 

PUBLIC TESTIMONY ON AQUACULTURE FMP 16 
 17 

MS. MARIANNE CUFONE:  Actually, I was wondering if we could just 18 

go back to the EFP briefly.  I was going to make a comment. 19 
 20 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Just include it in your -- 21 

 22 
MS. CUFONE:  I’ll include it quickly.  Gulf Fishermen’s 23 

Association is proposing this bycatch project.  We’ve had a 24 
history of bycatch concerns in the Gulf and I just wanted to 25 
explain a little bit what I know about it, which is that 26 
National Marine Fisheries Service has a list of the specific 27 
boats, the specific people, who are involved and I’m sure that 28 
the council can review that if they would like to, if it’s not 29 
included in their briefing packet, although I thought it was.  I 30 
just wanted to throw that out there. 31 
 32 
On the aquaculture, obviously I’ve been involved with this for 33 
as long as we’ve been talking about it.  First and foremost, I 34 
wanted to thank the council for making the right decision in 35 
committee not to move forward on the offshore FMP at this 36 
meeting.  I think you all recognize that there are some very 37 
serious issues that require further discussion and I think 38 
that’s fantastic. 39 
 40 
Second, I wanted to mention that not everyone was here Monday 41 
night to talk about the offshore plan and I wanted to point out 42 
a display in the corner.  I’m not going to drag it back up here 43 
for the whole council to see, but a display in the corner that 44 
was created for the number of comments opposing the plan versus 45 
the number of comments the council received in favor of the plan 46 
and this was just before this meeting.  My understanding is now 47 
that the council has gotten in another 6,500 comments opposing 48 
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this plan, but previously it was over 10,000 to just twenty-1 
eight.  I think it’s very clear that there is widespread concern 2 
over the offshore plan in the Gulf. 3 
 4 
Thirdly and lastly, I would also like the council to make 5 
another responsible decision between now and January, which is 6 
to ask for those of you that know you have a future personal 7 
interest in offshore aquaculture to recuse yourself from the 8 
vote on any plan that moves forward in the future. 9 
 10 
Magnuson has a provision about this, that there is required to 11 
be disclosure of any current or future interest, actually, in 12 
harvesting, processing, lobbying, advocacy, or marketing 13 
activity.  If we’re saying offshore aquaculture is harvesting 14 
fish, then that interest is required to be disclosed. 15 
 16 
It goes on to say a number of things about how you shouldn’t 17 
vote if you are required to disclose your interest.  I think 18 
there’s some issues on application, because I’m not entirely 19 
convinced that Magnuson applies to this issue to begin with, but 20 
if you all think it does, then you ought to apply all of the 21 
provisions to the offshore plan and you ought to abide by any 22 
provisions to recuse yourselves from future interests. 23 
 24 
I appreciate your time and I thank you for not moving forward 25 
today and I look forward to working with you more on the plan in 26 
the future. 27 
 28 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Ms. Cufone. 29 

 30 
MS. WALKER:  Just one question.  Thanks for being here, 31 

Marianne.  Are you involved in the permit that the Gulf 32 
Fishermen have applied for? 33 
 34 
MS. CUFONE:  Yes, I helped them write the permit and so that’s 35 

why I know the details. 36 
 37 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any other questions?  Thank you.  Dennis 38 

O’Hern and he’ll be followed by Ron Lukens. 39 
 40 
MR. DENNIS O’HERN:  Good afternoon, council members.  Thank you 41 

for your time.  I’m Dennis O’Hern, Executive Director of Fishing 42 
Rights Alliance.  I think you all know about my group by now.  A 43 
lot of my members have contacted me personally and just asked 44 
what the big delay is that you’ve been working on this 45 
aquaculture amendment for so long now and we’re concerned that 46 
small issues that keep coming up that were supposed to come up 47 
in the future anyway are holding up the progress on it.   48 
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 1 
Some of my members have asked me to voice to either move forward 2 
or stop it, but we thought you were moving forward and we 3 
supported your work on it.  Thank you for your time. 4 
 5 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any questions from the council?  Thank you, 6 

Mr. O’Hern.  Mr. Lukens and he’ll be followed by Margaret 7 
Curole. 8 
 9 
MR. RON LUKENS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I have a prepared 10 

statement.  My name is Ron Lukens and I am Senior Scientist with 11 
Omega Protein Corporation and we’re the world’s largest producer 12 
of Omega-3 heart-healthy fish oil and the nation’s largest 13 
producer of fishmeal. 14 
 15 
Mr. Chairman, Omega Protein neither supports nor opposes the 16 
proposed Aquaculture FMP.  I would, however, like to address a 17 
conjecture that is continually raised in the context of 18 
aquaculture development.  The conjecture is that if aquaculture, 19 
especially offshore aquaculture, in the Gulf of Mexico 20 
increases, the Gulf of Mexico menhaden fishery will increase the 21 
harvest to meet increasing demand for fishmeal and oil additives 22 
in aquaculture feed. 23 
 24 
I am providing this comment because I believe that the council’s 25 
decision should be based on factual information, rather than 26 
speculation or supposition.  First, I can speak for Omega 27 
Protein by saying that we are not going to increase our 28 
infrastructure to meet increasing demand for fish meal and oil.  29 
We have already shifted our product to sell more aquaculture 30 
additives and that has resulted in a decrease in our product 31 
going to other end uses, such as stock feed and pet feed. 32 
 33 
We would likely continue this trend if the demand for the 34 
aquaculture industry increases and the price remains higher than 35 
other market outlets and that’s really the key in terms of our 36 
shift of product. 37 
 38 
We are currently fully utilizing our facilities as designed for 39 
both the Atlantic and Gulf operations.  In order to increase 40 
production, we would have to build new plants and new vessels 41 
and we would have to find crews to man those vessels and we 42 
would have to find additional spotter pilots and all of those 43 
things are challenging to us right now with our current 44 
infrastructure. 45 
 46 
The menhaden reduction industry is extremely capital intensive 47 
and such a new influx of capital is not a wise business 48 
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decision.  Right now, it costs the company in excess of $100 1 
million just to operate our plants and vessels as we’re 2 
currently configured.  The return for cost prohibits any 3 
increase. 4 
 5 
For this reason, it is also not likely that there will ever be 6 
any new entries into the menhaden reduction fishery.  Also, it 7 
is important to understand that fishmeal and oil are world 8 
market commodities and our fishmeal production pales in 9 
comparison to the world market availability of protein.  That is 10 
not a climate to expect any escalation and that climate is not 11 
likely to change. 12 
 13 
We also support current management and believe that the 14 
population of Gulf menhaden is being harvested at a level that 15 
secures future generations of menhaden and provides sufficient 16 
forage for other species. 17 
 18 
In 1998, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration approved domestic 19 
menhaden products for human consumption.  If the fishery were 20 
ever going to increase to meet demand, we would have done so 21 
following that decision, because that decision made it possible 22 
for the menhaden industry to produce and market heart-healthy 23 
Omega-3 fish oil products for dietary supplements and additives 24 
in such foods as margarine. 25 
 26 
While we stated earlier that we’re the world’s largest producer 27 
of Omega-3 human health products, based on the oil, the demand 28 
for this product far exceeds the supply.  Not only did we not 29 
expand our operations -- 30 
 31 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Mr. Lukens, could you bring your remarks -- 32 

 33 
MR. LUKENS:  Yes, sir.  Not only did we not expand our 34 

operations after that FDA ruling, but we actually closed one of 35 
our plants, for economic reasons.  Let me emphasize that we have 36 
no intentions or incentives to increase production and it’s 37 
virtually assured that no new entries will join the fishery.  To 38 
close with a southernism, it ain’t going to happen. 39 
 40 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Lukens.  The next speaker is 41 

Margaret Curole.  Ron, we’ve got a question. 42 
 43 
MR. MINTON:  Just to sum it up, what you would do with your 44 

product is not increase production, but realign product based on 45 
market strategies to get a better profit?  Is that a good 46 
summation? 47 
 48 
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MR. LUKENS:  Yes, that is correct. 1 

 2 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any other questions of Mr. Lukens?  Thank 3 

you, Mr. Lukens.  Margaret Curole and then followed by George 4 
Leonard. 5 
 6 
MS. MARGARET CUROLE:  My name is Margaret Curole and I represent 7 

the Commercial Fishermen of America, on their Executive Board as 8 
well as being the North American representative to the World 9 
Forum of Fish Harvesters and Fish Workers, where I last week 10 
addressed the United Nations Sustainability Board on Small-Scale 11 
Fisheries in Bangkok, Thailand. 12 
 13 
I completely changed what I was going to say today after going 14 
to that meeting.  I repeatedly heard nothing but discord, 15 
arguments, almost fistfights, among people who were addressing 16 
this same issue, but from the opposite end.  They’re at the end 17 
of the aquaculture cycle in these countries, Chile, Thailand, 18 
Vietnam, a bunch of the other countries that have aquaculture 19 
already in place and who had traditional aquaculture in their 20 
communities, for thousands of years, where it worked efficiently 21 
and it fed the small-scale people who needed the protein. 22 
 23 
When it went into an industrial production, when it went in for 24 
an export business, it became nothing but environmental, 25 
community, health disaster.  Then the night before last, 26 
flipping the channels, I came to a show called “Boston Legal” 27 
and the running story line was about how sea lice in the 28 
aquaculture industry in British Columbia is threatening the coho 29 
salmon in Alaska.  I know you all have all heard in public 30 
testimony from the Alaskan fishermen at a previous time. 31 
 32 
When this issue is so contentious that it has become a storyline 33 
on “Boston Legal”, I think it’s something that you cannot rush 34 
forward, just looking at the public comments about how many 35 
people are against this with really good reasons why and it’s 36 
proven that it does not work. 37 
 38 
Representatives from Chile can come here and tell you they’ve 39 
had nothing but outbreaks of disease and they’ve had nothing but 40 
problems in their production lines and what happens and who is 41 
going to be responsible for the cleanup when these supposedly 42 
hurricane-proof pens get wiped away by another hurricane like 43 
Katrina?  It is inevitable.   44 
 45 
We all know there is no such thing as hurricane proof and will 46 
it be the taxpayer or will it be the state?  Who is it going to 47 
be?  None of these things are addressed and so I think thank you 48 
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for shelving it when you did.  I appreciate that and it’s a 1 
great decision, but I really feel that you need to look further 2 
afield for these answers and look to the countries who have 3 
already adopted these plans and see the problems that they’ve 4 
had and why it does not work. 5 
 6 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you.  Any questions? 7 

 8 
MS. WALKER:  Margaret, it’s good to see you again.  Do you by 9 

any chance have some of these issues and -- I know in our plan 10 
that we’ve been listening for six years now to the public and 11 
trying to make a generic plan that has enough safeguards in it 12 
so that we don’t incur some of these problems that you’re 13 
talking about.  Do you have a list of the problems that you 14 
could give to the council so that we could compare it? 15 
 16 
MS. CUROLE:  I definitely can.  I can send you FAO, which is the 17 

Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations, and I 18 
can send you FAO’s draft report.  I have copies of testimony 19 
that was done in Bangkok.  I have it on disk and I can send it 20 
to someone.  Just give me who you want it sent to and I can send 21 
you all of the testimony that was given from the fishery 22 
officials in two or three different countries last week.  It’s 23 
all on record. 24 
 25 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Margaret.  If you would pass that 26 

information along to our staff or they can provide you with an 27 
address that you can send it to.  Our next speaker is George 28 
Leonard and he’ll be followed by Zach Corrigan. 29 
 30 
MR. GEORGE LEONARD:  Good afternoon and thank you for having me.  31 

My name is George Leonard and I’m the Director of Ocean 32 
Conservancy’s Aquaculture Program.  I first want to thank the 33 
joint management committee yesterday for a thoughtful discussion 34 
on the legal uncertainties in the Draft Aquaculture FMP and its 35 
proposal to delay final consideration of the plan until the next 36 
meeting. 37 
 38 
Clearly more time is needed to work through the technical and 39 
legal aspects of the plan and the delay creates some time to do 40 
just that.  As we have indicated in our submission to the 41 
council, more fully considering the vast body of peer-reviewed 42 
scientific literature on this issue must really be part of that 43 
process and today, we want to enter into the record a compendium 44 
of 592 articles from the literature on issues like feed, 45 
disease, escape, nutrients, and predator interactions, of which 46 
only eleven are currently incorporated in the Draft FMP.  For 47 
those of you who need some light reading on the plane back, 48 



 15 

we’ll offer this one to you. 1 
 2 
I do want to step back a little bit from the details of the plan 3 
and talk about the second issue we raise and I think it’s 4 
actually a more important issue and that’s really the call for 5 
national standards as an overarching federal framework to manage 6 
and control the growth of the new industry of open ocean 7 
aquaculture. 8 
 9 
I would like, if we can, to think back a little bit about what 10 
our nation’s oceans looked like before the advent of substantial 11 
commercial fishing and ask whether any of us in that time would 12 
not have wanted a plan to guide the development of the expansion 13 
of commercial fishing and recreational fishing from the outset. 14 
 15 
Now, that plan probably would have included the level of 16 
environmental performance that the nation expected from our 17 
fishermen, from our regulators, and from our nation’s fish.  I 18 
think if we’re really honest with ourselves that we would really 19 
have to admit that much of present day fishery management is 20 
really about trying to repair much of the damage that emerged 21 
from commercial fishing long before there was a Magnuson-Stevens 22 
Act. 23 
 24 
In that context, as the old saying goes, an ounce of prevention 25 
is worth a pound of cure.  I think we should think of that 26 
context for aquaculture.  That’s really why Ocean Conservancy 27 
has advocated before the council the need for a national 28 
framework with strong environmental provisions before open 29 
aquaculture develops within the Gulf or any of the nation’s 30 
water. 31 
 32 
This really isn’t an issue with the details of the plan.  It’s 33 
really about the need for a national dialogue about the future 34 
of fish farming in the United States and the kind of performance 35 
from the industry that’s necessary to really protect the long-36 
term public interest in healthy marine ecosystems while posing 37 
minimal threats to fisheries, marine wildlife, and the 38 
ecosystems on which they depend. 39 
 40 
I think I would close by saying we are not the only voice to 41 
call for such standards.  In fact, there are a range of other 42 
voices.  The Pew Ocean Commission in 2003 called for such an 43 
approach, as did the Marine Aquaculture Task Force in 2007.  In 44 
the spring of this year, the Government Accountability Office 45 
called for a similar approach.  Chairman Rahall in a letter to 46 
the council this week asked for a similar approach to 47 
aquaculture. 48 



 16 

 1 
Nearly 6,000 citizens have also called for a similar approach 2 
and we’ll enter those 6,000 signatures in today’s record and 3 
then, finally, just this morning, both the St. Petersburg Times 4 
and the Pensacola News Journal, on their editorial pages, 5 
recommended that the council -- 6 
 7 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Mr. Leonard, would you bring your remarks to 8 

a close? 9 
 10 
MR. LEONARD:  I’ve got two more sentences.  They have 11 

recommended that the council postpone its vote and so while some 12 
have argued, I think, that the time is now to expand 13 
aquaculture, I would argue that now is the time for the public 14 
to really decide what kind of environmental performance it wants 15 
to see from this new industry and begin working toward a 16 
solution to that.  I hope we consider both the legal 17 
technicalities and some of these broader issues over the next 18 
couple of months before the next council meeting. 19 
 20 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Does any of the council members have any 21 

questions?  Thank you, Mr. Leonard.  If you would get your 22 
information to our staff over here, we would appreciate that.  23 
Thank you very much.  Zach Corrigan and followed by Justine 24 
Williams. 25 
 26 
MR. ZACH CORRIGAN:  Thank you, members of the council.  Thank 27 

you for allowing me to testify today.  My name is Zach Corrigan 28 
and I’m staff attorney with Food and Water Watch, a national 29 
consumer organization that fights for clean water and safe food. 30 
 31 
We think it was a wise move for the council to delay on 32 
finalizing its aquaculture plan yesterday, for the committee to 33 
do so.  As it stands right now, the plan is not legally 34 
justifiable and will not protect the marine environment and 35 
local fishing communities.  I would like to touch upon three 36 
points, one of which was addressed yesterday and two which have 37 
yet to be discussed. 38 
 39 
Yesterday at the committee, after reading written comments, 40 
there was a question about whether the committee should discuss 41 
any of them and it came to Mr. Rahall’s letter and Mr. Grimes 42 
indicated that you did not need to discuss whether the council 43 
had legal authority to put forward its aquaculture plan because 44 
the council had an adequate record. 45 
 46 
This misses the point.  It does not matter and it will not 47 
matter to a court that you have the most developed record 48 
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imaginable if putting forward the aquaculture plan is outside 1 
your legal authority under the Magnuson-Stevens Act.  The fact 2 
that the chairman of the committee of jurisdiction questions 3 
this legal authority is significant and my advice would be not 4 
to give this voice, Mr. Rahall’s voice, simply lip service. 5 
 6 
The second point that has not been discussed is because the plan 7 
currently allows NMFS alone to determine on a case-by-case basis 8 
whether facility siting will harm essential fish habitat, the 9 
plan violates the Magnuson-Stevens Act mandate that measures 10 
intended to protect EFH be specified by fishery management plans 11 
and not delegated to NMFS. 12 
 13 
This is an issue that needs to be addressed and I urge you to 14 
take a look at what EPA said in terms of Action 6 in its 15 
comments and finally, the plan still violates National Standard 16 
1.  The council has set an MSY and an OY.  Under the Magnuson-17 
Stevens Act, the council, to set the MSY, the maximum 18 
sustainable yield, and derive from that the optimum yield.  The 19 
plan right now sets optimum yield and maximum sustainable yield 20 
at 64 million pounds per year. 21 
 22 
This is blatantly contradictory to the Act, which requires that 23 
optimum yield be prescribed on the basis of maximum sustainable 24 
yield and not the other way around. 25 
 26 
In conclusion, I urge the council not to move forward with this 27 
plan.  To do otherwise would violate the law and would be a 28 
flagrant disservice to the people who you represent as a trustee 29 
of our nation’s national marine fisheries resources. 30 
 31 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Corrigan.  Are there any 32 

questions?  Thank you very much.  Justine Williams and she’ll be 33 
followed by Christina Lizzi. 34 
 35 
MS. JUSTINE WILLIAMS:  Good afternoon.  My name is Justine 36 

Williams and I’m also with Food and Water Watch.  I would like 37 
to thank again the council for deciding not to move forward with 38 
the Aquaculture FMP today and part of the reason for this is 39 
that I’ve been going over this FAQ fact sheet and I have a few 40 
concerns with it. 41 
 42 
I wanted to ask, first off, if I could -- Was this written by 43 
the Gulf Council or by NMFS?  There are a few issues with it 44 
that I would like to outline and the first is that the document 45 
says that offshore aquaculture will be in stronger and deeper 46 
waters, but the plan allows it to be anywhere three to 200 miles 47 
offshore and I say if you want it in deep waters, then it needs 48 
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to be farther than three miles off. 1 
 2 
Secondly, the document says that this could meet consumers 3 
demand for more seafood and decrease dependence on imports, but 4 
there’s absolutely nothing in the plan requiring that fish stay 5 
here in the U.S. and since currently we export about 70 percent 6 
of U.S. fish, I don’t really see why this would be any different 7 
with an offshore aquaculture produced fish. 8 
 9 
Number 3 is you say that the purpose is to create an 10 
economically sustainable industry, but nowhere have you proved 11 
this and not even in the document on the economic effects on the 12 
Gulf does it say anywhere that there’s any evidence that this 13 
will be economically sustainable. 14 
 15 
Number 4 is you say here on the fact sheet that the council has 16 
been working on this FMP for over five years, but the truth is 17 
that when this was started over five years ago, this was an 18 
entirely different plan and the current plan has really only 19 
been in existence since January of 2007 and it says right here 20 
that there’s been a round of public hearings that was completed 21 
last July, but I question referring to the one hearing that 22 
actually took place as an entire round of hearings. 23 
 24 
Number 5 is you go over in the FAQ document that you’re going to 25 
rely on other agencies for regulation of environmental issues 26 
and issues such as drug and pesticide use and I would recommend 27 
in this case that you get together with agencies such as the EPA 28 
to work on management details prior to passing the plan instead 29 
of waiting to see what happens afterwards. 30 
 31 
Number 6 is it says that reporting requirements are included, 32 
but just yesterday the committee voted to remove the annual 33 
reporting requirement, which I think is a serious concern and I 34 
have just a couple more things. 35 
 36 
One of them is that you say there are going to be siting 37 
requirements, but the reality is that this will be up to NMFS 38 
and it will be on a case-by-case basis and I really don’t think 39 
there are any assurances that they’ll be sited well.  Right now, 40 
the plan doesn’t prohibit siting in marine sanctuaries and just 41 
yesterday, the committee voted to be able to site these in the 42 
HAPC. 43 
 44 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Could you bring your remarks to a close?  45 

Your time is up. 46 
 47 
MS. J. WILLIAMS:  I have just one more thing.  The very last 48 
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thing here on the FAQ is that there will be opportunity for 1 
public comment before a specific farm is permitted and just 2 
yesterday, I know there was a change in this, that the RA could 3 
decide whether or not there would be time for public comment.  I 4 
just wanted to ask at some point if you guys could clarify what 5 
this new rule will mean. 6 
 7 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Ms. Williams.  Are there any 8 

questions? 9 
 10 
MR. MINTON:  Thank you, Ms. Williams.  Did I understand you to 11 

say that we currently export 70 percent of the aquaculture-12 
produced fish from this country, export them? 13 
 14 
MS. J. WILLIAMS:  It’s 70 percent of U.S. wild-caught and 15 

aquaculture-produced. 16 
 17 
MR. MINTON:  Are exported? 18 

 19 
MS. J. WILLIAMS:  That’s correct. 20 

 21 
MR. MINTON:  It sounds like an awfully high number to me.  Where 22 

did you get the information? 23 
 24 
MS. J. WILLIAMS:  That’s from NMFS trade statistics. 25 

 26 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any other questions?  Thank you, Ms. 27 

Williams.  Next is Christina Lizzi and she’ll be followed by 28 
Sascha Bollag. 29 
 30 
MS. CHRISTINA LIZZI:  Good afternoon.  My name is Christina 31 

Lizzi and I’m also with Food and Water Watch.  I’m an organizer 32 
with their fish program and as an organizer, over the past few 33 
months since I’ve begun working with them, I’ve spoken with 34 
countless citizens about this plan.  Many of them are commercial 35 
or recreational fishermen, environmentalists, students, lawyers, 36 
and many of them are worried about this plan. 37 
 38 
You’ve received over 10,000 comments and so you’ve heard many of 39 
their concerns already, but I just wanted to let you know some 40 
of the things they’re worried about.  They’re worried about 41 
losing their livelihoods and some are worried about the negative 42 
environmental impacts that this will have and some just plain 43 
think that the council doesn’t have authority to be going 44 
forward with such a plan. 45 
 46 
Many of them could not make it to this meeting.  Some people 47 
I’ve talked to are all across the country and some are down in 48 
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this coast region, but they have to be out fishing today to make 1 
their living.  I brought a few pictures.  We’ve gone around with 2 
a costume and a sign, letting people know about this, and I’ve 3 
brought a few pictures to show you.  We have dozens more that I 4 
can send if you wish to see them. 5 
 6 
I would also like to present you with a petition of 500 more 7 
signatures asking you to vote no on this plan if you go forward 8 
with a vote today, because it lacks adequate safeguards for 9 
fishermen, coastal communities, and the environment.  I’m very 10 
happy about yesterday, that you decided to delay the plan and to 11 
hopefully include a lot of these public comments and concerns 12 
that have not really been adequately addressed yet. 13 
 14 
I feel like it’s really been revised to be more legally 15 
defensible, but the public comments really don’t seem to be 16 
making it in.  I really hope that in January we’ll see a new 17 
plan that has these environmental safeguards and economic 18 
safeguards for the people whose livelihoods depend on this. 19 
 20 
I would like to thank you for delaying it until January and I’m 21 
sure that everyone who signed these petitions will be happy to 22 
hear that as well. 23 
 24 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you.  Are there any comments or 25 

questions from the council?  Thank you, Ms. Lizzi.  Next is 26 
Sascha and he’ll be followed by B.G. Thompson. 27 
 28 
MR. SASCHA BOLLAG:  My name is Sascha Bollag and I’m also with 29 

Food and Water Watch, but today I’m going to take the privilege 30 
of introducing a statement from Charlie Smith, the Executive 31 
Director of the Louisiana Charterboat Association.  I think you 32 
all have heard enough, at least for now, from my other folks. 33 
 34 
I’ll just note that this was written before yesterday’s 35 
committee meeting and so this is a couple days old now.  Ladies 36 
and gentlemen of the Gulf Council, I am a founding member of the 37 
Gumbo Alliance, an environmental conservation coalition which 38 
had its genesis in the successful fight against the placement of 39 
open loop LNG facilities off Louisiana’s coast. 40 
 41 
Although my primary function as Executive Director of the 42 
Louisiana Charterboat Association is to represent 600 charter 43 
captains before the Louisiana legislature, I have determined 44 
that I have an equal and sometimes overriding responsibility to 45 
do what I can to protect the fisheries as a resource, without 46 
which the industry would not survive. 47 
 48 
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Since I am intensely interested in the aquaculture issue, I 1 
regret that I am unable to attend this hearing, but previous 2 
commitments make my presence impossible.  However, I do want to 3 
register our most strenuous objections to any form of 4 
aquaculture off Louisiana’s coast or anywhere in the Gulf of 5 
Mexico. 6 
 7 
My reasons are numerous, but can be summed up quite simply as we 8 
should never undertake any program in the Gulf which has the 9 
potential to impair or even destroy what is the most prolific 10 
fishery in the lower forty-eight and insofar as inshore species 11 
are concerned, it may well be the best fishery in the world. 12 
 13 
We in Louisiana have too often seen and paid the price for 14 
unintended consequences, including the saltwater intrusion 15 
caused by the unfettered digging of canals throughout our marsh.  16 
The oil companies have benefitted while our marshes and wetlands 17 
were destroyed, the saltwater killing the freshwater plants 18 
which held the soil together. 19 
 20 
The result has been increasingly dangerous storm surges, which 21 
with nothing to slow their advance have inundated huge areas of 22 
Louisiana when a storm even brushes our coastline.  While that 23 
is a separate issue, the lesson we should have learned is that 24 
we should never allow anything which has any chance of doing 25 
harm to our fishery. 26 
 27 
Hippocrates had it right when he wrote the original medical 28 
rule, first do no harm.  Opposition to fish farms is not just my 29 
position, but it is also the official stance of the Louisiana 30 
State Legislature and the Louisiana Wildlife and Fisheries 31 
Commission, as both bodies have passed resolutions opposing fish 32 
farms off Louisiana’s coast.  See attached and I will turn those 33 
in. 34 
 35 
Then Mr. Smith lists a number of reasons he’s opposed to fish 36 
farming in the Gulf and I’ll just summarize them here and turn 37 
them in.  Farm raised fish, although originally native species, 38 
will be altered by their food, treatment, and living conditions.  39 
They will be very different, even to the extent of losing their 40 
predatory status.  If they escape and breed with wild 41 
populations, we’ll have an inferior fish. 42 
 43 
The amount of waste generated both from wasted food and fish 44 
waste will only add to the already considerable dead zone 45 
problem.  Recreational and commercial fishing will suffer from 46 
the elimination of fishing grounds.  There’s a lack of suitable 47 
mitigation procedure and in the same vein, we have not seen any 48 
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reliable system to remove damaged fish farms from our waters 1 
when the inevitable happens and hurricanes destroy them. 2 
 3 
Concerns of the forage fish, menhaden, being subjected to 4 
additional pressure and finally, the fact that the Louisiana 5 
fishery puts a billion dollars per year into the state economy 6 
and anything that damages that to any extent would hurt the 7 
state.   8 
 9 
In conclusion, I recently participated in a stakeholder’s 10 
meeting which did not formally make a pro or con statement on 11 
aquaculture, but rather voiced recommendations as to what should 12 
be done to ensure the safety and efficiency of aquaculture 13 
operations. 14 
 15 
We were instructed to list our concerns, as well as the 16 
potential benefits of offshore aquaculture.  However, the list 17 
of potential dangers from aquaculture was much larger than that 18 
of the possible benefits, which primarily boiled down to a 19 
restaurant customer being able to order a farm-raised version of 20 
a wild native species like redfish. 21 
 22 
The alarming end result is that any one of the possible negative 23 
outcomes could destroy or seriously impair the fishery, while 24 
the benefits accrue only to the -- 25 
 26 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN: Your time is up.  Would you please wrap it 27 

up, please? 28 
 29 
MR. BOLLAG:  In conclusion, Mr. Smith says 600 charterboat 30 

captains and 10,000 to 15,000 shrimpers and commercial fishermen 31 
and 350,000 saltwater recreational license holders -- He knows 32 
very few who are in favor of this offshore aquaculture and a 33 
vast multitude who are opposed. 34 
 35 
He wanted to please send the aquaculture proposal back to the 36 
drawing board.  The benefits are speculative while the potential 37 
harm is enormous and irrevocable and in speaking with him today, 38 
he also said that he would really like to see this plan go away 39 
and doesn’t think it’s something the Gulf Council should pursue. 40 
 41 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Sascha.  Are there any questions? 42 

 43 
MR. PEARCE:  Thanks for your comments.  I want you to thank 44 

Charlie Smith for his participation today with what you read and 45 
also his participation at some meetings we’ve had recently, but 46 
just as a footnote, Charlie Smith also agreed and voted for a 47 
trial aquaculture program in the Gulf of Mexico, in Louisiana, 48 
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just two weeks ago. 1 
 2 
Charlie Smith was at a meeting and attended the meeting and 3 
actively participated in this meeting and voted to test an 4 
aquaculture program in Louisiana to try and resolve the problems 5 
that we may or may not have.  I just wanted to make a footnote 6 
for that. 7 
 8 
MR. BOLLAG:  My understanding was -- That was what I was 9 

mentioning.  My understanding was that was something where 10 
people came together to discuss if this were to happen what they 11 
would want to do.  I think his primary desire would be no 12 
offshore aquaculture. 13 
 14 
MR. PEARCE:  Just as a follow-up, he voted to have an 15 

aquaculture program developed as a trial in the Gulf of Mexico 16 
at that meeting. 17 
 18 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any other questions from the council?  Thank 19 

you, Mr. Bollag.  The next speaker is B.G. Thompson and he’ll be 20 
followed by Pete Barber and that will be the last card I have 21 
for aquaculture, Pete Barber.  Go ahead, Mr. Thompson. 22 
 23 
MR. B.G. THOMPSON:  Thank you, council, for the opportunity to 24 

speak again today.  When I arrived here, I found out that things 25 
were being delayed on the FMP for aquaculture, which I think is 26 
good.  It brings back -- In my sixty years of working with the 27 
Gulf of Mexico, back in 1949 to the present, we’re always 28 
catching up.  The knowledge comes after the fact of some 29 
development and this is the way I view the aquaculture. 30 
 31 
1949, the Department of Agriculture and the old Bureau of 32 
Commercial Fisheries published a report about that thick and it 33 
said the Gulf of Mexico was a dead sea.  In the 1950s, the same 34 
government agency is trying to grow the tuna industry, which 35 
didn’t move and we discovered a few things and eventually the 36 
Japanese fished the tuna and then the bluefin issue came along 37 
and now no one can fish for bluefin in the Gulf of Mexico. 38 
 39 
Then we have the 200-mile bill passed in the 1970s and at the 40 
time this was being passed, we’re still trying to discover 41 
what’s in the Gulf of Mexico while fishing is growing.  Of 42 
course, the shrimp fishery has been there for a long, long time, 43 
but there’s other fisheries that we just didn’t know about and 44 
before we could catch up with the knowledge to operate the 200-45 
mile bill, we’re starting to overfish populations.  With this 46 
aquaculture, I see us doing that again and hopefully before we 47 
implement an FMP on aquaculture, we know the right things to do 48 
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and what not to do.  Thank you very much. 1 
 2 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Thompson.  We’ve got a couple 3 

of questions. 4 
 5 
MR. SIMPSON:  B.G., would you mind telling everybody what you 6 

retired from at the federal government and who hired you? 7 
 8 
MR. THOMPSON:  I’ll go with the last question first.  I was 9 

hired by Charlie Laws.  I was his protégé and when he went to 10 
Washington, I soon followed him.  I became chief of the 11 
statistics later, which was Charlie’s job, and that’s what I 12 
retired from.  I ran the old Market News Program until it was 13 
contracted out in the early 1980s.  We had that as a commercial 14 
program, starting in the late 1970s, surprisingly.  Everybody 15 
thought that was a program that wouldn’t sell and in the first 16 
year, I think we sold like a million dollars worth of 17 
subscriptions. 18 
 19 
MR. SIMPSON:  Thank you.  It’s good to see you again, B.G. 20 

 21 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Thompson.  Any other 22 

questions?  Mr. Pete Barber and this is the last card I have on 23 
aquaculture. 24 
 25 
MR. PETE BARBER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the 26 

council.  I came up here not knowing what the committee had done 27 
yesterday and not also knowing that EPA had come out with some 28 
information that has not been digested by the council as of yet. 29 
 30 
Those two pieces of information change what I’m going to say 31 
today, in that I think it is very prudent to put this off.  32 
Otherwise, I would be standing here castigating you for 33 
dereliction of duty.  This is something that has been talked 34 
about for six years.  It’s been practiced in the worldwide arena 35 
for over 5,000 years and the talent I see before me and the 36 
scientific knowledge and the errors made and the successes made, 37 
I have to believe that we can put together a legitimate plan 38 
that will optimize our ability to use the wonderful resource 39 
which is the Gulf of Mexico. 40 
 41 
Some of the thought processes I hear today drew a mind picture 42 
to me that we could be sitting around inside a cave in animal 43 
skins and scratching our heads and wondering of Og’s new 44 
invention of fire should actually be allowed to be used to warm 45 
the cave.  Having said that, I’ll leave you with this thought.  46 
Is the Gulf of Mexico really a resource if we’re not allowed to 47 
use it efficiently? 48 
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 1 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN: Thank you, Mr. Barber.  Are there questions? 2 

 3 
DR. SHIPP:  Pete, again, thanks for coming and I know you have 4 

close ties with the City of Bayou LaBatre, which is currently 5 
suffering probably more than most of the country economically.  6 
Give us your purview of the impact on Bayou LaBatre if 7 
mariculture is ever established in the Gulf of Mexico, from the 8 
harvesters all the way through the producers. 9 
 10 
MR. BARBER:  The supposition would be that it would be 11 

established and right now, I don’t know, depending upon what the 12 
protocol is, whether there’s going to be anybody that is going 13 
to venture forth the capital necessary to achieve at a 14 
sufficient rate to justify the expenditures. 15 
 16 
Having said that, we’re working with aquaculture in the local 17 
high school.  What we have in Bayou LaBatre and what we have in 18 
southern Alabama right now is a very, very competitive, 19 
successful seafood business that right now has mega unused 20 
capacity.  We have problems with labor and that’s another issue 21 
that’s not in this purview, but we have a lot of things that we 22 
could be doing, space that could be used for processing fish 23 
products. 24 
 25 
We have the distribution networks and all the infrastructure in 26 
place through the brokers, the salesmen, the transportation, the 27 
selling, et cetera, et cetera, et cetera.  We’ve got an 28 
outstanding program promoting Alabama seafood products, but we 29 
don’t have the products.  That’s the short story and if you’ll 30 
excuse my little editorial, a lot of it has to do with what I 31 
would consider overregulation of some of the finfish species. 32 
 33 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any other questions?  Thank you, Mr. Barber.  34 

We’ll move now to open public comment and our first speaker will 35 
be Chris Robbins and he’ll be followed by Gary Jarvis.  Again, 36 
if you’ll take your places over here and be ready to step up to 37 
the mic, we would appreciate it very much. 38 
 39 

OPEN PUBLIC TESTIMONY 40 
 41 

MR. CHRIS ROBBINS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair and members of the 42 

council.  My name is Chris Robbins and I’m with the Ocean 43 
Conservancy.  In the interest of time, we have a couple of 44 
issues on which we would like to speak and in the interest of 45 
time, your time, we would like to be able to combine these two 46 
issues. 47 
 48 
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On behalf of our Marine Wildlife Program and on behalf of our 1 
140,000 members and activists at the Ocean Conservancy, we would 2 
like to express our concern over unauthorized levels of 3 
loggerhead sea turtle takes in the Gulf of Mexico reef fish 4 
bottom longline fishery. 5 
 6 
We have submitted a letter to NMFS and the council on this issue 7 
and I will just briefly highlight its contents here today.  8 
Observer data collected from July of 2006 to December of 2007 9 
show that an estimated 974 sea turtle interactions occurred in 10 
the bottom longline fishery in this eighteen-month period, 11 
primarily involving loggerhead turtles, with fifteen of the 12 
eighteen observed takes resulting in injury or death. 13 
 14 
This level of take far exceeds NMFS’s three-year take level 15 
authorized under Section 7 of the ESA for all three fisheries 16 
sectors: commercial longline, commercial hand line, and the 17 
recreational fishery. 18 
 19 
Populations of loggerhead sea turtles throughout the Gulf of 20 
Mexico and Atlantic are in trouble, with each recovery unit 21 
showing steady declines.  The Gulf of Mexico loggerhead 22 
population has one of the highest rates of declines, an 23 
estimated 6.3 percent decrease in numbers of nesting turtles 24 
each year. 25 
 26 
Despite some discussion at this meeting regarding an abundance 27 
of sea turtles in the Gulf, the science does not support these 28 
claims.  Based on extremely high estimates of loggerhead sea 29 
turtle takes in the bottom longline fishery, we call upon the 30 
council and NMFS to take immediate action to restrict the bottom 31 
longline fishery to avoid any further takes. 32 
 33 
The Reef Fish Committee passed a motion yesterday to immediately 34 
begin the scoping process under NEPA to identify measures to 35 
reduce takes and the council intends to hold scoping meetings in 36 
December.  While we are encouraged by these actions and believe 37 
they represent a commitment by NMFS to quickly pursue actions to 38 
avoid a jeopardy situation, we remain concerned that sea turtles 39 
will continue to be killed in the interim. 40 
 41 
Therefore, we recommend that NMFS immediately increase observer 42 
coverage in the bottom longline fishery so that additional 43 
information can be collected on take levels, especially with 44 
respect to what areas and seasons have the highest likelihood of 45 
a sea turtle take. 46 
 47 
Additional observer information is also needed to determine what 48 
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gear characteristics, fishing practices, and environmental 1 
factors are associated with sets that experience sea turtle 2 
takes.  We also recommend that NMFS use the next several months 3 
before the biological opinion to conduct research in cooperation 4 
with the longline fishery to determine where in the water column 5 
and at what point in the deployment or retrieval of gear sea 6 
turtles are being hooked and what gear modifications or changes 7 
in fishing practices have the greatest potential to be effective 8 
at reducing both the probability of an interaction between sea 9 
turtles and the longline fishery and a likelihood of an injury 10 
or mortality if an interaction occurs. 11 
 12 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on that issue and the 13 
last issue here on which I would like to comment has to do with 14 
Atlantic shark management. 15 
 16 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Mr. Robbins, I can’t give you another three 17 

minutes. 18 
 19 
MR. ROBBINS:  How about thirty seconds? 20 

 21 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  If you can do it in thirty seconds, go 22 

ahead. 23 
 24 
MR. ROBBINS:  The Ocean Conservancy would like to take this 25 

opportunity to comment on the NMFS Atlantic Shark Management 26 
Program through Amendment 3 to the HMS FMP.  Specifically, we 27 
ask the council to work with NMFS in support of the following 28 
goals, ending overfishing and beginning recovery of blacknose 29 
sharks, addressing all sources of shark mortality from Gulf 30 
Council managed fisheries, especially the shrimp fishery, which 31 
accounts for nearly half of blacknose shark mortality, according 32 
to the latest SEDAR report.  Thank you very much for considering 33 
these comments, Mr. Chair and members of the council. 34 
 35 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Robbins.  Are there any 36 

questions from the council?  Thank you, Mr. Robbins.  The next 37 
speaker is Gary Jarvis and he’ll be followed by Tracy Redding. 38 
 39 
MR. GARY JARVIS:  Thank you.  My name is Captain Gary Jarvis and 40 

I’m representing myself as the captain and the owner of a fifty-41 
seven-foot Sport Fisherman, the Back Down II.  I’m home ported 42 
out of Destin, Florida.  I spend about seven months a year there 43 
and I also fish around five months a year in Fourchon, 44 
Louisiana. 45 
 46 
I’m also here representing over a hundred professional 47 
fishermen, boats, and permit holders.  I come before this 48 
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council to bring you a plan developed over the last few months 1 
by a group of professional fishermen who want a forward thinking 2 
and forward moving plan to save our industry. 3 
 4 
We feel that the reactionary and adversarial position that our 5 
industry has taken in the past before this council is part of 6 
the reason we’re in the mess that we’re in and so I’m today 7 
going to bring you a plan that we call the SOS Plan and that SOS 8 
stands for Save Ourselves. 9 
 10 
We presented this plan to our industry only two weeks ago and 11 
even though it’s groundbreaking not so much on the content, but 12 
more so on its focus and on its can-do attitude, we’ve gotten 13 
over 120 signatures supporting it.  Those represent eighty-two 14 
captains, seventy-four boats or businesses, and some of the 15 
captains are historical permit holders that are not presently on 16 
boats at this time. 17 
 18 
As you read this plan, you can take it at face value.  There’s 19 
no hidden agendas.  It’s a simple plan to a complex problem, but 20 
it’s a workable plan.  It’s well thought out and as some on the 21 
council have spoken and said to me, it’s a plan that has real 22 
answers for real problems.  Above all, whether you operate your 23 
charter business out of a twenty-five-foot center console or a 24 
hundred-foot charterboat, whether you’ve been in business for 25 
six months or sixty years, our plan is fair to everybody in the 26 
charter/for-hire industry. 27 
 28 
This plan by our industry is asking you for the first time to 29 
approve the very tools that you as managers of this fishery have 30 
needed all these years.  We’ve built this plan on four 31 
cornerstones and those cornerstones are sector separation, VMS, 32 
electronic logbooks, and dockside verification. 33 
 34 
Our cornerstones also happen to be the same recommendations made 35 
by the National Research Center for fishery management in the 36 
Gulf of Mexico.  We believe this plan will give us a future that 37 
we can look forward to.  As it stands now, the status quo in the 38 
management of the red snapper fishery for us has become 39 
unbearable. 40 
 41 
Lost fishing days and uncertainty of what next year will bring 42 
and the overall impact of the upcoming issues that are coming up 43 
has taken away any value left in our businesses, let alone the 44 
ability to pay our bills.   45 
 46 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Mr. Jarvis, can you bring it to a 47 

conclusion?  Your time is up. 48 



 29 

 1 
MR. JARVIS:  I believe the SOS plan by the charter/for-hire 2 

industry is the right plan at the right time and to help the 3 
right people in this MSRA environment that we are now working 4 
in.  Please help us to help you to manage the red snapper 5 
fishery for the health and financial wellbeing of the 6 
professional charter industry.  Please remember that we are the 7 
only public access to the sportfishing in the Gulf of Mexico for 8 
all people, Americans and foreign visitors. 9 
 10 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Jarvis.  Are there questions 11 

from the council? 12 
 13 
MS. MORRIS:  Thank you, Captain Jarvis.  Could you elaborate a 14 

little more on how VMS is important to your plan?  I understand 15 
the sector separation and the electronic logbooks and the 16 
dockside verification, but just talk a little bit more about the 17 
reasoning behind the VMS. 18 
 19 
MR. JARVIS:  It’s just another one of the tools that the 20 

scientists and managers of this fishery can utilize.  It gives a 21 
good picture of effort and it also enhances the enforcement 22 
capabilities of our plan.  Without VMS involved with it, then 23 
our plan -- There will be some hurdles that wouldn’t be able to 24 
be overcome. 25 
 26 
As part of the debate we’ve been facing over the years is if the 27 
economy is slow or the weather is bad and we talk about reduced 28 
effort, we as fishermen have no proof of those issues and the 29 
VMS will supply that information. 30 
 31 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Mr. Jarvis.  Explain to me why you are 32 

in support of a sector separation.  That’s one question. 33 
 34 
MR. JARVIS:  Part of this plan and the sector separation -- The 35 

reason it’s one of our cornerstones is in today’s world, with 36 
the upcoming ACLs and AMs and with the economy in the shape that 37 
it’s in, we’re losing our charter/for-hire vessels at a rapid 38 
rate. 39 
 40 
What we’re worried about is as the economy recovers and 41 
everybody starts -- The boats that are on trailers and up in the 42 
storage facilities now, in the private recreation sector -- They 43 
outnumber us now ten to one, but we’re afraid it will be a 44 
hundred to one. 45 
 46 
Under the present status quo system, where you have an opening 47 
and a closing and it’s equivalent of the Oklahoma land rush 48 
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every year in the red snapper fishery, we can see with the ACLs 1 
that it will be maximized effort for X amount of days and then 2 
when the smoke clears, we find out we lose a third of the next 3 
year’s TAC and then the next year there’s less days and it’s 4 
going to be even more maximized effort and all of a sudden, four 5 
or five years from now, we have no TAC whatsoever, where if we 6 
get -- All we’re asking for is a historical portion of the 7 
recreational TAC and nothing more and nothing less, according to 8 
MRFSS data. 9 
 10 
That way, we as an industry can prevent, with the tools, VMS and 11 
electronic logbooks and real time catch accountability, we 12 
prevent the penalty of ACLs, first and foremost. 13 
 14 
Number two, it also puts us in a position, because we have real 15 
catch science, where we’re counting every fish and every pound, 16 
the ability to come before this council and ask them, under this 17 
present system, if we only get 120 days, how about if you give 18 
us 240 days and we’ll go to one fish person and because we have 19 
VMS, electronic logbook, and dockside verification, that puts 20 
you, as the managers of the stock, in a position to say yes, we 21 
can agree with that plan or instead of 240 days, we can give you 22 
200 days. 23 
 24 
During that process, if it looks like we’re going over our 25 
quota, just as in the commercial industry back in the derby 26 
days, we can say gentlemen, instead of it being over September 27 
1, we’re going to have to shut you down August 20th, based on 28 
your catch performance up to this point. 29 
 30 
It puts the management somewhat back in the hands of our 31 
industry and it really puts the accurate management back in the 32 
hands of the Gulf Council and the scientists. 33 
 34 
MR. PEARCE:  Thank you and I applaud you for your efforts and 35 

the direction you’re going.  I think only through better data 36 
and better numbers are you going to survive.  There’s no doubt 37 
about that and I also believe that as the harvesting sector 38 
provides access to the general public to eat at the restaurants, 39 
you provide access to the general public that doesn’t have its 40 
own boat or can’t fish or lives in New York and wants to fish in 41 
the Gulf. 42 
 43 
Therefore, I do believe that you have your own niche in that 44 
marketplace and that you provide a service to the citizens of 45 
this country and not just to the Gulf of Mexico.  Therefore, I 46 
think we need to look at you in that respect and to put you in a 47 
different world than you are right now, so that you can better 48 
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handle and grow and understand your fishery and so can we.  I 1 
really enjoy what you’re saying and I support you 100 percent. 2 
 3 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I heard you talk about the two fish, the one 4 

fish, electronic logbooks, dockside monitoring.  Just briefly 5 
tell me how those three comes together, such as you’re out there 6 
and you catch two fish and what would you do, put that in some 7 
kind of electronic logbook?  Then how would this dockside 8 
enforcement -- Tell me what you’re talking about there. 9 
 10 
MR. JARVIS:  This is one of the discussions we’ve had and 11 

there’s a couple of different ways that you can do it.  The 12 
importance of the VMS, of course, is to show effort, when we 13 
left and when we’re coming back and if the enforcement wants to 14 
access that. 15 
 16 
We’ve also talked about using a call-in and a call-out program 17 
and also, as you presently -- Even if we implement this plan, 18 
with these tools, we’re still going to be initially fishing 19 
under the opening and closing date, with the set limit of two 20 
fish per person.  We go out and we catch our limit of two fish 21 
per person and as we come in, we electronically log our two fish 22 
and it’s either we could use length to get the poundage and/or 23 
dockside -- Myself personally, I’m thinking dockside weigh-in 24 
stations. 25 
 26 
I know that’s cost prohibitive, but it’s something that maybe 27 
can be industry supported.  Because of the state of our 28 
industry, people are willing to pay the price to do business, 29 
the supporters of this plan are, up to this point. 30 
 31 
That’s part of another thing with sector separation on the 32 
enforcement side.  Because of the enforcement tools of the VMS 33 
and the electronic logbooks, it puts them in a position where it 34 
makes the enforcement officer’s job much easier to verify the 35 
logbooks. 36 
 37 
As this plan states, anybody that would violate the logbook 38 
program, electronic logbook program, by cooking the books, if 39 
you would, or falsifying information -- Unfortunately, in the 40 
past, fishing violators have not been handled as harshly as some 41 
here, including myself, would recommend, but we could -- The 42 
council could implement a forfeiture of your federal reef permit 43 
or at least a three strike and you’re out type of program. 44 
 45 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Jarvis.  Are there any other 46 

questions from the council?  Thank you very much.  Our next 47 
speaker is Tracy Redding and she’ll be followed by Jerry 48 
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Anderson.  Let me remind the speakers that you’ve got three 1 
minutes.  It starts off with a green light and turns yellow and 2 
then when it’s red, your time is up. 3 
 4 
MS. TRACY REDDING:  My name is Tracy Redding and I own and 5 

operate AAA Charters, a charter booking service along the 6 
Alabama coast.  I’m going to be very brief today.  I’m here in 7 
full support of our SOS plan that we’ve put a lot of hard work 8 
into.  I believe in sector separation, electronic logbooks to 9 
work in conjunction with vessel monitoring systems, and a system 10 
for verification. 11 
 12 
I hope the council will also consider putting a VMS ad hoc 13 
committee together and I look forward to working with the 14 
council in the future.  I do have some more names to add to the 15 
record and I’m willing to answer any questions you have. 16 
 17 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any questions for Ms. Redding?   18 

 19 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Ms. Redding.  We received a letter 20 

where one of the signatures said that they were going to remove 21 
their name and I know that you emailed the chairman about this.  22 
Could you tell us what happened with that individual that’s now 23 
wanting his name off of the list? 24 
 25 
MS. REDDING:  I was not responsible for that page, but my 26 

understanding is a wife signed on behalf of a husband.  I do 27 
have a letter on record to Glenn Martin dated October 23 that we 28 
can reference. 29 
 30 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you.  Any other questions from the 31 

council?  Thank you, Ms. Redding.  The next speaker is Jerry 32 
Anderson and he’ll be followed by Billy Archer. 33 
 34 
MR. JERRY ANDERSON:  Good afternoon.  I’m Jerry Anderson from 35 

Panama City, Florida, party boats.  I’ve been in the fishery for 36 
thirty-two years, commercial and recreational, recreational 37 
mainly the last ten or eleven years. 38 
 39 
All we’ve heard the last two years with the Magnuson Act is 40 
accountability, accountability, and accountability.  Now is the 41 
time we’ve finally found a program where we can have 42 
accountability, just like the commercial sector has, and I want 43 
to urge the council to please give it serious consideration and 44 
tell us what’s wrong with it and tell us how we can change it 45 
and tell us how the industry can help make this plan work.  46 
Thank you. 47 
 48 
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CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Anderson.  Are there any 1 

questions?  Thank you very much.  Mr. Billy Archer and followed 2 
by Captain Eugene Coley. 3 
 4 
MR. BILLY ARCHER:  Mr. Chairman and ladies and gentlemen of the 5 

council, thank you for hearing us.  My name is Billy Archer and 6 
I’m the Vice President of the Bay County Panama City Charterboat 7 
Association and I’m speaking on behalf of a few members and 8 
myself. 9 
 10 
I represent and back this plan, the SOS plan.  We are asking 11 
that you give this deep consideration, because we feel like it 12 
is the answers to the problems that we’re facing.  I know it’s 13 
redundant, but we think it’s workable.  We would love to have 14 
your input and we need your input, because without you on our 15 
side, it will never work.  I’ll be glad to answer any questions 16 
and thank you. 17 
 18 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Archer.  Are there any 19 

questions? 20 
 21 
DR. CRABTREE:  I just want to thank you guys for coming forward 22 

with some thoughts and some potential solutions and I’m sure the 23 
council is going to give this careful consideration.  I suspect 24 
there are a lot of details to work through, but I think it’s 25 
something we need to give some serious consideration to. 26 
 27 
MR. ARCHER:  Dr. Crabtree, I don’t see anything here today that 28 

we cannot overcome.  I do not see one obstacle that we cannot 29 
solve.  Thank you. 30 
 31 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Captain Archer.  The next speaker 32 

is Captain Coley and he’ll be followed by Scott Robson. 33 
 34 
MR. EUGENE COLEY:  I guess I can start.  I’m Captain Eugene 35 

Coley and I’m sixth or seventh generation fisherman in Gulf 36 
Shores, Alabama, from recreational right down to commercial 37 
fishing.  I don’t have much to say, other than I support our SOS 38 
plan and I would hope that the council would take it in great 39 
consideration for all the families in need of being able to go 40 
to work next year and the years to come.  Thank you, all. 41 
 42 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Captain.  Are there any 43 

questions?  The next speaker is Scott Robson and he’ll be 44 
followed by Mike Nugent. 45 
 46 
MR. SCOTT ROBSON:  Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen of the 47 

Gulf of Mexico Management Council.  My name is Scott Robson and 48 
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I run the charterboat Phoenix in Destin and I’m President of the 1 
Destin Charterboat Association and I’m also on the Recreational 2 
Red Snapper AP. 3 
 4 
I’m going to assume all of you have seen and read the SOS plan 5 
for the for-hire recreational fishery and I implore this council 6 
to grasp this plan and run with it.  It is a good plan.  It has 7 
the tools in it to create an accountability for the for-hire 8 
sector.  It has logbooks, VMS, dockside verification, real data, 9 
catch data. 10 
 11 
We just feel that we can’t live under the MRFSS data all the 12 
time and so please take this plan serious and let us put this 13 
plan into play and make it work. 14 
 15 
Kind of on another note, I understand that the Recreational Red 16 
Snapper AP Panel may not continue and I for one am on that panel 17 
and it would be kind of a shame, because I believe the SOS plan 18 
should be adopted, but that would be great for the for-hire, but 19 
there is still no plan out there for recreational fishermen.   20 
 21 
My thoughts for this is if you’re going to manage the fisheries 22 
with ACLs, you have to be able to count everybody, everyone 23 
that’s in the fishery.  The private recreational need to have 24 
some kind of red snapper endorsement, a catch card or a tag 25 
system, in order to collect better data from them, too. 26 
 27 
Nobody should be left behind to be managed in this fishery under 28 
the uncertainty of the MRFSS data.  The uncertainty will 29 
continue to be out there and we will never be able to move 30 
forward in this or advance forward in the Gulf of Mexico 31 
fisheries management.  Thank you very much. 32 
 33 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Robson.  We’ve got a couple 34 

of questions here. 35 
 36 
MR. TEEHAN:  Thanks for coming over, Scott, and for your 37 

comments.  I guess I could have asked this question to anyone 38 
who was supporting SOS, but it occurred to me to ask when you 39 
got up.  Is this a multistate plan or is this basically a 40 
Florida driven thing?  One gentleman from Alabama got up in 41 
support and do you have supporters in other states in the Gulf? 42 
 43 
MR. ROBSON:  Gary would be better to answer that, but as I 44 

understand, we’re gaining support from other states.  The plan 45 
is reaching out.  It started in Florida, kind of on the Gulf 46 
coast there, but yes, it seems to be gaining support from 47 
everybody in the Gulf of Mexico. 48 
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 1 
MR. SIMPSON:  Thank you, Scott.  I appreciate you and all the 2 

rest of them, the innovative thinkers.  It’s a long road from a 3 
beginning concept to implementation.  Of course, I think you 4 
realize that an electronic trip ticket, logbook, whatever you 5 
want to call it, requires or is a census.   6 
 7 
I think you need to go back and start working on how you’re 8 
going to get complete coverage, a census, complete coverage, of 9 
everybody to make this work.  Without it being a census, it’s 10 
not going to work.  That’s one thing.  That’s just a challenge 11 
to you, but I appreciate the innovation. 12 
 13 
The second thing is you touched on something that I thought 14 
about the first time I heard about this sector separation.  15 
Basically, as I understand it, and correct me if I’m wrong, 16 
you’re concerned and the reason for your sector separation 17 
concept is that basically all the gains from a closed section of 18 
the fishery that is limited by charterboat permits will be 19 
realized and absorbed and dissipated in an open section.  Is 20 
that basically what your concept is?  You’re afraid that once 21 
things start getting better that the private recreational will 22 
then take a larger share? 23 
 24 
MR. ROBSON:  I’m not so sure if the worry is so much that.  I 25 

think it’s in a sense it’s we’re trying to protect what we have 26 
there now and when ACLs come into effect, the fear of the 27 
overage and so when you’re counting one sector and we’re trying 28 
to make our sector, the for-hire sector, more accountable. 29 
 30 
If there was a plan for everybody to be all in that same group, 31 
that’s what we’re trying to create, but the accountability is to 32 
protect our sector. 33 
 34 
MR. SIMPSON:  There is limited entry in the commercial and 35 

there’s limited license in charterboats and then there’s open 36 
private sector.  You need to look at that challenge if you’re 37 
going to think about something besides sector separation. 38 
 39 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any other questions? 40 

 41 
MS. WALKER:  Thank you, Scott.  Thank you for coming.  The AP 42 

voted to split the Gulf into five states and it’s my 43 
understanding that this SOS plan that you’re supporting only 44 
wants to split the for-hire sector from the recreational sector. 45 
 46 
MR. ROBSON:  Correct. 47 

 48 
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MS. WALKER:  You’re telling us then -- I guess apparently you 1 

were one of the no votes on the AP for splitting the Gulf by 2 
state? 3 
 4 
MR. ROBSON:  No, I wasn’t.  I think in our AP panel we looked -- 5 

Our motion was for this council to look at regional management, 6 
but I don’t know if regional management is -- We’re talking 7 
about regional management, but here, we’re talking about sector 8 
separation and not state separation and so I don’t know if 9 
you’re mixing the two.  I don’t see the light in between the 10 
two, but yes, as an AP panel member, we did vote to have the 11 
council look at -- 12 
 13 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you for coming, Scott.  Is it my 14 

understanding that what you’re saying by the VMS and the 15 
electronic logbooks, as far as getting or proving your catch 16 
that you’re bringing in is where -- If you’re out on a trip and 17 
you had two fish per person and you have five passengers and 18 
caught ten fish, you would plug it into the electronic logbook 19 
and then, with your VMS, law enforcement would then randomly be 20 
able to check you at the dock to make sure that this electronic 21 
logbook and when they checked you at the dock matched? 22 
 23 
MR. ROBSON:  Coincide together, correct. 24 

 25 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Go side to side and so that’s how you’re putting 26 

all of them together.  What were your ideas as far as counting 27 
the fish or helping to extend the private recreational fisherman 28 
that doesn’t go out on a for-hire vessel?  Do you have any 29 
suggestions for that? 30 
 31 
MR. ROBSON:  In that, creating, for one, a red snapper 32 

endorsement.  I know this SOS plan talks about a red snapper 33 
endorsement for the for-hire.  I talked about creating a red 34 
snapper endorsement for private recreational, just like in the 35 
HMS, where everybody applied. 36 
 37 
Then you will be able to have a better feel or a better hold of 38 
exactly who possibly has an idea of wanting to go red snapper 39 
fishing.  For example, a snook fisherman, a trout fisherman, a 40 
tarpon fisherman, whatever, but he’s not counting as the same 41 
guy trying to go red snapper fishing. 42 
 43 
Along with that red snapper endorsement, creating a -- We talked 44 
about catch cards or a tag system.  A tag system to me sounds 45 
very viable and however that’s designed -- It could be designed 46 
in many ways, but one for thought is with your red snapper 47 
endorsement you start out with five red snapper tags and to 48 
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verify your red snapper you would -- Here again, these things 1 
would need groundtruthing, but you would stick your tag in that 2 
fish and when you brought it back to the dock, it would have a 3 
tag in it. 4 
 5 
You would clip off the end of that tag and send it into marine 6 
fisheries or clip off that tag and send it into marine fisheries 7 
and those five tags are counted and those are obviously five red 8 
snappers that have now been accounted for in the snapper 9 
fishery.  We think it’s better than a best guess. 10 
 11 
MR. SIMPSON:  All these details take time and they’re difficult 12 

to work out, but your interest is what’s important.  Correct me 13 
if I’m wrong, but my impression of sector separation was 14 
separation of for-hire quota from the recreational quota.  I 15 
didn’t think sector separation was down to the five states.  Is 16 
that what you’re referring to? 17 
 18 
MR. ROBSON:  Correct.  The panel was asked to look at what about 19 

regional management and this SOS plan just came before this AP 20 
panel, although there’s a lot of things in this SOS plan that 21 
were also being looked at by the AP Red Snapper Panel, but I’m 22 
saying the sector separation has nothing to do with regional 23 
management. 24 
 25 
MR. SIMPSON:  You’re calling regional management five states and 26 

sector separation recreational and for-hire. 27 
 28 
MR. ROBSON:  Yes, sector separation is private from for-hire. 29 

 30 
DR. CRABTREE:  Scott, again, I want to thank you guys for coming 31 

up with some good ideas.  Now, the sector, just to get more 32 
specific, it seems to me then the sector you’re talking about 33 
would be federally permitted charterboat vessels. 34 
 35 
MR. ROBSON:  Correct. 36 

 37 
DR. CRABTREE:  Private, like a state permitted guide vessel that 38 

catches some red snapper in state waters, his catches would be 39 
counted against the -- 40 
 41 
MR. ROBSON:  Yes, and that’s why I bring in whatever plan would 42 

have to be -- 43 
 44 
DR. CRABTREE:  The only sector we could require VMS and logbooks 45 

and all the key components of your plan would be the federally 46 
permitted sector.  That has to be how you define it, it seems. 47 
 48 
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MR. ROBSON:  Correct, yes. 1 

 2 
MS. WALKER:  This question is for Larry, because you’ve brought 3 

up some interesting things and while we’ve got these people 4 
here, I think we need to maybe answer some of these questions 5 
for them, like would the logbooks be used to determine the catch 6 
for the charterboat sector and now we’re being told that they’ll 7 
be state boats and so I guess the charterboat sector wouldn’t 8 
get the full 55 percent of the quota, which is what I think the 9 
SOS plan has stated before. 10 
 11 
Some percentage would have to go to the state boats that are 12 
fishing in Florida and Texas and Alabama too, I assume.  I have 13 
two questions.  Will the logbooks be used to determine the catch 14 
for the charterboat sector?  Would we do away with MRFSS and 15 
would we use just the logbooks to determine the catch for the 16 
charterboat sector and would the VMS be used exclusively to 17 
determine the effort in the charterboat sector? 18 
 19 
I think these are the questions that we need to answer to these 20 
guys today.  Everything sounds good and I’ve heard lots of you 21 
say you appreciate the ideas that they’ve brought, but now can 22 
we give them our opinion of whether or not these logbooks would 23 
be used for their catch and VMS for their effort? 24 
 25 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Ms. Walker, from the perspective of the 26 

chair, I would like to say that they’ve brought forth these 27 
things and I don’t have the answers today and I think what 28 
they’re asking us is to let us look at these things and flesh 29 
out all of these questions and I think we’ve all got a lot of 30 
questions and none of us have the answers to those right now.  I 31 
think we need some time to analyze these things and see if they 32 
will work, if there’s any way to do that, and then move forward 33 
with that.  I’ll defer to Mr. Simpson, since you addressed the 34 
question to him. 35 
 36 
MR. SIMPSON:  Mr. Chairman, you pretty well, I think, took care 37 

of the question and Bobbi knows there’s no answer to that.  You 38 
can’t be definitive today about what’s going to happen a year 39 
from now.  I’ve got a grandson that’s going to be born November 40 
the 10th, supposedly.  I don’t know if he’s going to be a doctor 41 
or lawyer or President.  Probably one of the three, but I -- 42 
 43 
MS. WALKER:  Larry, there is no other fishery that’s being done 44 

like that to this day.  We don’t use that, do we? 45 
 46 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Are there any other questions? 47 

 48 
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DR. CRABTREE:  Not a question, but a comment.  It’s really not 1 

fair to sit here and grill Scott on all these things, but Tom 2 
and Larry are right.  These are things that have to be worked 3 
out and just because there’s no other fishery being managed some 4 
way, it doesn’t mean this can’t be the first. 5 
 6 
If we just sit here and don’t do something different and don’t 7 
think outside the box and if the only solution people come up 8 
with is the data is no good and the science is wrong, we’re not 9 
going to get anywhere.  Some people have come up with some 10 
different ideas and let’s give them a fair chance and see if 11 
they’ll work. 12 
 13 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you.  Any other comments from the 14 

council?  Thank you, Mr. Robson.  We appreciate you being here.  15 
Mike Nugent and he’ll be followed by Pam Anderson. 16 
 17 
MR. MIKE NUGENT:  My name is Mike Nugent and I’m a charterboat 18 

owner/operator from Aransas Pass, Texas.  I’m here as President 19 
of the Port Aransas Boatmen Association.  I would like to talk a 20 
little bit about the accountability lines, like they’re talking 21 
about that plan, from our perspective. 22 
 23 
When this plan was proposed last week at the ad hoc AP, one of 24 
the comments was that they’re trying to come up with a plan to, 25 
quote, stop the bleeding.  That was how it was used, to try to 26 
stop and try to maintain until better times come.  I’ve got no 27 
problem with that. 28 
 29 
The problem that I had, and I told them at the time, was a few 30 
minutes later, one of the supporters of that plan brought up a 31 
motion, before the AP again, as to what kind of income 32 
requirement are we talking about to get your red snapper 33 
endorsement.  Right away, it went from let’s stop the bleeding 34 
to let’s see if we can suck the blood out of some other segments 35 
of this industry. 36 
 37 
I hope that’s not the intent, but that’s what keeps coming up.  38 
Our association has been around for seventy-three years in the 39 
charterboat business and coming over here and justifying our 40 
existence every few months is wearing thin. 41 
 42 
We just want to try to develop something, but we want everybody 43 
to try to develop something.  I’ve got no problem with the 44 
concept, but if you’ll look and if you’ll think for a minute, 45 
one of the problems I have is the vast majority of the for-hire 46 
business in the Gulf of Mexico is six-passenger vessels with no 47 
commercial endorsements.  That’s what makes up the great 48 
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majority of our boats, everybody’s. 1 
 2 
Now, you take a look at the panel that you’ve been convening and 3 
you’ve got one boat, one six-pack boat with no commercial 4 
endorsement.  That’s Myron Fisher out of Louisiana.  Every other 5 
for-hire member on that panel is an overload, a headboat, and/or 6 
with a commercial endorsement. 7 
 8 
When this stuff comes up, we need equal representation and the 9 
people that make up the bulk of the industry should have a say 10 
in the industry.  The reason I bring it up is when you all start 11 
discussing this, whenever that becomes, whenever it happens, I 12 
can guarantee you that a select few members of this council, 13 
from this AP, they’re going to say industry supports this or 14 
industry requested we do this and it ain’t the whole industry, 15 
people. 16 
 17 
We’ve got one person on there that’s representing the great 18 
majority of it.  All we ask for is you take that into account 19 
when you hear this industry is wanting.  We’re not trying to 20 
close the door on anything and we’re not throwing water on 21 
anybody, but you need to take that into account. 22 
 23 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Mike, could you wrap it up, please? 24 

 25 
MR. NUGENT:  I guess I could.  It looks like I don’t have any 26 

choice.  The other thing I would like to say is, Mr. Chairman, 27 
for the record, I’ve got a letter here from Mike Nugent, who is 28 
representing the Boatmen Association, that was an attendee last 29 
week.  I’ve got a letter here from Glenn Martin, who is the 30 
Chairman of that Ad Hoc AP, and I’ve got a letter from Monty 31 
Weeks, who is the representative of the recreational industry.  32 
He was the only representative for the recreational fishermen at 33 
that panel and we’ve got these letters and I would like them 34 
entered on the record in support of Bobbi Walker’s attendance at 35 
that meeting and we request you give this the same attention 36 
that you all gave a bunch of letters of criticism for that same 37 
thing.  I think it deserves equal time. 38 
 39 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  If you will submit those to the staff. 40 

 41 
MR. NUGENT:  They will be submitted.  I just wanted to let you 42 

know for the record. 43 
 44 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We appreciate your remarks.  Has anybody got 45 

any questions or comments? 46 
 47 
MR. RIECHERS:  Mike, thank you for being here, as always.  Let 48 
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me just go back to the SOS plan a little bit and Scott had 1 
mentioned that it was kind of moving throughout the Gulf and I 2 
know the email traffic and so forth in the last week or so has 3 
been probably heavy on that. 4 
 5 
Have you really had a chance to take this before your group and 6 
talk to them about it and as far as you know, has there been 7 
much of that that’s gone on in Texas at this point in time? 8 
 9 
MR. NUGENT:  About the only thing that’s going on right now is 10 

website talk and you know what website talk is worth, but we 11 
will be -- At our next meeting, we will be talking about it and 12 
we will be bringing up things and we’ll go from there. 13 
 14 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you.  Are there other questions?  15 

Mike, we thank you and please submit those letters to the staff, 16 
so that it can be put in the record.  The next speaker is Pam 17 
Anderson, followed by Johnny Greene. 18 
 19 
MS. PAM ANDERSON:  Members of the Gulf Council, thank you for 20 

allowing us to share our comments with you regarding our 21 
fishery.  I am Pam Anderson with the Captain Anderson Marina in 22 
Panama City Beach.  I wish I could say things are wonderful in 23 
Panama City and across the Gulf Coast, but they are not. 24 
 25 
Before the national economic crisis, the anglers of the Gulf 26 
Coast were under such stringent regulations that their 27 
businesses were in jeopardy.  They are much worse now.  In 2007, 28 
the data used to implement the bag limit of two red snapper hurt 29 
everyone in the charter and headboat business across the 30 
northern Gulf. 31 
 32 
Then came 2008 and fuel prices have soared to unprecedented 33 
levels.  People who came for a vacation found out that most of 34 
the red snapper fishing season has been closed and they opted 35 
for shorter trips because -- I’ll quote what I heard all season, 36 
if I can only keep two fish, why pay for a longer trip?  So they 37 
didn’t. 38 
 39 
The shorter headboat trips ran with customers that did not want 40 
to pay the full-day prices or the charterboat prices for only 41 
two fish and that’s what they consider.  That’s what they see 42 
when they’re coming.  They’re looking for snapper and they think 43 
they can only keep two fish. 44 
 45 
Now we come to the close of a bad season and I’m hearing your 46 
data tells you the fishing effort is higher in 2008 than in 2007 47 
and 2006.  I’m here to tell you that it’s wrong.  This incorrect 48 
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MRFSS data is causing families to lose their livelihoods, their 1 
homes, their ability to feed their families and it needs to 2 
stop. 3 
 4 
I’ve submitted to you the numbers of fuel and gas sold for 5 
Captain Anderson Marina and other Panama City marinas.  We are 6 
no different than any others across the Gulf.  If fuel and gas 7 
are not sold to boats, they do not run and their owners and 8 
would-be passengers do not fish.  It is as simple as that. 9 
 10 
The fuel usage for charterboats and headboats at our marina has 11 
decreased by almost 104,000 gallons, when comparing 2006 and 12 
2008.  Our passenger counts were down, but the real story is the 13 
length of the trips they were on, which goes to fishing effort. 14 
 15 
The fishing effort in 2008 was down 50 percent from 2006.  Our 16 
fish market cleans most of the fish caught at the marina and 17 
they were down 41 percent in fish cleaned this year compared to 18 
last year.  Our neighboring marinas gave me their fuel and gas 19 
numbers in gallons sold.  Treasure Island was down 36 percent in 20 
sales for gas and 56 in diesel.  Bay Point Marina was down 26 in 21 
gas and 37 percent in diesel.  Again, if they’re not buying gas 22 
and diesel fuel, they’re not fishing. 23 
 24 
Please go back through these numbers and look at MRFSS data and 25 
find out what they’re doing wrong, because they’re doing 26 
something very wrong.  Please play fair with this group of 27 
people who are just trying to make a living. 28 
 29 
In this time of national economic crisis, you have the tools in 30 
your hands to put many people back to work.  They do not want a 31 
handout.  They want to work.  Don’t add a controlling figure and 32 
extra percentages to your data in case you’ve added wrong or 33 
guessed wrong at some of the information.  Give the people in 34 
this industry a chance to make a living. 35 
 36 
Push for more artificial reefs to enhance the fishery.  More 37 
habitat will support more fish.  Stop feeding the dolphins.  We 38 
have a serious problem with that and we’re wasting a lot of the 39 
TAC by feeding the dolphins and losing the fish. 40 
 41 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Could you wrap it up, Ms. Anderson?  Your 42 

time is up. 43 
 44 
MS. ANDERSON: All right, I’ll do it.  Listen to the fishermen 45 

that are out there every day who want to conserve the natural 46 
resource that provides a living for them and don’t take the word 47 
of those who are only looking out for themselves, because there 48 
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are some that you’re hearing that are doing just that.  We’re 1 
very willing to work with you and if you need any information, 2 
we would be glad to offer that. 3 
 4 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you.  Are there any questions from the 5 

council?  Thank you much for being here.  Johnny Greene will be 6 
followed by Brian Bracknell. 7 
 8 
MR. JOHN GREENE:  My name is Johnny Greene.  I own and operate a 9 

charter fishing business here in the State of Alabama.  I’ve sat 10 
in here the past couple of days trying to understand what’s 11 
going on.  I’ve stood in the hallways and listened to some very 12 
compelling conversations by many different people. 13 
 14 
One thing that is apparently clear is that we are in a really 15 
bad situation with the red snapper.  I think we really need to 16 
look at every option that is available to us, no matter who 17 
they’re from or who they represent.  I think that the SOS plan 18 
seems to have a lot of merit and needs to be explored.  I also 19 
think we need to consider some kind of days at sea program. 20 
 21 
I think that we need to be accountable and work toward a common 22 
goal.  I just do not want to be forced into a dark closet with 23 
no options in front of me.  I’m very interested in the 2009 24 
stock assessment.  I heard yesterday that the average sized fish 25 
has increased from just over one pound to just over four pounds.  26 
The stock has been spreading out over a larger and larger 27 
geographical area than perhaps historical levels would suggest. 28 
 29 
I think the stock is recovering quicker than most people would 30 
give it credit.  After listening to the findings from the AP 31 
yesterday, I agree that there has been a lot more fish caught 32 
than what has been given credit for.  It’s just my opinion, but 33 
I think it may be as much as twice what the TAC was. 34 
 35 
If you think about it, if we harvested twenty-million pounds for 36 
ten years instead of nine million and then we get compliance 37 
through accountability in the commercial sector and the 38 
unfortunate demise of the shrimping industry, coupled with high 39 
fuel prices, not to mention a very short sixty-day recreational 40 
season, then maybe we have it under control. 41 
 42 
In conclusion, my thought is this.  If the red snapper fishery 43 
could sustain a twenty-million-pound beating for ten years and 44 
the pile of major hurricanes that in my opinion flawed the true 45 
findings of the 2006 stock assessment, then maybe we’re not as 46 
far from rebuilding this stock as many people would believe. 47 
 48 
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CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Greene.  Are there any 1 

questions? 2 
 3 
MR. MINTON:  Johnny, thank you for coming.  Just as a comment 4 

though, I think those numbers on the weights was a little over 5 
three to a little over four.  It was about a 25 percent increase 6 
this last year. 7 
 8 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any other questions?  Thank you, Mr. Greene.  9 

Mr. Bracknell and he’ll be followed by David Krebs. 10 
 11 
MR. BRIAN BRACKNELL:  My name is Captain Brian Bracknell and I’m 12 

the owner/operator of a charterboat here on the Alabama Gulf 13 
Coast.  There’s a couple of things that I want to talk about 14 
that some of the guys before me have mentioned. 15 
 16 
On the sector separations, the main thing that I think that the 17 
majority of us want to do with this is not to take fish away 18 
from the weekend recreational fishermen.  What we do is not 19 
recreational.  The only difference in us and a commercial boat 20 
is we get paid before we leave the dock for those red snapper. 21 
 22 
I don’t get up in the morning and take people fishing for 23 
recreational purposes.  It’s a job.  This is a business and so I 24 
think that we’ve got all the right in the world for the for-hire 25 
sector to be separated out from a recreational fisherman and the 26 
only thing that we want to do with doing this is to manage what 27 
we can be allocated from historical catch. 28 
 29 
There’s been some talk about we’re trying to own the fish from 30 
the recreational sector and I don’t think that’s what’s trying 31 
to be done here.  With the VMS and the logbooks, I think that 32 
would be a step in the right direction as far as having some 33 
data collection, as far as what can be done later on down the 34 
road. 35 
 36 
We understand that this is not going to be something that’s 37 
going to happen anytime soon, but I think that’s a step in the 38 
right direction and the VMS and the logbook, that may hurt.  It 39 
may show that we’ve actually been taking more fish out than what 40 
that data shows, but we’ve got to start somewhere. 41 
 42 
We’ve got to have some way of recording what’s being taken out 43 
for what we’re doing and we don’t have that right now.  The last 44 
thing I want to talk about a little bit is the growth of our red 45 
snapper stock, especially here on the Alabama coast. 46 
 47 
On a twelve-hour trip, I may spend five minutes catching a limit 48 
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of snapper for fifteen people.  They’re spreading out more and 1 
more.  We’re catching them up in Mobile Bay at the battleship 2 
basically now.  They’re everywhere. 3 
 4 
The size of our stock has grown.  I think we really need to look 5 
at that on this next stock assessment, because I think it’s 6 
grown a whole lot faster than what was anticipated.  Thank you, 7 
guys. 8 
 9 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you.  Are there any questions?  Thank 10 

you, Mr. Bracknell.  David Krebs will be followed by Bob Spaeth. 11 
 12 
MR. DAVID KREBS:  Good afternoon, council.  I’m David Krebs, 13 

owner of Ariel Seafoods in Destin, Florida.  I’m also a red 14 
snapper IFQ holder and I’ve been associated with the commercial 15 
business and a little bit of the recreational business for over 16 
thirty years. 17 
 18 
In this day and age right now, I think one thing that we all are 19 
very aware of is we’re in a predicament called personal 20 
responsibility.  The economy is suffering.  For so long, people 21 
have not stood up and taken claim for their actions.  I applaud 22 
Captain Jarvis and Captain Archer and several other members that 23 
have come forward with a plan for their sector.  What a 24 
difference two years have made since we were in Bayou LaBatre 25 
and everybody was opposed to saving their sector. 26 
 27 
I think these guys are on a great path and it’s the only path 28 
that makes sense.  I’m waiting for the recreational or the 29 
private sector representative to step up to the microphone and 30 
say, council, we’re ready to come up with a plan also.  We’ve 31 
been asking for this for years. 32 
 33 
The only other comment that I have revolves around allocation.  34 
There’s rumors of redistribution of wealth, I guess is the catch 35 
phrase.  Any discussions of any reallocation until the fishery 36 
is built back to the prior TAC limits that they were at before 37 
management turned them upside down needs to be put on hold and 38 
the rhetoric needs to stop and the threats that you don’t have 39 
to worry about voting for this plan because we’re going to 40 
reallocate to this sector.  It just confuses an awful lot of 41 
people. 42 
 43 
My only other observation is we still do not have a control date 44 
for vermilion snapper on the table that I’m aware of.  I’m going 45 
to ask this council to come forward with a control date now, 46 
because I can assure you, as I have over the past ten years -- I 47 
think most of the things that I’ve said I saw happening have 48 
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come to pass.  You will have vermilion in an overfished state in 1 
2010. 2 
 3 
You have a tremendous amount of directed effort against 4 
vermilion snapper, obviously because of the TAC cut in red 5 
snapper.  We’ve argued for the last six years that it’s the same 6 
fleet that harvest red snapper or vermilion snapper and now that 7 
the snapper TAC is cut back, there is more effort coming from 8 
all different sectors on vermilion.   9 
 10 
We need a control date and we need to move forward with IFQs.  11 
Once you have a control date in place, you’re going to have a 12 
season and if you have a season, you’re going to have a derby.  13 
We’ve certainly learned from our past and I’m really excited to 14 
see the pace that we’re moving forward with at this juncture.  15 
Again, it’s good to see you all.  It’s been a while and that’s 16 
the end of my remarks. 17 
 18 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Krebs.  Any comments or 19 

questions from the council?  Thank you very much.  Our next 20 
speaker is Bob Spaeth and he’ll be followed by Mr. Dennis 21 
O’Hern. 22 
 23 
MR. BOB SPAETH:  I’m glad Dennis is following me.  My name is 24 

Bob Spaeth, Southern Offshore Fishing Association.  I’ll make my 25 
comments brief.  I just wanted this council to know that a 26 
couple of weeks ago, when this turtle issue came up -- We’re 27 
very concerned about it. 28 
 29 
It’s kind of taken us a little bit by surprise.  When we found 30 
out what was going on, we immediately set up meetings with 31 
industry leaders, GFA and SOFA and others.  We also contacted 32 
the agency to sit down to see what we can do to try to mitigate 33 
if we have a bad biological opinion in I guess February or March 34 
when that comes out. 35 
 36 
I just wanted to assure the council that we’re doing everything 37 
we can.  We’re working with the environmental groups, several of 38 
them.  We’ve come up with some ideas that we would like to try 39 
and I would hope that we would go along with our scoping 40 
document and try to mitigate these problems, because I’ll tell 41 
you none of us want to kill a turtle.  Thank you. 42 
 43 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Spaeth.  Are there any 44 

questions of Mr. Spaeth?  Thank you.  Mr. O’Hern will be 45 
followed by Bart Niquet. 46 
 47 
MR. O’HERN:  Thank you, council.  Again, for the record, Dennis 48 
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O’Hern, Executive Director of the Fishing Rights Alliance.  1 
Following up on Bob’s comments, actually the FRA applauds the 2 
attention and the seriousness with which you’re taking these 3 
concerns over loggerhead turtles and we trust you’ll move 4 
forward and make your decisions based on good, sound science. 5 
 6 
Now, to Mr. Krebs’s response, the FRA has been before this 7 
council for five years.  We’ve had plans and we’ve had requests 8 
and we’ve asked for help with MRFSS.  We’ve pointed it out and 9 
when it was called fatally flawed, we were there to say we’ve 10 
suggested how to make it better.  The progress to rebuild MRFSS 11 
is very slow.  The actual fixes that needed to be made to MRFSS, 12 
I didn’t really see too much of it done, witnessed by currently 13 
the Wave 1 of 2008, which shows that an all time record number 14 
of people went fishing in the EEZ off of west Florida. 15 
 16 
That concerns me greatly, because it’s not going to be changed.  17 
I think it will be looked at, but it won’t be changed and Dr. 18 
Crabtree will be forced to apply those numbers and I fear close 19 
the gag grouper fishery recreationally next year.  By the way, 20 
recreational is not just a word, it’s a sector. 21 
 22 
Whether the recreational fishermen -- I am the example of the 23 
private angler.  I don’t have a captain’s license and I’ve never 24 
wanted to be a charter captain or anything else, other than just 25 
a guy who likes to go out on my boat.  A recreational angler can 26 
choose to go out on my boat, their boat, fish from shore, or pay 27 
somebody as little or as much as they’re willing to pay to go 28 
out. 29 
 30 
It does not entitle, in my opinion, anybody who takes these 31 
people out fishing, including myself as a charterboat owner -- 32 
It does not entitle me to any landings history or any piece of 33 
that fish that came over the back of my boat from my other 34 
passengers. 35 
 36 
I’ve got grave concerns about that and I’ve got grave concerns 37 
about further separating sectors when we’re so data poor to 38 
begin with that we can’t manage what we have.  We want to see 39 
some solutions to this and I’ll just leave you with this.  If I 40 
took a tour of the Grand Canyon and saw what I wanted to see and 41 
paid Dr. Crabtree’s Mule Tours and he takes me on the ride, does 42 
that mean that Dr. Crabtree owns that piece of the Grand Canyon 43 
and the only way I get to see it, since historically I rode his 44 
mule instead of wanting to walk my own path, he owns that piece 45 
of the Grand Canyon? 46 
 47 
It sounds ludicrous, but I guess that’s what we’re all 48 
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struggling with and you’ll hear a lot in the future from the 1 
FRA.  We’re all kind of struggling to understand how somebody 2 
else can own a recreational portion.  The opportunity to fish is 3 
what drives the recreational sector, the opportunity. 4 
 5 
Closing these fisheries down takes away our opportunity and if 6 
you all will take a good look at the stock assessments, the 7 
problem with the natural mortality, which we’ve presented to you 8 
in the past, and the concerns with MRFSS -- I think about half 9 
of our concerns would be alleviated right off the bat.  Thank 10 
you for your time. 11 
 12 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. O’Hern.  We’ve got a question 13 

from Mr. Simpson. 14 
 15 
MR. SIMPSON:  Dennis, are you in favor of mandatory trip ticket 16 

reporting for the private recreational fishermen for red 17 
snapper? 18 
 19 
MR. O’HERN:  You know what we were in favor of all along is 20 

somehow the full licensing of anglers and to the point where I 21 
really think that everybody that fishes recreationally ought to 22 
have a recreational fishing license, whether they go on a for-23 
hire boat -- 24 
 25 
MR. SIMPSON:  I didn’t ask you that.  I asked you a question. 26 

 27 
MR. O’HERN:  I’m getting to the answer, because part of the 28 

answer is with the license, then there’s going to be -- We 29 
suggested a mandatory requirement for a certain number of people 30 
to report.  You don’t report, it’s just like your commercial 31 
permit and you don’t get relicensed.  Yes, I’m in favor of the 32 
mandatory required reporting of the landings for certain people.  33 
You’re not going to do it for everybody though, Larry.  I think 34 
we all know that. 35 
 36 
MR. SIMPSON:  You realize that that’s a survey and that’s not a 37 

census and that’s what you’re criticizing. 38 
 39 
MR. O’HERN:  No, I’m criticizing the way the data is used in the 40 

survey that’s currently done. 41 
 42 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any other questions from the council?  Thank 43 

you, Mr. O’Hern.  The next speaker is Bart and after Bart, we’re 44 
going to take about a five-minute break and then we’ll continue 45 
on. 46 
 47 
MR. BART NIQUET:  Good afternoon.  I’m Bart Niquet and I’ve been 48 
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fishing for a little over sixty-five years.  I think I’m about 1 
to learn how to do it.  I want to put down here what I’m in 2 
favor of first and then I’ll talk about the rest.  I’m in favor 3 
of ITQs for grouper.  I also believe the recreational take 4 
should be split not only on snapper and grouper, but it should 5 
be split between the vessels for-hire and the general 6 
recreational sector. 7 
 8 
The general recreational sector needs a license and snapper and 9 
grouper tags.  I would like to see the vermilion snapper history 10 
be the same dates as the grouper ITQ.  That would save a lot of 11 
council time and effort. 12 
 13 
As far as aquaculture goes, I find it ironic that you’re 14 
considering permitting in these facilities in what your own 15 
biologist said is a dead zone.  Do they know something you don’t 16 
or is it just another mistake? 17 
 18 
We’ve been hearing a lot of talk about protecting and conserving 19 
the fisheries and you name them.  I would like to know who and 20 
what are we conserving them for and who is conserving the 21 
fishermen.  The council is contemplating the so-called forty-22 
break.  The actual area by itself is not monumental, but when 23 
added to the others both currently closed and proposed to be 24 
closed, they account for over 50 percent of the presently 25 
prolific habitat. 26 
 27 
After all, we’re talking about a food source first and a 28 
recreational use occasionally, since most of this bottom is out 29 
of the range and depth for most tourists or profitable charter 30 
trips.  I think maybe we’re putting the cart before the horse 31 
there.   32 
 33 
The longline boats cannot fish inside of twenty fathoms south of 34 
Cape San Blas.  If you close the forty break, there’s not a 35 
whole lot of fishing outside of fifty fathoms and so effectively 36 
what you’ve done, and I know that’s one of the things you want 37 
to do, is you’ve put most of the longline boats out of business.  38 
That’s about all I’ve got. 39 
 40 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you.  Are there any questions?  Thank 41 

you, sir, for being here.  We appreciate your remarks.  We’re 42 
going to take a five-minute break and the speaker at the 43 
beginning of the next session will be Bob Zales, II. 44 
 45 
(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 46 
 47 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Council members, please take your seats.  48 
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Our next speaker is Mr. Bob Zales, III.  He’ll be followed by 1 
Jim Clements. 2 
 3 
MR. ZALES:  Bob Zales, II, and I’m representing the Conservation 4 

Cooperative of Gulf Fishermen.  Listening to all the comments so 5 
far this afternoon, I’ve kind of changed what I was initially 6 
going to say.  First off, I want to make it clear that this new 7 
plan, alleged new plan anyway, that has been thrown out there 8 
that some of us are not supporting that plan and that’s not 9 
necessarily a true statement. 10 
 11 
On behalf of the Panama City Boatmen Association, probably ten 12 
years ago, if not longer, we came to the council and suggested 13 
using logbooks.  Larry Simpson has heard me at Gulf States 14 
Marine Fisheries Commission meetings looking for ways to improve 15 
private recreational data, all the data that’s out there.  I’ve 16 
made many, many suggestions and most of those are included in 17 
this plan. 18 
 19 
Unfortunately, there’s a bureaucracy that runs the federal 20 
government and the logbook issue is currently in the works.  The 21 
VMS thing is probably a controversial thing.  I think that when 22 
you hear from the other 1,300 or so permitted vessels that are 23 
in the Gulf of Mexico for reef fish, you’ll probably find that 24 
out. 25 
 26 
I would encourage the Fisheries Service, since they retain that 27 
database, that in their discussions of what they’re going to 28 
propose here to really hear the true picture on how the industry 29 
as a whole feels about any of this, they should poll those 30 
people, because they have that database and it would be easily 31 
done and they surely can find the money to send them that 32 
information. 33 
 34 
Also, several meetings ago, I think Ms. Walker is the one that 35 
proposed this, but we’re going to get an updated red snapper 36 
stock assessment at the end of next year, in 2009.  I think Ms. 37 
Walker tried to get it pushed up to a full-blown assessment and 38 
for valid reasons, that can’t be done. 39 
 40 
Some comments were made and questions asked and if I remember 41 
correctly, and I don’t mean to put Dr. Crabtree on the spot, but 42 
I remember the question being asked of what could be expected 43 
from that update on the data that it showed and essentially, it 44 
was somewhere in the neighborhood of that you might get a little 45 
bit of a difference in TAC or whatever, but because information 46 
is limited in an updated assessment, it wouldn’t make a big 47 
difference. 48 
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 1 
The other night, under public question and answer stuff, that 2 
question was asked and I heard the answer coming back that we’re 3 
going to have that update and there could be significant changes 4 
made due to that.  I think that needs to be cleared up. 5 
 6 
A lot of the information that’s out here and the processes of 7 
how this information works I think needs to be fully explained 8 
to the public, so that they fully understand the process, what 9 
really can and cannot be expected, the real world, in a sense, 10 
not what can be -- According to what the guidelines say can be 11 
done, but how things actually work.  I think it would be 12 
beneficial to do that.  There’s seventeen seconds left and so if 13 
anybody has got a question, I’ll be glad to answer it. 14 
 15 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Zales.  Are there any 16 

questions from the council? 17 
 18 
DR. CRABTREE:  Just to respond to Bob on the update, I don’t 19 

know what it’s going to show.  It might be substantially 20 
different and it might be exactly the same.  I don’t know. 21 
 22 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any other questions? 23 

 24 
MR. SIMPSON:  It’s not a question so much as a comment.  Ten 25 

years ago or twelve years ago, a classic logbook, Bob, looks 26 
entirely different than an electronic logbook or trip ticket 27 
that’s verifiable and so forth.  Ten years ago a car looked a 28 
certain way and ten years now, it looks different. 29 
 30 
MR. ZALES:  I appreciate that comment, Larry, and we’ve asked 31 

for electronic logbooks and as you know, currently an electronic 32 
logbook program, test program, is being worked on and hopefully 33 
going to be implemented after the first of the year.  We’ve made 34 
inroads there and we’ve worked hard to get there.  It’s just 35 
taken time to do it, but it appears to me that a lot of people 36 
are thinking that a lot of these things can be done essentially 37 
overnight, within a year or two. 38 
 39 
My experience -- Maybe I’ve been involved in this system way too 40 
long, but my experience has been things don’t happen that quick 41 
and I’m looking to prevent false hope for people. 42 
 43 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  A follow-up question? 44 

 45 
MR. SIMPSON:  I agree with you, Bob, that it’s going to take 46 

time, but anything worth doing right is worth taking the time to 47 
do and you’re talking substantial amounts of money, too, and a 48 
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lot of investment in this information that goes into people’s 1 
lives and so forth.  It’s worth doing right. 2 
 3 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any other questions from the council?  Thank 4 

you, Mr. Zales.  Jim Clements will be followed by Dr. Russ 5 
Nelson. 6 
 7 
MR. JIM CLEMENTS:  I’m Jim Clements from Carrabelle.  I really 8 

wasn’t going to say anything today, but you all know me and I’m 9 
kind of compelled to speak.  I would just like to thank you all 10 
for that chili cook-off last night.  I really enjoyed it.  I 11 
would just maybe ask that next time if you do the chili to wait 12 
until maybe the night before we leave to go home, because 13 
there’s some fellows back there that are really suffering.  In 14 
fact, you need a gas mask to go back there. 15 
 16 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Clements.  Anybody have any 17 

questions? 18 
 19 
MR. SIMPSON:  Did you vote for Number A or did you vote for 20 

Perret? 21 
 22 
MR. CLEMENTS:  I ain’t going to answer that.  I ain’t going 23 

there. 24 
 25 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Clements.  The next speaker 26 

is Dr. Russell Nelson and he’ll be followed by Captain Tom 27 
Becker. 28 
 29 
DR. RUSSELL NELSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I am Russell 30 

Nelson and I’m a fisheries scientist working with the Coastal 31 
Conservation Association.  There’s a lot of things to talk about 32 
today.  I guess I’ll try to begin with what I think is the most 33 
important. 34 
 35 
We received the report from the National Marine Fisheries 36 
Service on the observer data on sea turtles last week and were 37 
able to have a committee meeting.  In my eyes, this is the 38 
single most dramatic collapse of trying to deal with endangered 39 
species that I have seen in my whole career. 40 
 41 
We urge the council and the National Marine Fisheries Service to 42 
do whatever they can as fast as they can to deal with this 43 
problem.  That’s all I’ll say about that.  I think others will 44 
probably follow me. 45 
 46 
In terms of this exempted fishing permit, I’ve dealt with the 47 
South Atlantic Council and the Pacific Council with these issues 48 
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and when they’re brought to those councils, they’re put on the 1 
agenda and not as just if any, as on every agenda, but 2 
specifically they’re brought before a committee and it’s on the 3 
agenda that the committee will discuss it and then it’s put on 4 
the council’s agenda that at this point the council will discuss 5 
and make their comments on it.   6 
 7 
I don’t see that here and I think that you all need to look at 8 
developing a protocol for how to deal with these things, because 9 
I frankly did not anticipate, until earlier this afternoon, that 10 
there was going to be any official council comment or position 11 
taken on this exempted fishing permit. 12 
 13 
I think we have to have a little more notice than just saying 14 
it’s on the agenda because it says if any.  It always says if 15 
any and I haven’t seen one come up before.  I would hope that we 16 
could come up with a regular protocol that allows a full and 17 
transparent viewing, because I frankly haven’t had the time to 18 
look at this thing or see what the implications might be. 19 
 20 
Other than that, I would be happy to rise to the challenge and 21 
this is not a CCA position.  This is just my own response to an 22 
admonishment to come out of the box and think of a better way to 23 
manage red snapper.  I think we could do it.  We could get rid 24 
of IFQs and we could get rid of a whole bunch of other 25 
complications and things. 26 
 27 
Let us just print out a tag, like a tarpon tag in Florida that’s 28 
not reusable, for the entire TAC and on January 1, let’s put all 29 
those tags up for auction.  Maybe could put them on eBay and 30 
we’ll let all those tags be bought by the highest bidders and 31 
then we’ll let those folks do whatever they want with the tags.  32 
They can give them away for Christmas presents or they can catch 33 
fish with them or they can sell them or they can buy fish and 34 
keep fish or they can buy fish and sell fish.   35 
 36 
We have a very simple one-size-fits-all plan that would be a lot 37 
less costly than some of the complications that we’re dealing 38 
with in management today.  I just thought I would throw that out 39 
with a fairly straight face.  I thank you and I would be happy 40 
to answer any questions. 41 
 42 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Dr. Nelson.  We’ve got a question 43 

from Dr. Shipp. 44 
 45 
DR. SHIPP:  Russ, as you know, we were all blindsided by the 46 

longline data.  I just heard about it last week and I think 47 
there’s a strong consensus amongst all council members that we 48 
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need to move as rapidly as we can.  You said do whatever you can 1 
as fast as you can and do you have any specific suggestions? 2 
 3 
DR. NELSON:  I would suggest that this council could take an 4 

emergency action.  I’ve had discussions with Shepherd and with 5 
others in Washington and I’m getting conflicting opinions about 6 
whether an emergency action in a case like this would have to 7 
have an EIS.  I know that this council is probably not going to 8 
act contrary to the legal advice that Shep gives you.                                                9 
 10 
If that’s the case, since there has just been an EIS done for 11 
the last grouper amendment, I would think that certainly by 12 
January that some options to deal with the longline issue could 13 
be included within the framework of that old EIS.  It could be 14 
brought here and you could be in the position to look at some 15 
options to take an emergency action in January. 16 
 17 
That way, you would have six months, renewable for six months.  18 
It would give this council a whole year to come up with a way, a 19 
more permanent solution.  This is much the approach that was 20 
taken up in the Northeast when pelagic longlines were closed out 21 
of the area off of Georges Banks because of sea turtles.  That 22 
area was closed and research ensued and ultimately, it was 23 
reopened when a technological solution was found. 24 
 25 
If you can’t take emergency action today, I would urge that you 26 
schedule it for January and ask that the requisite EIS be 27 
completed in that time.  That’s inside the box. 28 
 29 
MS. VILLERE:  Russell, beyond the eBay idea, do you have any 30 

other ideas that are out of the box in managing the red snapper 31 
problem? 32 
 33 
DR. NELSON:  That’s the only one I came up with this afternoon, 34 

Ms. Villere, but I’ll be happy to give it some thought.  If the 35 
council wants to reopen this whole issue, I suggest we reopen it 36 
from the ground up and rethink the entire management strategy 37 
and not take the current strategy and start breaking it down 38 
into pieces.  If we’re going to be outside the box, let’s go 39 
back to the beginning and think of all the possibilities. 40 
 41 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any other questions?  Thank you, Dr. Nelson.  42 

The next speaker is Captain Tom Becker and he’ll be followed by 43 
Sonny Alawine. 44 
 45 
MR. TOM BECKER:  Good afternoon, council.  I’m glad to be here 46 

to talk for the people from Mississippi, the winner, I guess, of 47 
the chili cook-off and I wonder where the man is.  Did he get 48 
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sick from his own chili?  He’s got indigestion?  That answers 1 
that. 2 
 3 
There’s a couple of issues.  I am the Vice Chair of the Red 4 
Snapper Ad Hoc Panel and I do have something I will talk about 5 
later, but first of all, one of the first items, is I want to 6 
refute a statement made earlier today. 7 
 8 
Omega Seafood would not need to build new capacity to process 9 
more fishmeal to meet increased needs for marine aquaculture.  10 
On page 6 of the 2007 financial statements for Omega Protein, 11 
the company explains that decreased processing capacity from the 12 
hurricanes will, quote, have no effect on the company’s ability 13 
to process in the future, because the company has historically 14 
operated at processing levels substantially below maximum 15 
capacity.  The fact is Omega Protein does not need to build new 16 
capacity to process more fish.  They already have it. 17 
 18 
On the ad hoc issues, the lone vote for no regionalization, 19 
regional management, was cast by I myself.  Talking with the 20 
captains, they did not want anything like this.  The SOS plan 21 
we’re looking at.  We plan to have a meeting with the 22 
charterboats and get this out to find out and let them hash it 23 
out. 24 
 25 
Gary has said he would come over and talk to them person to 26 
person, face to face, and let them hammer on him and get their 27 
opinion on how they feel.  Right now, I have reserves on VMS.  28 
I’ve already discussed a few of those items with Gary on things 29 
that I do.  These are things that are really of concern to us. 30 
 31 
Logbooks, we’ve been in favor of this, whatever way we’ve got to 32 
do it.  We would prefer a call-in versus the VMS, because of the 33 
added expense.  A lot of the smaller boats you’re putting this 34 
electronic type computer or unit in the open.  My boat, no 35 
problem.  I can hide it.  I’ve got an enclosed bridge, but the 36 
little boats are going to have trouble with these things in the 37 
future with saltwater environment. 38 
 39 
I also have a position that I do things that would contradict 40 
using the VMS to track what I’m doing.  I work for the 41 
government on other cases and so that’s another problem.  We’re 42 
all looking at ways we can handle this. 43 
 44 
We are really against a lot of this because of the percentage 45 
that Mississippi is going to get.  I have a letter that I want 46 
to enter into the record concerning the efforts at the last Red 47 
Snapper Ad Hoc Panel.  I want to thank Ms. Kay Williams and Ms. 48 
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Bobbi Walker for their efforts. 1 
 2 
There was a lot of issues that you know were very controversial 3 
and it does raise the temperature in the room quite 4 
substantially at times, but there was never a hurt in the 5 
proceeds of the meeting.  Thank you. 6 
 7 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Captain Becker.  Are there any 8 

questions from the council?  If not, if you will provide those 9 
to our staff, we would be appreciative of it.  The next speaker 10 
is Sonny Alawine and he’ll be followed by Skipper Thierry. 11 
 12 
MR. SONNY ALAWINE:  I’m Sonny Alawine and I’m the captain of the 13 

Summer Breeze Charterboat out of Orange Beach, Alabama.  It’s 14 
actually Zeke’s Marina.  I’ve been involved in commercial 15 
fishing and mostly charter fishing, just everything to do with 16 
it, for over twenty years. 17 
 18 
I just had a few comments I wanted to make.  Back to the data 19 
and all of that, I don’t understand, like the lady brought up 20 
earlier, anything that comes up on any of your waves that you 21 
collect to show that effort has increased, no matter how bizarre 22 
it is, you cram that down our throat on everything and there 23 
ain’t no -- 24 
 25 
The marina I fish out of in Orange Beach, the largest 26 
charterboat marina in the State of Alabama, and I promise you to 27 
a tee there is not a boat in that marina that fishes in that 28 
Gulf for anything that business has not been off by at least a 29 
minimum of 30 percent since Hurricane Ivan. 30 
 31 
That didn’t just happen this year.  That’s been going on since 32 
Hurricane Ivan.  We finally almost had a good season going and 33 
then all these newer regulations got on us and then this economy 34 
went to hell in a hand basket and there’s got to be some way you 35 
all can figure out, the way you do your data and show effort, 36 
that you can show that the effort has decreased, on the red 37 
snapper in particular. 38 
 39 
You’ve got that many boats that everybody -- Like I say, it’s 40 
everybody, to a tee, whose business is down anywhere from 25 to 41 
35 or 40 percent.  There’s got to be some way you can show that 42 
and give us a few days back. 43 
 44 
I also would like to comment on the deal with the grouper IFQs 45 
for the commercial fishing boats.  I think it’s absolutely 46 
wrong, because what you’re going to do with that -- The grouper 47 
move around after hurricanes and such, even worse than the red 48 
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snapper do.  You’ll have the same situation like we have right 1 
now with the guys down around Clearwater catching all these 2 
snappers and throwing them back, good fish, dead, floating off.  3 
Nobody is getting any use out of them and you’re wasting the 4 
resource. 5 
 6 
The guys down there with the longlines and all that get all 7 
those IFQs on the grouper and we have a storm and it pushes 8 
grouper in this end of the Gulf everywhere and Donnie and then 9 
go out there fishing and they ain’t even fishing for a grouper, 10 
but if that’s what they’re catching, they’re going to be killing 11 
them and throwing them overboard and wasting a resource again, 12 
because you’re not going to give them enough -- Just the heck 13 
with them IFQs on that. 14 
 15 
Also, I would just like to say mainly do not -- I am very much 16 
against be separated from the other recreational fishermen and 17 
the main reason is I think the guys that are trying to come up 18 
with something new have a grand idea and I understand their 19 
feelings in all of this.  Nothing has worked that we’ve tried so 20 
far, but I think you need to bear in mind, guys, that usually 21 
when you get culled from a herd, it’s to either be castrated or 22 
eliminated and if we get separated -- I’ve been coming to these 23 
things for twenty years and that’s what happens. 24 
 25 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Alawine.  Could you bring it 26 

to a close? 27 
 28 
MR. ALAWINE:  Ask the shrimping industry and they had billions 29 

of dollars and they got culled from the herd and they’re out of 30 
business. 31 
 32 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Are there any questions from the council? 33 

 34 
MS. WALKER:  Sonny, thanks for being here.  We were told 35 

yesterday that the average size of red snapper has increased 36 
dramatically and, Dr. Crabtree, you’re going to have to help me 37 
here.  I think that the average was -- Was it 4.8 pounds is what 38 
we’re saying the average weight is across the Gulf?  Sonny, what 39 
I want to hear from you is have you noticed an increase in sizes 40 
of red snapper that you caught this year? 41 
 42 
MR. ALAWINE:  Not in particular.  The biggest thing is just the 43 

number of them.  You can catch them in state waters of Alabama 44 
and only go three miles and you can find a piece of metal 45 
conduit pipe laying on the bottom in twenty foot of water and if 46 
it’s been laying there over a week, there’s red snapper on it.  47 
Of course, there ain’t none out here, but as far as size goes, I 48 
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would say the average size is -- That would probably be close, 1 
probably four pounds to -- I wouldn’t think that would be that 2 
wrong, four to five-pound range.  You’re going to catch a lot of 3 
smaller fish, but you catch a lot of bigger fish, too.  That’s 4 
probably pretty accurate would be my estimation. 5 
 6 
DR. CRABTREE:  The survey shows that -- This isn’t the average 7 

size of the fish caught.  It’s the average size of the fish 8 
brought to the dock and they increased by about 25 percent.  9 
Also, you made some comments about effort and you were saying 10 
that charterboat effort is down by around 30 percent? 11 
 12 
MR. ALAWINE:  It’s got to be 30 percent.  I know ours is and we 13 

fish probably, out of our particular dock, probably more than 14 
anybody there, except for Big Bobby Walker’s boat and the 15 
headboat that’s there. 16 
 17 
DR. CRABTREE:  The survey shows that for Wave 4, which would be 18 

July and August, that charterboat effort was down by about 30 19 
percent from 2007 to 2008.  It’s showing pretty much what you’re 20 
saying. 21 
 22 
MR. ALAWINE:  What I was asking is why in the world can’t that 23 

be figured into all of this somehow? 24 
 25 
DR. CRABTREE:  That will be figured into it when we get all the 26 

data and we figure it all up. 27 
 28 
MR. ALAWINE:  It needs to be, because it’s got to be off 29 

everywhere, because it is off, off in our neck of the woods. 30 
 31 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you.  Any other questions?  The next 32 

speaker is Skipper Thierry and he’ll be followed by Mike 33 
Thierry.  Mike Thierry will be up next. 34 
 35 
MR. SKIPPER THIERRY:  Thank you.  I’m Skipper Thierry and I’m a 36 

second generation charter/headboat operator out of Dauphin 37 
Island.  I’ve made my living charter fishing for the last eight 38 
years, pretty much my whole career.  It’s all I’ve ever done.   39 
 40 
I had a few more comments about the effort.  Just in our little 41 
marina on Dauphin Island, which is the only marina out of 42 
Dauphin Island, in 2005, there were fourteen full-time 43 
charterboats fishing for red snapper and in 2008, there were 44 
five. 45 
 46 
Just talking to the five boats, there will most likely be fewer 47 
than five in 2009 that survive to the next season.  Like Sonny 48 
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was saying, it’s not a local problem.  It’s Gulf-wide and effort 1 
is way down. 2 
 3 
I haven’t heard this come up, but I would like to see a buyout 4 
program explored for the charter/headboat industry, as so many 5 
operators are in desperate situations with the overregulation 6 
and the slow economy.  This would reduce effort to give people 7 
relief.  We’re just being unnecessarily regulated out of 8 
business. 9 
 10 
I would like to support state-by-state management of red 11 
snapper, as the Gulf of Mexico is very diverse and different 12 
areas have different needs, such as seasonal differences.  Texas 13 
likes to fish in the winter, or would like to, and there’s 14 
different discard rates for the depths of water fished off of 15 
different states and state waters are different distances from 16 
shore. 17 
 18 
Also, each state’s dependence on the red snapper fishery -- 19 
Alabama is very dependent on the red snapper, where other states 20 
have other species that are more readily available or they’re 21 
more known for, like Louisiana for tuna and Florida for grouper.  22 
Alabama is known for red snapper.  That’s been our bread and 23 
butter as long as anybody can remember. 24 
 25 
No Gulf fisherman I’ve talked to has ever seen the quantity or 26 
size of red snapper in the Gulf that there are right now.  27 
There’s so many red snapper that it’s difficult to fish for 28 
other species.  Where we could used to catch -- Reefs where 29 
we’ve always catch vermilion snapper and triggerfish, they’ve 30 
been taken over by red snapper and it’s very difficult to catch 31 
them.  They’re the most abundant species ten times over and yet, 32 
for some reason, they’re the most heavily regulated. 33 
 34 
I could count on one hand the number of times I’ve caught my 35 
limit of vermilion snapper or triggerfish, which is twenty.  36 
It’s too liberal for the number of fish, but I’ve caught my 37 
limit of red snapper 95 percent of the time I’ve been fishing, 38 
out of 1,500 days in my career.  I don’t know how many days, but 39 
a lot. 40 
 41 
Something is terribly wrong with this picture.  I don’t know the 42 
agenda, but I don’t feel that it has anything to do with the 43 
abundance of red snapper and that’s all I have to say. 44 
 45 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you.  Are there any questions? 46 

 47 
MS. WALKER:  Thanks, Skipper, for coming.  You and Summer grew 48 
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up together and I know you grew up on the backend of your 1 
daddy’s boat.  Have you ever seen the number of red snapper 2 
since you were a kid, and I know you started fishing with your 3 
dad probably when you were about four or five, that you’re 4 
seeing now? 5 
 6 
MR. S. THIERRY:  No, ma’am.  They’re closing into shore.  7 

They’re easier to catch.  We’ve caught them trying to catch 8 
bait, fishing with little jigs for hard tails around reefs, you 9 
catch them.  Fishing for king mackerel, you catch them.  Fishing 10 
for amberjack, you catch them.  It’s unbelievable how the stock 11 
has exploded in the last couple of years. 12 
 13 
MS. WALKER:  What’s happening to those that you’re having to 14 

release? 15 
 16 
MS. S. THIERRY:  It depends on how deep water you’re fishing in.  17 

If you’re fishing in close, they’re going to live and if you’re 18 
fishing in 300 feet of water, they’re not.  Thank you. 19 
 20 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any other questions?  Thank you.  Mike 21 

Thierry will be followed by Troy Frady. 22 
 23 
MR. MIKE THIERRY:  I’m Mike Thierry from Dauphin Island, 24 

Alabama.  I’ve been charter/headboat fishing for over forty 25 
years in the Gulf of Mexico.  I’m on the Recreational Red 26 
Snapper Advisory Panel.   27 
 28 
I strongly feel that effort on red snapper for this year is way 29 
down and if National Marine Fisheries data does not show this, 30 
then this only proves how bad their data is.  My business is 31 
down over 25 percent and also on the days that I’m out there, I 32 
see very few small boats with other recreational fishermen than 33 
I have in years past. 34 
 35 
Talking with other fishermen, they feel the same way, that the 36 
unjust regulations on fishing, the price of fuel, and the 37 
overall dramatic downturn in the economy are the reasons people 38 
are fishing less. 39 
 40 
I talked with our marina manager this morning and he stated that 41 
out of the marina, which the marina is full, there’s 225 boats.  42 
Less than 10 percent of these boats fish in the Gulf.  Out of 43 
the 10 percent, he said maybe there’s four or five that fish for 44 
red snapper. 45 
 46 
In the past, the marina has averaged selling a little over 47 
300,000 gallons of diesel fuel a year.  He said that he probably 48 
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won’t sell 200,000 this year.  His ice, bait, and tackle sales 1 
are down about 25 percent.  In talking with people, this seems 2 
to be the trend Gulf-wide. 3 
 4 
I believe managing red snapper by states could help us.  I would 5 
like to look at it and I would like to see what we get for it.  6 
Everybody has got different needs.  In Alabama, we fish in 7 
shallower water and we have less mortality, I feel like, than a 8 
lot of areas and different times of the year would be better for 9 
different states.  I would like to see each state be able to 10 
tailor what they need for that state.  That seems to better. 11 
 12 
On accountability, which is coming up next year, I feel very 13 
strong that if we are going to be held accountable for staying 14 
within our quota than the National Marine Fisheries Service must 15 
come up with better data and not use data that has already been 16 
peer reviewed and was deemed fatally flawed. 17 
 18 
We must have good data before we make decisions that adversely 19 
affect people who are depending on this fishery for their 20 
living.  I would like to see the council consider a buyout 21 
program for people in the for-hire red snapper industry.  This 22 
would help fishermen in getting out of industry without 23 
devastating them financially. 24 
 25 
A buyout would also help reduce effort in the for-hire industry.  26 
Just off the top of my head, I really don’t understand why the 27 
most abundant species of fish in the Gulf of Mexico, the red 28 
snapper, is the most regulated.  We had a sixty-day season with 29 
a two fish bag limit and that’s pretty much all we can catch 30 
now, is red snapper. 31 
 32 
In years past, we used to catch a lot of triggerfish and 33 
vermilion.  I don’t think it’s because they’re not there, but 34 
it’s just the red snapper.  You can’t catch them for all the red 35 
snapper. 36 
 37 
The SOS plan, I don’t know whether I’m for it or against it.  I 38 
would like to look at it and I would like to see what it will 39 
get for us, what we’ll end up getting.  The bottom line, folks, 40 
is fishermen need a longer season and a little bit more bag 41 
limit.  The fish are doing fine, but the fishermen are hurting 42 
badly and about to become extinct.  Thank you. 43 
 44 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Thierry.  Do we have any 45 

questions? 46 
 47 
MS. WALKER:  Thanks, Mike.  I appreciate you coming here today 48 
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and I have two questions.  You talked about the buyout and I 1 
know that was one of the recommendations that came out of the 2 
AP.  When you say buyout, are you saying purchase, and this is 3 
just for yourself, purchase the permits and the vessels so that 4 
the business is gone?  Is that what you would support? 5 
 6 
MR. M. THIERRY:  That’s right.  Yes, ma’am. 7 
 8 
MS. WALKER:  You and I have talked about this many times, but 9 

how can we require accountability in the data?  Do you have any 10 
ideas on what we as a council could do as far as -- We sit here 11 
at almost every meeting and we listen to the people that come up 12 
here and they tell us that -- It’s the same old story.  They say 13 
the fish are out there and you can’t understand why you can’t 14 
catch the fish. 15 
 16 
I’m hearing rumors now that people are just ignoring the law and 17 
they’re just going out there and fishing anyway and saying come 18 
catch me, but do you have any recommendations for us on how we 19 
could make the data accountable so that the fishermen could have 20 
some trust in it? 21 
 22 
MR. M. THIERRY:  No, ma’am.  At the ad hoc deal, we worked on 23 

that and I’m sorry.  I guess I don’t know.  I guess logbooks, 24 
but I don’t see how that’s going to work on a small boat.  On my 25 
boat, it would be fine.  It would be very hard on a small boat, 26 
wet and beaten.  Electronics, you come off a six-foot wave and 27 
it jars you.  It’s going to hurt the electronics.  I don’t know. 28 
 29 
I know we’re in a down economy where we’re not going to have the 30 
resources here that we’ve had in the past.  We’ve never had 31 
enough and I can understand that.  You’ve got appropriations.  I 32 
don’t know.  I think we just have to maybe be just not quite so 33 
to the letter on everything.  Give us a little bit of leeway on 34 
it, where we can survive, because we don’t know. 35 
 36 
I don’t think anybody in this room will sit here and say this is 37 
a fact and this is carved in stone and this is what it is.  38 
Observers on boats -- How many of you folks on this council have 39 
been red snapper fishing this year?  Raise your hand, please.  40 
Three.  Maybe more people need to go red snapper fishing and see 41 
what’s out there and maybe it would help. 42 
 43 
I could write all kinds of nice numbers and data and all this 44 
stuff.  Maybe more hands-on type of management, Miss Bobbi, 45 
instead of just the data.  Observers would be fine.  At the ad 46 
hoc deal, we’ve asked for that.  We would like to see that.  47 
We’ve got nothing to hide. 48 
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 1 
MS. WALKER:  One more question.  When you say split up the 2 

management in the Gulf by states, do you feel that if we are 3 
managing then five areas separately that we are going to be able 4 
to account for the fish better in these smaller areas? 5 
 6 
MR. M. THIERRY:  I would think so.  I would think that when it 7 

comes in that you’re going to have more of a stake in it.  I 8 
would have more of a stake in it.  I want to see what we’re 9 
going to get in the State of Alabama.  I’m going to take more 10 
pride in it.  I feel like I -- I hate to say I own it, but I’ve 11 
got more of a stake in it that way.  I think in Alabama I would 12 
like to see our season open up the first of April and get it 13 
before hurricane season.  Hurricane seasons come and you have no 14 
marina and you have no base to operate out of and you can’t get 15 
ice, bait, and fuel. 16 
 17 
I’ve heard guys in Texas -- Please don’t quote me on it, but 18 
they say they would rather have a winter fishery or maybe a 19 
state would want weekends, a Thanksgiving holiday, over 20 
Christmas when they can make a living.  It’s very hard to make a 21 
living.  I’ve never considered selling my boat, but I’m 22 
considering it now and I’ve been doing it over forty years.  23 
It’s not worth it anymore and it’s a shame.  There’s more fish 24 
than what there’s ever been, way more. 25 
 26 
I’ve got pictures back when I was twenty years old and we would 27 
hang our fish up on nails up on the boat.  There would be 28 
stringers of fish like this and we were proud of them and they 29 
were great, but now, man, we would have maybe one or two over 30 
ten-pound fish in there and now, you can pretty much go out 31 
there and catch what you want right now. 32 
 33 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Thierry.  Are there any other 34 

questions? 35 
 36 
MR. MINTON:  Mike, the first part of your presentation, you 37 

talked about numbers at the marina and could you restate those, 38 
please, numbers of boats and numbers that were fishing for 39 
snapper, based on your conversation with the operator there? 40 
 41 
MR. M. THIERRY:  Tim, right.  He said I’ve got videos where I 42 

put boats over every day and he said I’ve got video confirmation 43 
if anybody would like to see this. 44 
 45 
MR. MINTON:  What were the numbers?  You said two-hundred-and-46 

something boats were there. 47 
 48 



 64 

MR. M. THIERRY:  225 boats, yes, sir. 1 

 2 
MR. MINTON:  How many were going snapper fishing? 3 

 4 
MR. M. THIERRY:  There’s less than 10 percent that went in the 5 

Gulf, Gulf fishing.  They took fuel and such as that and he said 6 
out of those 10 percent of the 225 boats, there was four or five 7 
that went red snapper fishing.  It’s not worth it to go anymore 8 
for two fish and the price of fuel.  It’s just not.  We hear it 9 
on the phone everyday when people call our house and want to 10 
book a trip.  Is red snapper in?  No.  Well, we’re going to wait 11 
until it’s in or how many is the limit now?  Two.  That sure 12 
ain’t worth us coming down there from Georgia and what happened?  13 
Well, that’s what’s happening in the industry. 14 
 15 
MR. PEARCE:  I appreciate you asking the question of how many 16 

people went snapper fishing.  I didn’t have any problem hooking 17 
snapper when I went fishing.  The problem I had was getting them 18 
to the surface, because the blacknose shark would take them off 19 
behind the head before I got them up. 20 
 21 
MR. M. THIERRY:  After a storm or something you’ll have -- We 22 

don’t seem to have that problem very often and stuff.  Thank 23 
you. 24 
 25 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Thierry.  Troy Frady and 26 

he’ll be followed by Donald Waters. 27 
 28 
MR. TROY FRADY:  Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen.  I’m Troy 29 

Frady and I own Distraction Charters in Orange Beach, Alabama.  30 
I operate out of Zeke’s Marina.  I’ve been in business six 31 
years.  I came from Corporate America thinking I was going to 32 
have a better life when I stepped into what they call the 33 
fishing industry now.  Boy, was I surprised. 34 
 35 
I’ve been attending these meetings now I guess going on five 36 
years and it seems like we don’t ever get anywhere.  It seems 37 
like we keep going in a big circle, I hear a big quagmire, that 38 
we can’t get out of.  I’ve listened to two different sets of 39 
people here talk about different ways we should go and I’ve 40 
always been taught you can’t do the same thing over and over 41 
again and expect different results. 42 
 43 
I really believe that this past year, even though I had a 44 
wonderful year, it was more because I changed.  I changed the 45 
way I did business and I marketed myself differently.  I 46 
actually have a conservation message on my website and my 47 
business and I do promote conservation, even though most of the 48 
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fish I do catch are red snapper. 1 
 2 
Business is good, but I find it getting harder and harder.  3 
There are boats out here who specialize in red snapper fishing 4 
and this issue seems to be about red snapper, red snapper, red 5 
snapper.  Like I said, gentlemen, I’m tired of hearing about the 6 
red snapper.  I think we need to get off our tails and actually 7 
provide a solution to what we’re talking about. 8 
 9 
I’m sure you all get sick and tired of arguing about the same 10 
thing and listening to different sides saying you’re putting me 11 
out of business and fuel prices are high, but this year was a 12 
little bit different.  I ran 37 percent fewer trips, but my 13 
revenue was 15 percent higher than I ever have, but because of 14 
the red snapper issue, the price of red snapper now has gone 15 
through the roof for me.  I just get a premium value for the red 16 
snapper.  Thank you. 17 
 18 
It’s a little bit different than what a lot of people are 19 
saying, but it’s all how you approach it.  Now, I’ve heard the 20 
SOS plan here and I don’t quite understand all aspects of it, 21 
but it’s a start.  I do know the sixty-four days that we had 22 
this year kind of limit you and they tie your hands to when 23 
you’ve got to run and when you don’t have to run. 24 
 25 
I propose in addition to like the SOS plan is keep looking at 26 
the SOS plan and try to think outside the box, as Dr. Crabtree 27 
said, but give us like a duck stamp.  Give us a red snapper 28 
stamp and give us a way to manage ourselves.  Give us a coupon 29 
that has a sticker and you do a daily fishing report and you 30 
have a control number that you call in and activate before you 31 
go fishing or whenever you harvest a red snapper. 32 
 33 
You put that little sticker on that control sheet and then you 34 
control those days.  You can do it that way or you can do it 35 
through e-commerce.  I don’t think the industry can withstand 36 
everyone having to absorb the cost of a vessel monitoring 37 
system, but I think there are ways you can do it. 38 
 39 
The Delta Waterfowl has been very successful managing the duck 40 
populations and actually, the price of duck hunting has gone up 41 
because of it, because they’re actually managing the process.  42 
If we look at what we’re doing and start becoming proactive in 43 
where we want to go, I think we’re on the right track, at least 44 
looking and thinking outside the box. 45 
 46 
Separating the sectors, you’ve got commercial, 47 
recreational/charterboat, all I care about is getting good data 48 
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for you guys and obtaining good data, trying to get good data, 1 
so we can eventually get our TAC back up. 2 
 3 
If it takes separating the recreational sector from the 4 
charterboat sector, to where we get an accurate amount so we can 5 
start participating like the commercial boats have and getting 6 
good data, so we stop talking about these issues eventually -- 7 
It would be nice to come here and not do anything, but we could 8 
actually come up with a plan. 9 
 10 
I’m not sure I understand all about this, but I do know that 11 
recreational could be separated down into two sectors, as long 12 
as the TAC could be manageable.  I would be willing as a 13 
charterboat to contribute data. 14 
 15 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Could you wrap up your testimony?  Are there 16 

any questions? 17 
 18 
DR. CRABTREE:  You mentioned the problem with affording the cost 19 

of VMS.  At least in recent years, there’s been a reimbursement 20 
program for VMS units and so when we -- For example, when we 21 
required them on the commercial reef fish boats, they could 22 
submit and get reimbursed for the purchase cost of the VMS, 23 
which is around a little over $3,000. 24 
 25 
All they were out of pocket was the installation costs and then 26 
you have to pay a monthly fee.  Now, I don’t know if Congress 27 
will continue to appropriate those funds, but at least in recent 28 
years there has been a reimbursement program for that and so you 29 
wouldn’t have to shoulder the cost of the units. 30 
 31 
MR. FRADY:  Dr. Crabtree, I understand that the vessel 32 

monitoring system is a part of the separation of the 33 
recreational sector.  It’s a step.  The problem is what’s good 34 
for one ought to be good for all.  I don’t believe the -- You’ve 35 
got a lot of guys that have what we call monkey boats who have 36 
been affected by the economy this year. 37 
 38 
I don’t see how -- I understand you’re wanting to get the data, 39 
but I’m not so sure the vessel monitoring system is a way to go.  40 
The taxpayers of this country don’t need to be reimbursing us 41 
for something we could manage through a telephone system or an 42 
e-commerce system at this point in time without saying how are 43 
we going to manage the recreational sector, the people who 44 
actually operate their monkey boat who are still out of control? 45 
 46 
The ultimate goal is to secure our TAC and get our TAC limits 47 
back up and let the charterboats secure a percentage of the 48 
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recreational TAC and I understand kind of what you’re saying, 1 
but I want to do what’s best with the least burden on the 2 
taxpayer, but also give you the best information, so we don’t 3 
have to rely necessarily on the MRFSS study.  I want to make 4 
sure we get good input in, to where we’re not here five years 5 
from now saying we still haven’t solved the problem. 6 
 7 
DR. CRABTREE:  I think all of us on the council will agree with 8 

you about those things.  The council certainly hasn’t made any 9 
decision about whether VMS is the way to go or not, but it’s an 10 
option and something that we ought to talk about and think 11 
about.  I appreciate your comments. 12 
 13 
MS. WALKER:  Troy, before you go, I want to make sure that you 14 

understood that Dr. Crabtree wasn’t saying that the federal 15 
government will pay for the VMS.  He was just telling you they 16 
have paid for the commercial in the past, but there’s no 17 
guarantee that they’ll pay again.  I didn’t want you taking that 18 
idea off. 19 
 20 
MR. FRADY:  Thank you, but I just don’t want to be a burden to 21 

anyone.  I think there’s an easier way to do it where we can 22 
manage this system, because it takes money to manage the system.  23 
All we’ve got to do is manage by numbers.  The e-commerce 24 
system, like they do on the west coast with the salmon, having a 25 
trip number, a trip tag number, would be a way to do it and 26 
monitor it and sell the snapper permits or the snapper tags or 27 
the stamp for a fee to help fund this stuff.  Thank you. 28 
 29 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you.  This is the last card, Donald 30 

Waters. 31 
 32 
MR. DONALD WATERS:  Good afternoon.  My name is Donald Waters, 33 

owner/operator of the Fishing Vessel Hustler, member of the 34 
Recreational AP Panel.  I woke up this morning to see my 35 
computer lit up with thirty to forty emails from various sectors 36 
and accusing me of throwing mud and that’s why I provided you 37 
all with these this afternoon.   38 
 39 
If telling the truth is throwing mud, be prepared for some mud 40 
throwing, but I am really happy that everybody is taking the 41 
high road and I plan to do the same.  I’ve heard some very good 42 
testimony here this afternoon from various sectors, some people 43 
wanting to get out of the box and some people wanting to 44 
entertain other ideas.  I applaud them for that, whether how far 45 
their ideas will go. 46 
 47 
I’m sure they’re asking this council for leadership on how far 48 
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they can carry their ideas.  I’m sure a lot of the ideas is not 1 
going to go as far as they think.  There’s going to come dead 2 
ends to some of them and then when they see the options and 3 
what’s going to happen, there’s going to be, but the open 4 
mindedness is good to me. 5 
 6 
I also agree with Mr. Zales that there’s definitely a reduction 7 
in effort in the Gulf and I’m sure that he would also say that 8 
they’ve seen less commercial boats out there this year than 9 
they’ve seen.  They’ve had less interaction with the commercial 10 
boats, little boats.  There’s a reduction for everybody.  We’ve 11 
got less fish to catch. 12 
 13 
I think the increase in effort is because of better data 14 
collection.  I’ve always said this, that I think we’ve catching 15 
more fish than is being counted and I think we’re going to prove 16 
that just by counting the fish.  There’s no doubt that there’s 17 
less fish coming out of the water.  I just think we’re 18 
intercepting and counting more of them. 19 
 20 
I think that is an answer to some of the things that we have.  I 21 
would love to see, honestly, how many fish has been coming out 22 
of the water and really have a true number, so that we could 23 
start with a true TAC that could provide everybody with a good 24 
living and I would like to see everybody be able to work 25 
together. 26 
 27 
The only thing that concerns me is this allocation and 28 
reallocation and I want to know that I would like to take the 29 
word “commercial allocation” and change that to “consumer 30 
allocation”, because these fish go to 99 percent of the people 31 
that do not go recreationally fishing in a year.  Thank you. 32 
 33 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Donnie.  Any questions from the 34 

council?  If not, I would like to thank all of our participants, 35 
those who have testified today and the council.  For the last 36 
couple of hours, I think we’ve had a good exchange.   37 
 38 
We’ve had some excellent ideas presented and we have our 39 
homework to do over the next several months.  We’re going to 40 
take about a ten-minute break and we’ll come back and start with 41 
the Ad Hoc Allocation Committee and then move to Reef Fish, 42 
Joint SSC Selection, and the Budget and Personnel.  Let’s take a 43 
ten-minute break. 44 
 45 
(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 46 
 47 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Ms. Morris, are you ready? 48 
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 1 
AD HOC ALLOCATION COMMITTEE REPORT 2 

 3 
MS. MORRIS:  Yes, thank you, Mr. Chairman.  This is the 4 

committee report at Tab F from the Ad Hoc Allocation Committee.  5 
I recommend that if you’re following along to this report that 6 
you might want to also open Tab F-3 from the regular background 7 
materials, because we might need to compare some things back and 8 
forth. 9 
 10 
The agenda was adopted as written.  Minutes of the August 12, 11 
2008 meeting were approved as written.  Ms. Morris indicated 12 
that revised draft principles and guidelines were included in 13 
Tab F, Number 3.  In discussing the principles for allocation, 14 
committee members indicated that the section providing 15 
conservation principles was redundant and suggested its 16 
deletion.  17 
 18 
Committee members subsequently discussed the guidelines for 19 
allocation.  The committee reviewed each guideline and either 20 
offered revisions to the guideline or suggested its deletion 21 
from the list.  The committee indicated that, rather than 22 
revisiting each principle and guideline during full council, its 23 
preferred approach would be to recommend to the council the 24 
entire document, including the set of principles and guidelines. 25 
 26 
Principles and guidelines as revised by the committee are 27 
included in this report.  Motions relative to individual 28 
principles and guidelines are also included in this report.  The 29 
committee recommends, and I so move, that the council adopts the 30 
principles and guidelines for allocation included in this 31 
report.  32 

 33 
Then if you scroll or page further on in the report, starting on 34 
page 3 are the draft principles for allocation with a little bit 35 
of a preamble and then on page 5 are draft guidelines for 36 
allocation and then on page 6 are suggested methods for 37 
determining allocation or reallocation. 38 
 39 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 40 
discussion?  Hearing none, all those in favor of the motion say 41 
aye; opposed same sign.  Let the record show that there was one 42 
in opposition, Ms. Williams.  The motion carries.  Go ahead, Ms. 43 

Morris. 44 
 45 
MS. MORRIS:  Ms. Morris read the revised charge to the Ad Hoc 46 

Allocation Committee and inquired about the next steps to be 47 
taken by the committee.  Committee members indicated that, 48 



 70 

should the council approve the principles and guidelines 1 
recommended by the committee, it may be inferred that no 2 
additional work was needed from the committee at this time.   3 
 4 
Committee members further indicated that the council could 5 
assign additional tasks to the committee.  For example, the 6 
committee could be requested to further evaluate the potential 7 
use of market-based approaches in allocation.   8 
 9 
Committee members noted that, as a matter of principle, 10 
management actions addressing the allocation of a specific 11 
species needed to be initiated by the appropriate management 12 
committee, e.g., the reconsideration of interim grouper 13 
allocations should be initiated by the Reef Fish Committee.  In 14 
conclusion, the committee is looking for direction from the 15 
council as to what issues it should address next.  16 
 17 
The committee discussed alternative approaches for the future 18 
inclusion of these principles and guidelines for allocation in 19 
the council process.  Four options were discussed.  Principles 20 
and guidelines could be added to the SOPPs, included in a 21 
generic framework action, adopted as council policy, added as 22 
amendments to relevant fishery management plans. 23 
 24 
The committee decided to present these options to the council 25 
and ask for guidance.  The committee discussed the pros and cons 26 
of these options.  Committee members asked about the timing of 27 
General Counsel review.  Adopting guidelines and principles 28 
through an FMP or framework would follow our normal process of 29 
public review and comment and General Counsel review.  General 30 
Counsel review of SOPPs changes would have a longer lead time.  31 
 32 
In other business, Ms. Morris indicated that the information on 33 
fishing communities requested at the last meeting was supplied 34 
in Tab F, Number 5.  This concludes my report. 35 
 36 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Ms. Morris.  Any other comments 37 

on this committee report? 38 
 39 
MR. GILL:  One of the issues left open was where the principles 40 

and guidelines for allocation ought to go and as she noted, 41 
there was four possible places.  My recollection was that we did 42 
not choose any and we were going to discuss that at council and 43 
I would like to bring that up and I have a motion to make if we 44 
get that far.  I would like to throw it open for council 45 
discussion on preference where they think it ought to be, so we 46 
can direct it and make it happen. 47 
 48 
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CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Do you want to go ahead and make your motion 1 

and then we’ll have something to discuss? 2 
 3 
MR. RIECHERS:  This may be contrary to Mr. Gill’s motion, but 4 

since he wanted a little discussion, I will go ahead and give 5 
some.  I don’t know what his motion is going to be.  After 6 
thinking about our committee meeting and kind of going back over 7 
the options that we had there, it seemed as if when we had the 8 
discussions in committee that it really didn’t fit as a regular 9 
what we would normally consider and even though the word is 10 
“policy” in the SOPPs, it really was a different kind of policy. 11 
 12 
It doesn’t seem like we really wanted to go down a generic 13 
framework action, because it doesn’t seem like it fits that mode 14 
and would be a lot of work to have what is kind of just a 15 
guidance document. 16 
 17 
Then obviously these will be included in the FMPs if we start to 18 
use this in an FMP.  It really seems to me it’s really just a 19 
council policy.  It seems to me it kind of fits as a basic 20 
policy that we’ve kind of just said we’re going to use these 21 
kinds of tools when we go to do this type of thing.  It sounds 22 
as if by Mr. Gill’s reaction or it looks as if by Mr. Gill’s 23 
reaction that that may have been his motion.  I will defer to 24 
him now and see if he would like to make that motion. 25 
 26 
MR. GILL:  Thank you, Robin, because that’s precisely my 27 

thought.  I had come to the same conclusion and we have policies 28 
on various diverse subjects and my view is that this does fit 29 
best, in order to be continued forward, as a council policy.  30 
Therefore, I move that we adopt the principles and guidelines 31 
for allocation as a council policy document. 32 

 33 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Gill.  Do we have a second?  34 

Thank you, Ms. Morris.  It’s open for discussion. 35 
 36 
MS. MORRIS:  It doesn’t seem like it’s anything more than the 37 

motion we just passed.  It’s just saying that it answers this 38 
question that the committee posed, like where should it set, but 39 
it seems like we just accepted the principles and guidelines and 40 
suggested methods and so this just clarifies that it doesn’t 41 
need to go into some other framework or FMP action and it just 42 
stands as policy. 43 
 44 
MS. WALKER:  I would just ask Shep’s opinion of this.  I 45 

remember some conversation that we had during the committee, 46 
where I thought he made the recommendation that we do it in an 47 
amendment and are you okay with this? 48 
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 1 
MR. GRIMES:  Actually, I thought -- I could be wrong on this, 2 

but I thought I said it seemed to be appropriate for a policy 3 
document, that once you implement it and it’s put into play in 4 
any specific action, that action is going to be reviewed and it 5 
just seemed to me that policy was more appropriate, because it 6 
wouldn’t absolutely bind you, but it was something that would 7 
guide all your decisions generically from FMP to FMP. 8 
 9 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any other questions or comments or 10 

discussion relative to the motion?  Are you ready to vote?  The 11 
motion is to adopt the principles and guidelines for allocation 12 
as a council policy document.  All those in favor say aye; all 13 
opposed like sign.  Ms. Williams is opposed. 14 
 15 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I have to oppose it just on principles. 16 

 17 
MS. MORRIS:  The other question the committee had for the 18 

council is do you want us to work on anything else or is our ad 19 
hoc mission completed?  It seems like we’ve completed our charge 20 
and the one idea that the committee had during the meeting was 21 
that if you wanted us to, we could continue working on the 22 
market-based approaches to allocation, sort of developing that 23 
idea a little bit more, but we’re looking for direction from the 24 
council. 25 
 26 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  What’s the council’s desire?  Is there any 27 

comment? 28 
 29 
MR. GILL:  I don’t know if this will gain any traction, but one 30 

thought that I had was -- It may have its own set of 31 
difficulties, but one thing that’s going to have to be done 32 
during any allocation is figuring out what the method is that 33 
applies to the fishery in question. 34 
 35 
Perhaps as a step to help in that direction, recognizing that it 36 
probably won’t be universally applicable, is take the four 37 
methods and see if there’s a consistency on a preferred 38 
alternative, if that method is used.  For example, if market-39 
based allocation was considered appropriate for the fishery, the 40 
preferred one might be (ii)(b) or (i)(b) or something, but try 41 
to filter it down a little bit to give future folks some 42 
consideration that when we developed these things we thought 43 
that under that method would be the most appropriate. 44 
 45 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any other comments? 46 

 47 
MR. RIECHERS:  Let me go ahead and just -- I think we really 48 
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need to continue with the work of that committee.  I think the 1 
committee was formed after 30A and 30B.  I think we need to 2 
continue going down this road to look at these allocations. 3 
 4 
We need to look at those critical species where we have some 5 
allocation questions that have been on the table in the past.  6 
We need to look at those different and various options that we 7 
outlined here.  It’s not that we’re going to reallocate every 8 
one of them, but we’ve kind of made a commitment to folks that 9 
we were going to take a look at this and what we’ve done so far 10 
is just create the guidelines as to which we’re going to do that 11 
under. 12 
 13 
We’ve kind of agreed on a generic set of guidelines and so I 14 
think we need to move forward.  I would say that we probably 15 
ought to revise the charge in a way that allows us to go ahead 16 
and continue that work.   17 
 18 
I believe the charge that was proposed under Tab F, Number 4 19 
allows us to do that and maybe with a little bit of rewording it 20 
would allow us to do that or I think it’s actually broad enough 21 
that we could do it now, because it basically says to study and 22 
develop consistent guidelines and principles and we’ve done that 23 
part and then it will engage the expertise of the SSC and SEP 24 
and incorporate the requirements of the Magnuson-Stevens Act and 25 
the other applicable law and rules. 26 
 27 
The other applicable law and rules basically opens the door or 28 
the window for us to be looking at those different allocation 29 
schemes, because that allows us to look at allocations through 30 
time.  I would move that we adopt the revised charge and 31 
continue to work towards -- It’s the revised charge in Tab F, 32 
Number 4 and that we would continue to look at reallocation 33 
issues and specifically first and foremost, those species in 30A 34 
and 30B, which is what started this group of work at this point 35 
in time. 36 
 37 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We’ve got a motion.  Do we have a second? 38 

 39 
MS. WALKER:  Second. 40 

 41 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  There’s a motion and a second.  Is there 42 

discussion?   43 
 44 
MS. MORRIS:  Robin, the revised charge has already been adopted 45 

by the council on that F.  We had an initial charge and then we 46 
revised the charge and so we don’t need to adopt the revised 47 
charge. 48 
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 1 
MR. RIECHERS:  I’m sorry.  I misunderstood that in committee.  2 
Then that would mean that if my seconder would accept, you would 3 
basically take it from “We would continue to look at 4 
reallocation issues for those species in Reef Fish Amendments 5 
30A and 30B, using the principles and guidelines adopted”. 6 

 7 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Who seconded? 8 

 9 
MS. WALKER:  I did. 10 

 11 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Do you accept that? 12 

 13 
MS. WALKER:  Yes. 14 

 15 
MS. WILLIAMS:  It was my understanding that we adopted this, as 16 

you said, as a policy, guidelines and principles, and as part of 17 
that package, it said in order to even look at anything dealing 18 
with allocation that someone would have to bring up the basis 19 
and list how they apply and do X, Y, and Z.  You just jumped 20 
over that process. 21 
 22 
MR. TEEHAN:  Robin, how would this -- This seems conflicting 23 

with what we decided in the committee, where allocations would 24 
be species specific and taken up by the appropriate committee, 25 
like the Mackerel Committee or the Reef Fish Committee.  Does 26 
this override that? 27 
 28 
MR. RIECHERS:  As I’m remembering, Bill, we talked about that 29 

and I think we came back to this group, to the full council, 30 
trying to decide what we were going to do.  As I’m recalling our 31 
discussions and if I could go back, I believe it was Dr. Shipp’s 32 
motion that referred to interim allocation.  We can repeat that 33 
and I can put it in this motion as part of that basis for and 34 
justification that you’re asking for, Kay, and I probably could 35 
have worded this better. 36 
 37 
The reality of it is, I think at that point in time we deferred 38 
these things to this Ad Hoc Allocation group, with the thought 39 
of a group working on this not in the context of reef fish, but 40 
having a broad enough group -- We added some members that 41 
weren’t on Reef Fish as well, I believe, though many of us are 42 
on Reef Fish as well, but the thought being that we would set 43 
aside council time devoted just to this option and I think 44 
that’s why we moved it out of Reef Fish in the first place. 45 
 46 
I truly believe the work still needs to get done and I think it 47 
might get done faster if it were moved out of Reef Fish.  In 48 
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this particular instance, it deals with reef fish species.  In 1 
another instance down the road, it might deal with a different 2 
set of species and I think we always have the ability to have it 3 
go through the species committee or a different set of folks, a 4 
new ad hoc group. 5 
 6 
There’s whole different ways we can structure this discussion, 7 
but I’m just saying let’s not stop the discussion.  I think we 8 
owe it to continuing the discussion. 9 
 10 
MS. WALKER:  I wanted to ask Robin, in lieu of some of the 11 

discussion that we’ve had today on red snapper, is it 12 
appropriate also for us then to -- That’s one of the issues that 13 
I’ve always been interested in, is red snapper and the 14 
reallocation of it.  Now we’ve had new ideas brought to us today 15 
that some of the council members have expressed interest in and 16 
so could we add -- Would you object to adding that? 17 
 18 
MR. RIECHERS:  I would not object at all to adding red snapper. 19 
 20 
MS. MORRIS:  I would like the committee to keep working and 21 

helping move forward on allocation issues, but I do think that 22 
the first work that needs to be done is looking at those interim 23 
allocations we made in 30A and 30B, but I do think that that 24 
should be done in the Reef Fish Committee and not in the Ad Hoc 25 
Allocation Committee. 26 
 27 
I think whatever we’re doing about red snapper should be done in 28 
the Reef Fish Committee as well.  These are Reef Fish Committee 29 
issues and I think that the Allocation Committee can continue to 30 
work kind of at the generic level, but once we get into species-31 
specific allocations, that belongs in the management committees. 32 
 33 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Julie, and I do agree with you.  We’re 34 

trying to lump 30A and 30B and red snapper and everything in 35 
this and it’s like it’s just a sweep across the board.  We said 36 
in our principle and guidance -- This is why I voted against it, 37 
Robin, because I knew this was going to happen. 38 
 39 
We’re not following our own policy that you just adopted, 40 
because for each one of those, 30A and 30B, it could be totally 41 
different as far as the basis, the purpose, and the objectives.  42 
The only thing I’ve heard today as far as allocation or 43 
reallocation was actually a subsector in the recreational 44 
fishery and we all know that that’s not what’s being discussed 45 
on red snapper right now.  I’m going to have to object, but I 46 
also want to ask -- Well, no, I’m not even going to ask legal 47 
counsel just yet. 48 
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 1 
MR. GILL:  For a point of clarification, Robin, what are you 2 

looking to accomplish on those specific species as a result of 3 
the discussion in the ad hoc committee? 4 
 5 
MR. RIECHERS:  I thought we had moved -- The whole reason -- 6 

Certainly we created a charge for the ad hoc committee.  The 7 
charge was fairly narrow, in my mind, as compared to where it 8 
started out.  Our whole purpose of that committee was the 9 
removal of those allocation items out of 30A and 30B so that we 10 
could have a discussion about how we would do that, but it 11 
wasn’t just to have the discussion about how we would do it. 12 
 13 
It was to have the discussion about how we would do it and then 14 
continue on looking at that.  Again, folks, if we want to vote 15 
this down right now under the Ad Hoc Allocation Committee 16 
Report, it sounds like it may have more legs if it’s in the Reef 17 
Fish Management Committee.  I just want to make sure that we 18 
continue to work towards what we indicated to a lot of folks 19 
that we were going to at least take a good look at. 20 
 21 
I would say, Mr. Chairman, vote it up or down and let’s move on 22 
to the next item and we will probably see it again before the 23 
end of the week. 24 
 25 
MR. GILL:  One of my concerns -- First of all, I agree with both 26 

Julie and Kay, but one of my concerns here, Robin, is that that 27 
does not fit the current charge of the Ad Hoc Allocation 28 
Committee and to accomplish that, we need to change that.  I 29 
think we’re going afield and I would have to speak in 30 
opposition. 31 
 32 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion? 33 

 34 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Okay, Shep, with what we just adopted as our 35 

charge of the Ad Hoc Allocation Committee, as well as the 36 
principles and guidelines, specifically under Draft Guidelines 37 
for Allocation Number 2, as far as basis, purposes, objectives, 38 
what you told us about this really wouldn’t have to go into a 39 
framework, because on each individual item or amendment, all of 40 
the Magnuson National Standards and all of those things, as to 41 
what you were trying to I guess regulate, would be examined at 42 
that time. 43 
 44 
Does this motion fit what we just did as far as what we adopted 45 
as I guess our policy is one and then, two, do you feel that 46 
this is within our charge of the committee as written? 47 
 48 
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CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Mr. Grimes, do you want to respond? 1 

 2 
MR. GRIMES:  I guess in the sense that it’s -- Let me back up.  3 

I see nothing in your draft guidelines that would require you to 4 
submit it to any specific committee and so that part of it I 5 
think we’re okay with.  There’s nothing in there. 6 
 7 
Now, the draft guidelines do say that a council motion 8 
constitutes the only appropriate means for requesting initiation 9 
of a reallocation and -- Now, this is going to be splitting 10 
hairs a little bit, but technically, that’s not what this is 11 
asking you to do.  I realize that looking at reallocation issues 12 
is a little bit moving in that direction, but I wouldn’t read 13 
this as saying there’s any specific request for a reallocation. 14 
 15 
That’s very likely what’s going to come out of this exercise, 16 
but it seems that it would be consistent with your draft 17 
guidelines to do that and in terms of the charge of the 18 
committee, I’m sorry, but I don’t have that -- I may have it 19 
directly in front of me somewhere and I certainly don’t have it 20 
committed to memory. 21 
 22 
While I’m looking at that, I would say that it’s your charge to 23 
the committee and it’s your committee and you could always 24 
change the charge to that committee and so I would say even if 25 
it is inconsistent with it, it doesn’t give rise to any legal 26 
angst on my part whether you’re consistent with it or not. 27 
 28 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there other discussion? 29 

 30 
MS. WILLIAMS:  One other thing.  When we look at this -- I 31 

understand what you’re saying, but to me, it sounds like you’re 32 
talking about a two-step process.  We would do it here, but then 33 
we would still have to take it and apply it to a specific 34 
amendment and work it in there, right? 35 
 36 
If we have reef fish amendments, 30A and 30B, wouldn’t that be 37 
done -- Would that not be done under your reef fish amendments 38 
or your shrimp amendments or your lobster amendments?  Do you 39 
think it’s appropriate to do it here?  That’s what we have all 40 
of those other committees for. 41 
 42 
MR. RIECHERS:  Mr. McIlwain, in lieu of the time of day, let me 43 
withdraw my motion.  I will proctor it later, under another 44 

committee. 45 
 46 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Ms. Walker, do you agree?  Okay.  The motion 47 
is withdrawn. 48 
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 1 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  Just before we leave this 2 

council policy, typically the general council policies go into 3 
Section 20 of our SOPPs and there’s a whole list of them in 4 
there.  I just wanted to let you know that basically it won’t be 5 
next week, but at some point in time we will revise the 6 
principles and guidelines for allocations as a policy and then 7 
whenever you look for it in the future, it will be in the SOPPs. 8 
 9 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Mr. Grimes, do you have any other comments? 10 

 11 
MR. GRIMES:  Not to what I was originally going to say, but I 12 

suppose if you’re going to put these policies in your SOPPs like 13 
that that you make it, let’s say, an appendix or a reference to 14 
your SOPPs, because these policies are something that you might 15 
revisit and change regularly and given the difficulty that we’ve 16 
all experienced in the SOPPs amendment change and approval 17 
process, it seems to me to be prudent not to tie it to that. 18 
 19 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  That’s good advice.  I think it’s been some 20 

years since they’ve been reviewed and approved.  Is there 21 
additional discussion on this committee?  Let’s move to Reef 22 
Fish, Mr. Minton. 23 
 24 

REEF FISH MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 25 

 26 
MR. MINTON:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  Before I begin, does 27 

everybody have a copy of the committee report?  I guess that’s a 28 
yes.  Trish sent it out in the email format.  By the way, before 29 
we get started, I really like the email format on that, because 30 
it gives you time to take these things and go through them and 31 
proof them and get them back and so, Trish, thank you.  That’s a 32 
good job and I appreciate it. 33 
 34 
The agenda was adopted with additions under Other Business of a 35 
discussion of problems with the red snapper IFQ system and 36 
clarifications of allocations in Amendment 29, the grouper IFQ.  37 
The minutes of the previous meeting were approved with one 38 
correction. 39 
 40 
On the Ad Hoc Recommendations for Red Snapper Alternative 41 
Management, Mr. Atran summarized the recommendations of the 42 
October 20 to 22 Ad Hoc Recreational Red Snapper AP meeting, 43 
which included a discussion of regional management of 44 
recreational red snapper fishing, the recreational reef fish 45 
permitting system with red snapper endorsement, limited access 46 
privilege programs in the for-hire and private recreational 47 
sectors, catch cards and fish tag systems, and a presentation 48 
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from Captains Gary Jarvis and Bill Archer on a proposal for 1 
making the for-hire fishery a separate section. 2 
 3 
Mr. Perret noted that the AP summary used the terms “catch” and 4 
“landings” interchangeably, but those terms had different 5 
meanings.  In considering regional management of red snapper, it 6 
will make a difference whether regional allocations are based on 7 
where red snapper are caught or where they are landed.  Ms. 8 
Walker asked for a breakdown of state regional allocations under 9 
the AP’s proposed base years of 1996 to 2006.  Those allocations 10 
are as follows and this would be based on a 2.45 million pound 11 
TAC for the recreational sector.  Alabama would be 35 percent, 12 
Louisiana 11 percent, Mississippi 3 percent, Texas 18 percent, 13 
and west Florida would be 32 percent. 14 
 15 
The committee had no recommendations regarding the Ad Hoc 16 
Recreational Red Snapper AP summary.  Should I pause for any 17 
discussion or summary at this point, Mr. Chair, or just go on? 18 
 19 
MS. MORRIS:  In the committee meeting, we heard the report, but 20 

we didn’t really decide to do anything about it and based on the 21 
public testimony today, I took a stab at a motion to follow up 22 
on the SOS plan that people have been talking about.   23 
 24 
I’m going to offer this motion, to request that staff develop a 25 
white paper regarding the pros and cons of a plan amendment to 26 
improve data collection, enforcement, and accountability for the 27 
red snapper harvested and discarded in the for-hire, charterboat 28 
and headboat red snapper fishery.  The white paper would include 29 
the following elements: VMS for the for-hire vessels, electronic 30 
logbooks to report red snapper effort and catch discards for 31 
each trip, for-hire sector separation for red snapper annual 32 
catch limits and for-hire sector red snapper accountability 33 
measures. 34 

 35 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Do I have a second to the motion?  Thank 36 

you, Mr. Gill. 37 
 38 
MS. WALKER:  Ms. Morris, I would ask you why you chose the SOS 39 

plan, when there are about 1,500 licensed boats in the Gulf, and 40 
you didn’t choose what our AP recommended?  I would just like to 41 
know. 42 
 43 
MS. MORRIS:  A lot of the AP recommendations -- It seems like a 44 

lot of them had to do with regional management by states and I 45 
think that’s problematic and complicated and we should probably 46 
talk a little bit about that.  Maybe after we pass this motion, 47 
we could talk about the regional management, but I don’t favor 48 
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that approach. 1 
 2 
I’ve had some conversations with Bonnie about data by states and 3 
that seems like it’s a problematic component and the suggestion 4 
for multiple APs and different management strategies by state 5 
just seemed overly complicated to me.  It didn’t seem like it 6 
was as workable as this proposal and that’s why I’m making the 7 
motion regarding this proposal. 8 
 9 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion on the 10 

motion? 11 
 12 
MR. MINTON:  I’m going to support the motion too at this time, 13 

because what we’re doing is trying to find out more information 14 
about what this would do.  I’ve had a lot of captains come up to 15 
me saying they think it’s a good idea.  The next question is 16 
what do you think it would do to us?  I think that’s important, 17 
that we be able to note, at least within some realm of 18 
possibility, if we adopted something like this, what’s it going 19 
to do?  Most of them feel like it will give them more days, more 20 
catch and all that, but it might not.  I think Andy Strelcheck 21 
told us that the other day, but the important part is to try and 22 
get the information out, so we can kind of chew on it and see 23 
what’s going to happen.  I’m going to support your motion. 24 
 25 
DR. CRABTREE:  I’m going to support the motion, too.  I think 26 

this is something to look at and while I do think you could look 27 
at a regional approach, I don’t consider state-by-state to be a 28 
viable alternative, because I don’t believe the science can 29 
support that. 30 
 31 
The precision of your estimates of the catch, particularly, for 32 
example, from Mississippi, become too great and so while I think 33 
you could go to perhaps a Texas/Florida/Northern Gulf, I don’t 34 
think a state-by-state approach is consistent with the science 35 
that we have. 36 
 37 
MR. TEEHAN:  I’m going to support this motion also and I think 38 

Larry summed it up fairly well during public testimony, Larry 39 
Simpson, when he said that we don’t have the answers to all 40 
these questions yet and there seems to be a lot of questions and 41 
what this motion is doing is just developing a white paper to 42 
try to answer those. 43 
 44 
As Roy said and as Julie said, I don’t support the state-by-45 
state division either.  I also talked with Bonnie and there’s 46 
too many problems involved with it.  A possible -- If we wanted 47 
to look at regionalization, splitting the Gulf in half might be 48 
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a way to go or it might be a way to look at, but once again, 1 
there may be data problems there also that we would have to 2 
explore. 3 
 4 
MR. RIECHERS:  I think we all heard in public testimony that 5 

there’s certainly not a complete consensus around this sort of 6 
idea yet, but certainly these are things that have been talked 7 
about by many folks, or portions of this have been talked about 8 
by many folks, for a long period of time in regards to logbooks 9 
and data verification and those kind of things. 10 
 11 
I’m going to support the motion and hopefully this will give all 12 
those other folks who really are just now catching up or getting 13 
some of that email traffic the opportunity to at the next 14 
meeting have even some discussion about the cost, about how many 15 
people we’re talking about, about how it might actually be 16 
implemented or at least maybe some studies where it may have 17 
worked or not worked in the past. 18 
 19 
In that context, I don’t think we’re going towards a full-blown 20 
scoping document or anything, but this certainly is a way for us 21 
to get more information and for us to make better informed 22 
decisions, as well as those individuals out there to make some 23 
informed decisions, those who haven’t really had a chance to 24 
take this plan back to their people or parts of this plan back 25 
to their people and have those discussions. 26 
 27 
MS. FOOTE:  I’m going to support the motion, but I would ask the 28 

maker of the motion if she would consider at all a friendly 29 
amendment to also consider the possibility of regionalization in 30 
this motion. 31 
 32 
MS. MORRIS:  Could you just talk a little bit more about that, 33 

Karen? 34 
 35 
MS. FOOTE:  I would like to support this, but I would also like 36 

to support a similar motion to look at the regionalization plan, 37 
whether it’s state-by-state or two or three other regions.  I 38 
would like us to look at both options and maybe there’s a 39 
marriage of those two down the line.  I thought if we could put 40 
it in this, we’ll get it altogether and see what we have to look 41 
at. 42 
 43 
MS. MORRIS:  The suggestion would be that the white paper 44 

regarding pros and cons would also look at regionalization and 45 
so is there any particular regionalization plan that you would 46 
want to be looked at? 47 
 48 
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MS. FOOTE:  You said that you were able to speak with Bonnie.  I 1 

haven’t spoken with her, but something that would bring out the 2 
information that you and Bonnie have preliminarily discussed, 3 
what would work and what might not work in that. 4 
 5 
MS. MORRIS:  That would be fine.  Is that okay with my seconder?  6 
Okay.  We’ll add another bullet, which would be regional 7 
management.  Is that okay, Karen, regional management instead of 8 

regionalization? 9 
 10 
MS. FOOTE:  That would be fine.  I just want it on the table as 11 

we’re looking at everything else. 12 
 13 
MS. WALKER:  I was just going to tell Julie that the last stock 14 

assessment, we’ve got the data to be able to split it into two.  15 
I thought we did.  My other comment is this.  I too am going to 16 
support this motion, because I think that we need to get these 17 
ideas out and we need to get the facts on the table, so that 18 
people understand what’s going to happen instead of them trying 19 
to sit there on the back of an envelope and write down figures 20 
and figure out what they’re going to get and what they won’t 21 
get.  This is the fair way to do it, is bring it out and let 22 
them see it. 23 
 24 
DR. PONWITH:  Just for clarification, the discussions were 25 

simply to make sure that when you discuss regionalization that 26 
you include in that analysis the ability of the data to support 27 
the precision required for additional stratification in those 28 
estimates.  It’s not a position one way or another on whether 29 
regionalization is a good idea, but it’s simply from a 30 
scientific standpoint, do you have the data that will support 31 
additional stratification and still produce robust enough catch 32 
estimates? 33 
 34 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional -- 35 

 36 
MR. STEVEN ATRAN:  Just two things.  First of all, I think a lot 37 

of the discussion on the ad hoc AP revolved around using red 38 
snapper endorsements to get a basis of red snapper fishermen, to 39 
get more precise data going forward.  I don’t know what we would 40 
do about going backward. 41 
 42 
The other question was clarification.  This last bullet on 43 
regional management, is this for the entire recreational sector?  44 
Most of those bullets are only for the for-hire sector. 45 
 46 
MS. MORRIS:  No, this is just for the for-hire sector. 47 

 48 
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MR. ATRAN:  Regional management for the for-hire sector? 1 

 2 
MS. MORRIS:  Yes. 3 

 4 
MR. GILL:  I support the motion.  I would like to direct a 5 

couple of questions to Dr. Leard in terms of the mechanics.  Are 6 
we overloading this paper to make it a catch-all paper that gets 7 
so big that it’s a little bit difficult to deal with, number 8 
one?  Number two is is there a staff issue in terms of timely 9 
completion of all this to make it happen? 10 
 11 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  There’s a lot of staff issues, 12 

as you well know, but as far as developing a white paper, I 13 
think between Steve and Carrie we can probably -- Taking the SOS 14 
document and taking the Ad Hoc Recreational Red Snapper and 15 
getting with maybe Bonnie and some of the others -- We won’t 16 
have you some amazing document, but I think we might have 17 
something that you can kind of talk about and give you a little 18 
more information by the January meeting. 19 
 20 
MS. FOOTE:  We won’t be counting on some amazing document, but 21 

just a really good one, I’m sure.  Coming from a state that did 22 
comply with the federal regulations, it’s important to include 23 
that twist on regional management for us and because this was a 24 
for-hire motion, that’s why I’m not asking this to be considered 25 
for the rest of the fishery right now, but in time I think we 26 
need to look at that. 27 
 28 
MR. SIMPSON:  I support it.  I think you ought to look at this 29 

and I have a couple of comments.  Number one, in the absence of 30 
Corky and -- Corky is not sleeping or hurt.  His agency is 31 
getting some kind of Gulf Guardian Award or something and so 32 
he’ll be back late tonight.  I think you need to include both 33 
catch and landings in that regionalization situation. 34 
 35 
On the deal with the for-hire sector trip ticket, electronic 36 
logbooks, basically you’ve got some work concurrently going on 37 
now with trip tickets, which is essentially a logbook.  You can 38 
work those in tandem a little bit. 39 
 40 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any other comments? 41 

 42 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I actually have two.  One is for Julie.  Julie, 43 

when do you foresee incorporating something that’s going to 44 
perhaps give us the ability to look at your private recreational 45 
fishery, be it catch cards, endorsements, fish tags or any of 46 
those things that we had that panel to look at?  Is that for 47 
later on? 48 
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 1 
MS. MORRIS:  This motion just addresses the for-hire strategy 2 

and it seems like -- It wasn’t as clear to me what to do in the 3 
private recreational sector and so perhaps the council could 4 
compose another motion at this meeting about that or perhaps we 5 
need to let that one develop a little bit more before we have a 6 
motion on that, but this motion is -- I wanted to present it as 7 
a strategy for the for-hire sector. 8 
 9 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Two, I am going to support this motion.  I think 10 

it’s a really good start, but I would ask that one of the staff, 11 
someone, get something from the Mid-Atlantic Council.  They have 12 
state-by-state quotas or allocations for their summer flounder, 13 
which they both jointly manage with Atlantic States Marine 14 
Fisheries Commission and it has been a nightmare, is my 15 
understanding, and so we need to know about some of their 16 
experience. 17 
 18 
MS. VILLERE:  I just want to mention that I think that 19 

particularly in light of how receptive the council was to this 20 
SOS plan by a few fishermen that in Dr. Nelson’s testimony he 21 
talked about the idea that we will definitely have ideas from 22 
private recreational and that would be submitted at the next 23 
meeting in public testimony and we would hope that the council 24 
would be as, like I said, receptive as they’ve been to this plan 25 
to explore all the possibilities and so forth.  I’ll support the 26 
motion and hope that when the time comes for the private 27 
recreational fishery to be represented that everyone will 28 
support what I do. 29 
 30 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Ms. Villere.  I think it’s a 31 

healthy thing to begin to think outside the box and we need to 32 
investigate all of these options. 33 
 34 
MR. TEEHAN:  This will be my last comment.  My only concern here 35 

is on the regional management for the for-hire sector.  I 36 
realize this whole motion is for for-hire, but that kind of 37 
leaves us in a bind and maybe this is what Susan was getting to. 38 
 39 
If we split the Gulf in half for here, we’re only looking at the 40 
for-hire and does that mean that the private sector is still 41 
under a one Gulf of Mexico plan or should we need to look at, 42 
for the regionalization issue, look at both the for-hire and the 43 
private?  Just some discussion on that if anybody --  44 
 45 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Ms. Morris, do you want to respond to that? 46 

 47 
MS. MORRIS:  This is just a white paper regarding the pros and 48 
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cons and so I would imagine the white paper, when it got to 1 
regional management for the for-hire sector, would talk about 2 
the problem that Bill is identifying, like where does that leave 3 
-- If we do regional management for the for-hire sector, where 4 
does that leave the private recreational management, if it’s not 5 
also -- It’s a white paper of pros and cons and it will bring up 6 
provocative stuff that we can talk about at a future council 7 
meeting and I think it’s okay to leave it this way. 8 
 9 
MR. SIMPSON:  Before the council gets all carried away with 10 

this, you’re talking regional management.  Now, the only 11 
management issue that I heard about regional management was 12 
dividing the quota up.  Now, that’s not really, quote, all the 13 
management.  Susan, if you’re going to come in with something, 14 
it ought to be kind of in the lines of improving data 15 
collection, enforcement, and accountability.  It’s not all 16 
management. 17 
 18 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Are there other comments?  Being my 19 

colleague from Mississippi is not here, I would like to say that 20 
we do support this, but I really question that 3 percent.  I 21 
think all those people from Alabama are coming over here and 22 
stealing our fish. 23 
 24 
MS. WALKER:  I’m going to tell you I support splitting it by 25 

state.  Did you all see how much fish we’ll get?  Why can’t we 26 
just do that and go home? 27 
 28 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion on this 29 
motion?  I think we’re ready to vote.  All those in favor say 30 
aye; all opposed same sign.  The motion carries. 31 

 32 
MR. MINTON:  Alternative Opening Dates for Recreational Red 33 

Snapper Season, I reviewed the potential alternative 2009 red 34 
snapper seasons in the email that was sent from Andy Strelcheck, 35 
which is Tab B, Number 4(a), but noted that these were based on 36 
older data and did not incorporate the impacts or effects of the 37 
shortened 2008 season.   38 
 39 
Mr. Strelcheck noted that all of the 2008 data was not yet in, 40 
but it would likely be available by March or April, at which 41 
time the season estimate could be made.  In general, he noted 42 
that historically the largest recreational landings are usually 43 
in March and April and so the further up the opening date is 44 
moved, the shorter the season is likely to be.  Dr. Crabtree 45 
added that we appear to be heading for a harvest overage this 46 
year, plus we do not know what the individual states are going 47 
to do for their regulations. 48 
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 1 
Before I go on, I’ve got to ask Andy something.  I didn’t catch 2 
this before, but when you -- You said March or April and what 3 
timeframe are you using for that, because we haven’t been on a 4 
March opening for a pretty good while or did you just misspeak 5 
or -- 6 
 7 
MR. ANDY STRELCHECK:  I’m pretty sure I said April or May, to be 8 

honest with you. 9 
 10 
MR. MINTON:  Thank you.  I knew there was something in that.  If 11 

you will, in your notes, and if you’ll change that to April or 12 
May, then I think it will be more correct. 13 
 14 
In response to a question about CPUE, Mr. Strelcheck responded 15 
that the catch rate was 2.3 fish per angler in 2006 and 1.8 fish 16 
per angler in 2007.  The lower catch rate in 2007 was likely due 17 
to the reduced bag limit.  In response to a question about the 18 
average size of a recreationally caught red snapper, Mr. 19 
Strelcheck responded that the average size was about 3.5 pounds 20 
in 2006 and about four pounds in 2007.  The increase in size 21 
could be due to factors such as angler selectivity or due to, my 22 
God, a rebuilding program.  Flip a coin. 23 
 24 
Because information that will affect the 2009 season is not yet 25 
available, the committee felt that it could not make any 26 
recommendations and no motions were made.  Any discussion, Mr. 27 
Chair? 28 
 29 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there any discussion at this point of the 30 

report?  Hearing none, go ahead, Mr. Minton. 31 
 32 
MR. MINTON:  We also received an update on the ESA biological 33 

opinion on the new sea turtle bycatch estimates.  Paul Richards 34 
gave a PowerPoint presentation on the estimated captures of sea 35 
turtles in the bottom longline portion of the eastern Gulf of 36 
Mexico reef fish fishery and Jennifer Lee gave a presentation on 37 
the ESA Section 7 consultation process.   38 
 39 
Mr. Richards noted that the previous estimates of sea turtle 40 
takes in the 2005 Biological Opinion were based on self-reported 41 
logbook data, while the current estimates are based on observer 42 
data from two observer programs, the shark bottom longline 43 
observer program and the reef fish observer program.  44 
Observations were made over an eighteen-month period from July 45 
2006 through December 2007.   46 
 47 
Observers accounted for approximately one percent of the total 48 
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longline effort.  A total of eighteen sea turtles were observed 1 
taken, sixteen loggerheads and two which were unidentified, of 2 
which eight were released alive.  Sea turtles were taken in 24% 3 
of the observed trips, which is eight of the thirty-three trips, 4 
and in 3 percent of the observed longline sets.  All observed 5 
sea turtle takes came from the eastern Gulf of Mexico.  I think, 6 
if I’m correct, that was east of Cape San Blas, if I remember 7 
correctly. 8 
 9 
Ms. Lee described Biological opinions and the definition of 10 
jeopardy, an action that would be expected, directly or 11 
indirectly, to reduce appreciably the likelihood of survival and 12 
recovery of a listed species in the wild by reducing the 13 
reproduction, numbers or distribution of that species. 14 
 15 
Loggerhead sea turtles were listed as threatened in 1978.  Stock 16 
assessments published by the First Turtle Expert Working Group 17 
in 1998 and 2000 identified nesting sub-populations of 18 
loggerhead sea turtles in South Florida as increasing and 19 
nesting populations in the northern areas as stable, possibly 20 
decreasing.   21 
 22 
The 2005 Biological Opinion had a finding of no jeopardy from 23 
reef fish fishing.  More recent observations have found nests 24 
for the northern population, which is North Carolina, South 25 
Carolina and Georgia, are decreasing and in south Florida there 26 
is a significant declining trend following an earlier period of 27 
increasing trend.   28 
 29 
As a result of the new observer data, a new biological opinion 30 
is being developed.  The presentation concluded that loggerheads 31 
are not recovering and that regulatory measures are needed in 32 
the Gulf of Mexico reef fish bottom longline component to reduce 33 
bycatch and mortality. 34 
 35 
The formal consultation statutory timeline for completing a 36 
biological consultation is 135 days once NOAA Fisheries Service 37 
has a complete initiation package.  The earliest the 38 
consultation will be completed is probably late February.   39 
 40 
Shepherd Grimes stated that if the council has proposed actions 41 
to reduce the impacts of longlines on sea turtles that are 42 
reasonably certain to occur, the jeopardy determination will 43 
take the proposed actions into account.  Dr. Crabtree added that 44 
this made it urgent that the council begin working on a scoping 45 
document and EIS in order for any new actions to be factored 46 
into the jeopardy finding.  Some actions may be able to be 47 
implemented through the FMP framework action, while others might 48 
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require emergency action. 1 
 2 
The Committee recommends, and I so move, to prepare a scoping 3 
document to address turtle and longline interactions and 4 
consideration should include time/area closure, gear 5 
modifications, observer program, and effort limitation. 6 
 7 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We have a committee motion. 8 

 9 
MS. VILLERE:  I’ve talked to several members of the council and 10 

we feel that this doesn’t quite go far enough, that the council 11 
probably should be taking more action on this, and I would like 12 
to amend the motion, if Vernon would allow that. 13 
 14 
That would be to also direct staff to prepare an EIS to support 15 
potential emergency action to reduce jeopardy to sea turtles by 16 
January.  In other words, we would be able to look at it in 17 

January is what I’m trying to say and I’m not sure exactly about 18 
the wording there.  The idea being that Roy said that we may 19 
need to take emergency action and that we would need a scoping 20 
document and an EIS.  I think the motion should include that we 21 
have that prepared, so that if we do need to take emergency 22 
action that we have what we need to do that. 23 
 24 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We have a suggested amendment to the 25 

committee motion.  Do I have a second to that?  It’s seconded by 26 
Dr. Shipp. 27 
 28 
DR. SHIPP:  I have a question for Shep.  Could it be an EIS or 29 

does it have to be a DEIS? 30 
 31 
MR. GRIMES:  It would necessarily be a draft, because you would 32 

have to go through the comment periods with it. 33 
 34 
MS. VILLERE:  Can we change EIS to DEIS, please? 35 
 36 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there other discussion? 37 

 38 
MR. GRIMES:  I was just going to say I don’t think it really 39 

makes any difference.  I guess technically it’s a DEIS.  Once we 40 
publish it or file it with the EPA and they put out the notice 41 
of availability on it -- I guess I would just comment that this 42 
seems pretty much consistent with what the previous motion was 43 
and it’s not just like you go out and write this. 44 
 45 
You have to go out and scope it and go to scoping meetings and 46 
you could certainly do it, but this would -- The first motion is 47 
moving in this same direction, I guess, other than being 48 
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specific to an emergency action. 1 
 2 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Roy, what is the -- I don’t guess we could 3 

include it in anything, but I was just wondering what this 4 
council could do or go about that should we have to take some 5 
type of an emergency action -- Where I’m going with this is if 6 
in fact longline gear is doing harm to the turtles, is there 7 
some method to get someone to pay for converting their gear type 8 
to another gear type, rather than just -- We’ve heard problems 9 
with different things and I’ve wrestled with this and I’m trying 10 
to figure out some way to I guess solve all of the problems that 11 
we’ve heard, that is whether it’s real or not it’s perceived 12 
that the longline gear is causing problems with the turtle takes 13 
and other things that we’ve heard over the years. 14 
 15 
Is there some mechanism for us to have some type of a gear 16 
conversion, pay for the gear conversion, do something to finally 17 
just solve all of this? 18 
 19 
DR. CRABTREE:  Well, I don’t think there’s anything within the 20 

authority of this council to pay for gear conversions.  To do 21 
that, you would have to have an appropriation and we don’t have 22 
that.   23 
 24 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Dr. Crabtree, did you have another comment? 25 

 26 
DR. CRABTREE:  Yes.  The problem, Susan, with coming back with a 27 

Draft EIS is you haven’t identified any specific alternatives 28 
that you want in it at this point and so you would be 29 
essentially relying on staff to come in and do all those. 30 
 31 
I can tell you that we’re committed to develop this DEIS as 32 
quickly as we can.  I don’t think we can complete scoping and 33 
write a Draft EIS by the next council meeting, but we can do as 34 
much as we can to get there and then you can have your 35 
discussion about what type of action to take. 36 
 37 
I don’t really have any problem with the motion necessarily, but 38 
I just don’t think it’s realistic to think that we’re going to 39 
complete a DEIS that quickly.  I think, Rick, given the 40 
requirements for noticing scoping meetings that probably the 41 
earliest those would occur would be in early December. 42 
 43 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  Trish and I were talking about 44 

that yesterday.  We plan on having a scoping document, working 45 
with your staff, and having a scoping document and scope it 46 
probably the first or second week in December, but to do that -- 47 
If it’s the first week in December, I’m going to have to have an 48 
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FRN out next Tuesday and obviously if it’s the following week, 1 
then we would have an additional week to put an FRN together, 2 
but the FRN is going to have to say something about what’s in 3 
the scoping. 4 
 5 
I’m going to have to get with your staff the very first thing 6 
next week so that we can start outlining what’s going to be in a 7 
scoping document and again, more than likely we’re going to 8 
probably have to push those scoping meetings to the second week 9 
in December, so that I’ve got something to put in the FRN so 10 
people know what they’re going to be asked to comment on. 11 
 12 
MS. MORRIS:  Susan, would you accept this as a friendly 13 

amendment, to also direct staff to begin preparation of a DEIS 14 
to support potential action and not emergency action, because 15 
we’ve been talking -- That’s the beginning of the preparation 16 
and then we’ve talked about this could be a framework action or 17 
this could be some other kind of action and it might not be an 18 
emergency action.  It would be to direct staff to begin 19 
preparation and does that sound okay?  Do you view that as 20 
friendly? 21 
 22 
MS. VILLERE:  I think that’s what we’re already doing. 23 

 24 
MS. MORRIS:  That’s okay or not? 25 

 26 
MS. VILLERE:  I’m going to ask Bob for some direction. 27 

 28 
DR. SHIPP:  I think the consensus from everybody is we’re moving 29 

just as fast as we can.  I certainly support the spirit of the 30 
amendment, but I also hear Shep and Rick and Roy and I think 31 
perhaps we don’t need the amendment after all.  If they don’t 32 
move as they can and if we don’t move as fast as we can, there’s 33 
going to be litigation.  Practically speaking, I don’t think the 34 
amendment is really necessary. 35 
 36 
MR. GRIMES:  I was just going to comment that I think you can be 37 

fairly general in the Federal Register notice as far as what’s 38 
being scoped, but I would reiterate what I said in committee and 39 
that was I would encourage this council to go ahead and think 40 
about specific things that you want to consider for this. 41 
 42 
I mean specific measures.  We thought originally of time/area 43 
closures and gear fixes, possible effort limitations, those 44 
kinds of things.  If you have something specific, the sooner you 45 
get it out there, I think the better off you’ll be and you’ll be 46 
giving staff some direction as to things they’ll be looking at. 47 
 48 
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MR. MINTON:  I agree with Dr. Shipp.  I think they’re moving as 1 

fast as they can and I’ve heard, and I’m not sure, but they’re 2 
going to have Christmas again this year and so that’s going to 3 
throw a kink into just everything.  You know how it slows down 4 
anyway during that time of the year. 5 
 6 
Even though I think it’s a good idea, I just don’t think the 7 
burden on staff -- I just don’t think they can physically get it 8 
done.  There’s just too much going on. 9 
 10 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any other council discussion? 11 

 12 
MR. ATRAN:  I’m just making a list of everything I need to do 13 

between now and January.  I just wanted to let you know that 14 
we’re going to have to do an amendment anyway.  If you do an 15 
emergency action, that’s only a temporary fix.  It’s going to 16 
have to be followed up with some permanent action and so whether 17 
we do an emergency action or not, there’s still going to have to 18 
be either a framework or a plan amendment to follow that up and 19 
so it doesn’t matter whether or not you’re talking about doing 20 
an amendment.  We need to do one. 21 
 22 
MS. VILLERE:  I was just trying to be sure that we could act in 23 

January if we needed to act in January and so if everyone feels 24 
that this is not required for us to be able to act in January, 25 
then I guess we’ll vote it down, but I just want to be sure that 26 
-- I understand that staff has constraints and so forth, but I 27 
just want to be sure that every base is covered.  I’ll withdraw 28 
the amendment. 29 
 30 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Does the second agree to that? 31 

 32 
DR. SHIPP:  Yes. 33 

 34 
MS. MORRIS:  I talked with Chairman Minton and I think he 35 
accepts as a friendly suggestion to add to this alternative 36 
baits, to include time/area closures, gear modifications, 37 
alternative baits, observer programs, and effort limitation.  Is 38 

that okay, Mr. Minton? 39 
 40 
MR. MINTON:  It’s certainly okay with me. 41 

 42 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We’ve got a friendly amendment or a friendly 43 

rewording. 44 
 45 
MS. WALKER:  I just wanted to ask, because of NEPA, do we have -46 

- I know this is going to cause dissention, but I’m just 47 
thinking, because of NEPA, don’t we have to go all the way and 48 
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consider a moratorium on longlines or pushing them out to fifty 1 
fathoms?  There’s a lot more alternatives than what’s here. 2 
 3 
DR. CRABTREE:  Bobbi, a moratorium on longlines, if you mean 4 

pushing them out to some specified depth range, for example 5 
fifty fathoms, that is a time/area closure, which is part of 6 
this motion.  Now, but back to Shepherd’s comment, if you want 7 
to specifically tell staff that you want this particular 8 
specific option in the document, then go ahead and bring it up 9 
and do it, if you can give some specific direction, but I 10 
certainly think a time/area closure would be moving longline 11 
gear out of the fishery either completely or out to some depth 12 
area in all of the area or some portion of it.  Those are 13 
time/area closures to that gear. 14 
 15 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any other -- 16 

 17 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  I think, especially based on 18 

the timing issue that we’ve got here, and like Shep says, the 19 
Federal Register notice can be relatively general and I think 20 
the purpose of the scoping meeting is to try to get input from 21 
the public as to what they think are more appropriate actions to 22 
be taken. 23 
 24 
I personally, in working with Roy’s staff in developing a 25 
scoping document for these meetings, I would like to leave it 26 
relatively general with an introduction of what the problem is 27 
and what the need is and then maybe just citing some examples of 28 
things that can be done and then get that input and then come 29 
back and build upon that in January into more specific details. 30 
 31 
Otherwise, if we try to build specific details into the scoping 32 
document, it’s going to be a little more difficult to get that 33 
out within the next week or two. 34 
 35 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion on this 36 

motion? 37 
 38 
MS. WALKER:  I want to ask Shep something and maybe I don’t 39 

understand this.  The turtles are endangered and am I correct?  40 
The council has been told that -- 41 
 42 
MR. GRIMES:  Technically, they’re threatened. 43 

 44 
MS. WALKER:  The council has been told that a gear is catching 45 

550 or 500 times the allowable catch and do we -- Do we have a 46 
deadline?  Do you have a deadline or a time element associated?  47 
What I don’t want us to see is to be sued over it and then a 48 
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court make the decision. 1 
 2 
MR. GRIMES:  As I said in committee, we have an obligation to 3 

act and we need to move posthaste.  The timing of some of this, 4 
there has been some seasonality or at least there are peaks in 5 
the times where the interactions occur, according to the limited 6 
information that we have, and most of that stuff was in the 7 
summertime and so we really want to try to have something in 8 
place by the summertime. 9 
 10 
Clearly the longer we go, the more risk there is to it, but I 11 
think it doesn’t matter -- I’m going to try to get at what I 12 
think you may be suggesting.  Whether it’s an emergency rule or 13 
a framework action makes no difference in terms of dealing with 14 
what’s on the board.  We must comply with NEPA and no regulation 15 
is going to become effective until we can say we have done what 16 
we’re required to do under NEPA.  By all indication, that’s 17 
going to be preparing an EIS on this. 18 
 19 
We get the ball going now and this analysis will cover us with 20 
whatever eventual action we decide to do.  To address your 21 
earlier question, I think from a NEPA standpoint, looking at a 22 
reasonable range of alternatives, you’re going to have the no 23 
action on one end and you’re going to have something really 24 
severe on the other end.  I’m not in a position to tell you 25 
exactly what that will be, but it’s going to be pretty heavy.  26 
It’s going to need to be pretty heavy. 27 
 28 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Did I hear you say they’re endangered or they’re 29 

threatened? 30 
 31 
MR. GRIMES:  Loggerheads are currently listed as threatened, but 32 

as you heard Jennifer Lee tell you, the agency has been 33 
petitioned to split out loggerheads into distinct population 34 
segments and list some of those as endangered. 35 
 36 
The agency, I believe, has said that that petition -- I guess it 37 
acknowledged that it warranted further consideration and so the 38 
status of -- There are future questions regarding the status, 39 
but regardless of whether it’s threatened or endangered, the 40 
fishery has drastically exceeded what it was authorized to take 41 
under the incidental take statement.  That’s why we’re in this 42 
position. 43 
 44 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Second question, are you allowed to use 45 

mitigation measures if something springs up and a time/area 46 
closure would do it, rather than just banning the gear type?  47 
Aren’t you allowed to do that? 48 
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 1 
MR. GRIMES:  I’m not sure I follow you.  We have to reduce take.  2 

What we have to do is avoid jeopardy and in addition to that, we 3 
have to do good things to conserve sea turtle populations.  4 
Wherever along the continuum of possible measures -- Whatever it 5 
is, it can’t jeopardize the species and we should do what we can 6 
to conserve populations overall. 7 
 8 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any comments or questions? 9 

 10 
MS. MORRIS:  It was my sense in the committee discussion that we 11 

hoped that the scoping would take place and that an options 12 
paper would be available for us in January.  Is that the process 13 
that we expect, to have an options paper, based on the scoping, 14 
at the January meeting? 15 
 16 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  That’s what we’re going to try 17 

to do, have the summary of the scoping comments and do what we 18 
can to put together options for you to look at. 19 
 20 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any other questions, comments, discussion on 21 

the motion? 22 
 23 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Roy, this in no way affects the IFQ, does it?  24 

Even if this council decided to move longlines to fifty fathoms 25 
or ban them, just as we did trap gear, the historical 26 
allocations are historical allocations and they would still get 27 
those? 28 
 29 
DR. CRABTREE:  Yes.  This, in and of itself, does not change the 30 

IFQ proposal in Amendment 29. 31 
 32 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there any other discussion?  The motion 33 

is to prepare a scoping document to address turtle and longline 34 
interaction and consideration should include time/area closures, 35 
gear modification, alternative baits, observer program, and 36 
effort limitation.  All those in favor of the motion say aye; 37 
all opposed.  The motion carries. 38 
 39 
MR. MINTON:  Mr. Chair, Rick and I have been talking and it 40 

would be appropriate, I think, to go ahead and try to get 41 
locations from the states on the different scoping places to 42 
meet, state or states. 43 
 44 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  I would ask Florida. 45 

 46 
MR. TEEHAN:  Florida thinks, in consultation with Mr. Gill and 47 

some commercial folks, that Panama City and Madeira Beach ought 48 
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to cover the State of Florida. 1 
 2 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Alabama? 3 

 4 
MR. MINTON:  I don’t know at this time if we even need one.  Let 5 

me do this, Mr. Chair, if you will.  Let me go back and check 6 
and then if some of the fishermen think it would be needed, then 7 
I’ll email you.  Right now, all of the information is coming 8 
east of Cape San Blas and so I don’t know.  We do have some 9 
longline fisheries still in Alabama, but I need to find out what 10 
they feel like they would need to do, if that’s okay. 11 
 12 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  I’m not sure that we need one in 13 

Mississippi.  Kay, what do you think? 14 
 15 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I don’t know.  I would like to get back to you 16 

too, because I would like to find out exactly how many longline 17 
vessels that we’re aware of that even fishes out even in the 18 
deeper water, past the fifty fathom, only because we don’t know 19 
where we’re going to go with this. 20 
 21 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Louisiana? 22 

 23 
MS. VILLERE:  We pass. 24 

 25 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Texas? 26 

 27 
MR. RIECHERS:  We’ll pass as well. 28 

 29 
DR. CRABTREE:  Bill, you don’t think there’s a need for 30 

something down in the Fort Myers/Naples area? 31 
 32 
MR. TEEHAN:  Bob checked with Dean Pruitt and he said there’s 33 

just a couple of boats down there that could likely make it up 34 
to Madeira Beach.  If I’m misspeaking, somebody please correct 35 
me on that. 36 
 37 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  I would suggest that we get back to Rick by 38 

Friday.  Can we do that?  Mississippi and Alabama will reply 39 
back to Rick by email by Friday.  We’ve got a motion on the 40 
floor to hold scoping hearings in Panama City, Madeira Beach, 41 
Alabama and Mississippi to be announced.  Is there a second to 42 
this motion?  Ms. Villere, thank you. 43 
 44 
DR. SHIPP:  These meetings are not cheap and this whole thing is 45 

east of Cape San Blas.  With the staff travel and all the rest 46 
of it, I just don’t see any need for anything certainly west of 47 
Panama City. 48 
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 1 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Since we don’t know what’s going to be in the 2 

scoping document and we have no idea where the council is going 3 
to go with this and we know that there are longline activities 4 
on the outskirts of fifty fathoms, you mean to tell me they’re 5 
only in Florida and none of these vessels fish that real deep 6 
water, you call it Texas and Louisiana, and do we know that?  I 7 
thought we had some longline vessels past fifty fathoms.  I’m 8 
seeing over here, this side of the table, saying yes and am I 9 
wrong? 10 
 11 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Dr. Crabtree, do you want to respond? 12 

 13 
DR. CRABTREE:  Yes, there is longlining activity that takes 14 

place west of Cape San Blas, but it’s all outside of fifty 15 
fathoms and most of it is in the yellowedge and tilefish 16 
fisheries.  Now, we have not observed any takes in those 17 
fisheries.  All of the takes we’ve observed is off of the west 18 
coast of Florida, but almost all of the observer data is in that 19 
area, too. 20 
 21 
We’ve only observed one take deeper than fifty fathoms and as I 22 
recall, it was about fifty-three fathoms or so.  Furthermore, 23 
it’s my understanding that about 85 to 90 percent of the 24 
longline effort is inside fifty fathoms and so even if there are 25 
occasional takes outside of that depth, because the effort is so 26 
much lower, it’s going to be a lot less. 27 
 28 
This does seem to be largely a west Florida shelf problem and 29 
while I’m not telling you there aren’t some turtle takes in the 30 
deepwater fishery, there’s not much effort there.  It’s already 31 
closed -- We’ve shut that fishery down in May and June every 32 
year and there’s just not that much effort out there. 33 
 34 
MS. WALKER:  In the interest of time and money, can I amend the 35 
motion to just hold the scoping hearings in Panama City and 36 
Madeira Beach? 37 

 38 
MS. VILLERE:  Second. 39 

 40 
MS. WALKER:  I really don’t think there’s a point to have one in 41 

Alabama. 42 
 43 
MR. MINTON:  That’s not what we said.  The point was to just 44 

check with the fishermen that are in it to see if they want to 45 
participate.  I guess they can drive to Panama City if they want 46 
to. 47 
 48 
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MS. WALKER:  We could move it to Destin, which wouldn’t be very 1 

far from Alabama and Mississippi. 2 
 3 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  What is the council’s desire?  Do you want 4 

to offer that as an amendment? 5 
 6 
MS. WALKER:  Yes, I made a motion and I had a second to hold the 7 

scoping hearings in Panama City and Madeira Beach.  If someone 8 
wants me to change Panama City to Destin, if you feel like that 9 
would help -- There’s just no point in having all these public 10 
hearings, guys.  People don’t show up and it’s costing taxpayers 11 
a tremendous amount of money. 12 
 13 
MR. TEEHAN:  My only concern about moving it from Panama City to 14 

Destin is Panama City is closer to Apalachicola and Eastpoint 15 
and those areas, where there’s probably going to be some 16 
affected fishermen. 17 
 18 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I’m okay with this, but if we are thinking, any 19 

of us back there, about moving the longline vessels to fifty 20 
fathoms, then we really need to hold as many hearings in the 21 
great state of Florida as we can. 22 
 23 
DR. CRABTREE:  Remember, you’re going to come back in at the 24 

January meeting with an options paper or something.  I assume 25 
you will then conduct public hearings before you take action.  26 
If you get to January and decide maybe this is going to affect 27 
the deepwater -- Maybe you decide you’re going to do something 28 
out to sixty or seventy fathoms, I don’t know.  If you do at 29 
that point, you could then schedule a public hearing out there 30 
and they would still have an opportunity. 31 
 32 
MR. MINTON:  With that being said, I will support the original 33 

motion, I think, Bobbi, if you could -- We’re going to have 34 
plenty of time and that’s not a problem and let’s go with what 35 
Bill had originally talked about and that way he feels more 36 
comfortable.  We don’t need to move it to the west to 37 
accommodate those possible things now. 38 
 39 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  This is a substitute motion, I believe.  Are 40 
we ready to vote on the substitute motion?  All those in favor 41 
of the substitute motion say aye; all opposed.  The motion 42 
carries.  We’ll move forward, Mr. Minton. 43 

 44 
MR. MINTON:  Consideration of Establishment of a Vessel 45 

Monitoring System AP, Dr. Crabtree noted that fishermen have 46 
requested that the council create a VMS AP to provide advice on 47 
managing and improving the VMS program.  He supported the 48 
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creation of such a panel.  The panel could consist of fishing 1 
industry representatives, law enforcement, and VMS vendors.  The 2 
committee recommended, and I so move, to establish a Vessel 3 
Monitoring System Advisory Panel. 4 
 5 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 6 
discussion?  Are we ready to vote on the motion?  All those in 7 
favor of the committee motion -- The motion is to establish a 8 
Vessel Monitoring System Advisory Panel.  All those in favor of 9 
the motion say aye; all opposed.  The motion carries. 10 
 11 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  Just a question as to when 12 

would you want to do that and when would you want for us to put 13 
it up on the website and start soliciting and ask council 14 
members to provide names of people who might want to participate 15 
on that?  When you would you anticipate appointing this advisory 16 
panel?  The normal reappointment schedule for all of our 17 
advisory panels would be April. 18 
 19 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  What’s the council’s desire?  Do you want to 20 

start soliciting for it now, so we can do it April? 21 
 22 
MS. MORRIS:  Just do it at our regular -- When we prepare for 23 

our April meeting. 24 
 25 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  But we would go ahead and 26 

start soliciting and council members provide us with names and 27 
whatnot anytime between now and April?  Thank you. 28 
 29 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Dr. Leard.  Go ahead, Mr. Minton. 30 

 31 
MR. MINTON:  Under Other Business, Dr. Leard noted that 32 

Amendment 30B included a proposed seasonal area restriction on 33 
all fishing under council jurisdiction in the Edges forty fathom 34 
area.  However, the council had not voted to request that the 35 
Highly Migratory Species Division implement compatible 36 
regulations. 37 
 38 
The committee recommended, and I so move, to write a letter to 39 
HMS requesting that a seasonal closure of the Edges in Reef Fish 40 
30B also apply to HMS species. 41 
 42 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 43 

discussion?   44 
 45 
DR. CRABTREE:  We have another issue with HMS that I would like 46 

to address in this same letter.  If you recall, when we 47 
originally established the Madison-Swanson and Steamboat Lumps 48 
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closures, they sunsetted and then we got a compatible regulation 1 
with HMS and that has a sunset.  We then came in and made those 2 
closures open-ended and took our sunset off, but the HMS sunset 3 
still exists and those closures, from an HMS perspective, are 4 
going to expire. 5 
 6 
I don’t know if I can -- Can I amend this motion to add -- I 7 
would like to amend this motion to also ask HMS to remove the 8 
sunset provision for the Madison-Swanson and Steamboat Lump 9 
closures. 10 
 11 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Do we have a second?  Second by Mr. Gill.  12 

Is there discussion on the amendment?  Hearing none, we’re ready 13 
to vote.  All those in favor of the amendment say aye; all those 14 
opposed like sign.  The motion carries. 15 
 16 

We’ll go back to the committee motion and this will be the 17 
committee motion as amended and we haven’t voted on the motion 18 
yet.  The motion as amended is to write a letter to HMS 19 
requesting that a seasonal closure of the Edges in Reef Fish 30B 20 
also apply to HMS species and to ask also HMS to remove the 21 
sunset provision for the Steamboat Lumps and Madison-Swanson 22 
Marine Reserves.  Is there any other discussion?  Hearing none, 23 
are we ready to vote?  All those in favor say aye; all opposed 24 
like sign.  The motion carries. 25 
 26 
MR. MINTON:  Andy Strelcheck brought several red snapper IFQ 27 

issues to the attention of the committee and suggested that they 28 
be discussed further at full council.  Andy, are you ready for 29 
that now? 30 
 31 
MR. STRELCHECK:  I’ll make this brief, since it’s late in the 32 

day.  As I mentioned during committee, there’s some provisions 33 
with the red snapper IFQ program that have arisen, largely law 34 
enforcement issues, and we would like to make a few changes to 35 
the regulations as they pertain to the red snapper IFQ, but we 36 
wanted to bring them to your attention, because we want to make 37 
sure that not only the changes take place in the red snapper 38 
IFQ, but those are also reflected as part of the grouper IFQ and 39 
any modifications to language in Amendment 29 would be 40 
consistent with how we intend to craft these regulations. 41 
 42 
At this point, our recommendation for landing requirements, 43 
currently the regulations indicate that you have to be an IFQ 44 
allocation holder or be a designee onboard the vessel in order 45 
to land red snapper and sell it.   46 
 47 
We’re proposing a modification supported by law enforcement that 48 
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would set up vessel accounts and sufficient allocation would 1 
have to be part of the vessel accounts and that when the three-2 
hour notification is made for red snapper landing, that the 3 
vessel information be provided and law enforcement would be able 4 
to ensure that the vessel has sufficient allocation in order to 5 
land that red snapper. 6 
 7 
In doing so, there’s a provision with the IFQ program that 8 
allows for designees for IFQ allocation holders, as long as it’s 9 
onboard that same vessel.  We propose eliminating that 10 
provision.  It would be unnecessary, because the allocation 11 
would then be tied to the vessel itself and not to the 12 
allocation holder or their designee. 13 
 14 
Then the third major change that we would like to make is that 15 
we have a requirement for an IFQ vessel endorsement.  We don’t 16 
really see the need for that endorsement anymore.  You have to 17 
have a Gulf of Mexico reef fish permit at this time, plus you 18 
have to have an IFQ account established with allocation in order 19 
to land red snapper. 20 
 21 
We believe those two things are adequate and sufficient and that 22 
the vessel endorsement isn’t necessary and so we would like to 23 
remove that requirement and would also obviously remove that as 24 
part of the grouper proposed IFQ program. 25 
 26 
Two other issues that I just want to mention to you, we’re 27 
trying to think ahead, knowing that in three years now there 28 
will be changes in terms of who can enter the red snapper 29 
fishery.  You won’t have to have a reef fish permit at that 30 
time.  One of the information technology problems we have right 31 
now with our data system is that we have it tied to our permits 32 
database. 33 
 34 
If you’re a reef fish permit holder, we have all your contact 35 
information and that helps us to populate then our IFQ data 36 
system.  In three years, you don’t have to hold a permit in 37 
order to be able to purchase that IFQ allocation and so we’re 38 
going to have to come up with a way to collect that information, 39 
ensure that we have all that contact information, and can track 40 
it.  That will certainly be something that we need to address in 41 
terms of rulemaking in the near future. 42 
 43 
One other issue that’s arisen, we haven’t implemented it at this 44 
point, but what we would consider is the three-hour notification 45 
isn’t tied to when they sell the fish.  There is, I guess, a 46 
possibility that we could set up the system so that you couldn’t 47 
actually sell your landings until three hours has passed, to 48 
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prevent fishermen from landing and offloading and trying to sell 1 
the catch in a time window that’s less than three hours.  We 2 
discussed that and there’s been no decision made. 3 
 4 
With that, we just wanted to bring these to your attention and 5 
certainly if you had any questions or concerns, I’ll be happy to 6 
answer them. 7 
 8 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Andy.  What is the desire of the 9 

council?  That’s a pretty good sized laundry list at this point 10 
in time.  Is there discussion? 11 
 12 
MR. GILL:  Given the hour of the day, I think it may be 13 

appropriate, if you’re agreeable, to reconvene Reef Fish to 14 
address those issues in the morning. 15 
 16 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  I think we’re all brain dead. 17 

 18 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Andy, you added things to your list since 19 

committee, is that right, of your want list or are they 20 
identical to what you showed us previously? 21 
 22 
MR. STRELCHECK:  You didn’t have any information previously.  We 23 

found out that this didn’t make it into the briefing book and so 24 
this is a document that was provided prior to the council 25 
meeting and emailed.  I didn’t discuss all of these issues 26 
during committee.  We chose to wait until full council to bring 27 
these up. 28 
 29 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Could we get a handout of this, so we can at 30 

least read it and think about it tonight? 31 
 32 
MR. STRELCHECK:  Trish should have emailed you yesterday. 33 

 34 
MS. WILLIAMS:  That doesn’t mean anything to me.  I’ve got to 35 

have a hard copy. 36 
 37 
MR. STRELCHECK:  We can, I’m sure, get hard copies. 38 

 39 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  I guess my question, Andy, is how critical 40 

is this that it be done at this meeting? 41 
 42 
MR. STRELCHECK:  The only implication in terms of the council 43 

right now is that we are going to be going out to referendum 44 
with the grouper IFQ and so to the extent that you’re supportive 45 
of these changes, we can make changes as necessary in that 46 
amendment, so that it goes out to the fishermen as we propose 47 
the system. 48 
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 1 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I think it goes a little further than that, Andy.  2 

You’re saying you want to make changes to the red snapper IFQ.  3 
The fishermen have got to know that we’ve made changes somehow 4 
and how are they going to know of what you’re wanting to do?  5 
Does it change anything?  I’ll ask Roy.  Does it change anything 6 
as to how they operate or report or anything like that?  I would 7 
hate to see them get a violation because they didn’t know this. 8 
 9 
DR. CRABTREE:  There will be a change to the regulations.  We’ll 10 

publish a proposed rule and send out a Fishery Bulletin.  There 11 
will be a comment period on it and then we’ll publish a final 12 
rule.  This won’t just be done and no one knows.  We have 13 
authority under the program to make administrative changes to 14 
how the program works.  Really, as Andy said, one, we want to 15 
see if anyone here has a problem with these changes and make 16 
sure we’re doing the right thing and then two, we probably need 17 
to be consistent in Amendment 29, if we think we’re going to 18 
need to make these changes. 19 
 20 
We either ought to go ahead and indicate it in Amendment 29 and 21 
make the change there or, at minimum, put into Amendment 29 that 22 
we’re looking at two potential ways to do it, so that when it 23 
goes out for the referendum between now and your next meeting 24 
that it has that information in the amendment. 25 
 26 
MS. WILLIAMS:  One other quick question to Andy.  Andy, these 27 

accounts that you’re talking about, especially since red snapper 28 
-- It’s been there for a while and I think we’re allowing 29 
certain changes after so many years.  Does that mean everybody 30 
that leases a share or owns a share, no matter how small that 31 
may be, will have to go out and set up one of these accounts? 32 
 33 
MR. STRELCHECK:  Yes, everyone that participates in the program 34 

has to have an IFQ account.  The way we envision these vessel 35 
accounts is that it would be within the existing IFQ account 36 
setup.  We would just set up the internal structure of how it 37 
would work a little bit differently, but you would have to 38 
ensure that allocation is placed in that vessel account, so that 39 
when you land the fish that allocation is sufficient to cover 40 
those landings. 41 
 42 
MS. WILLIAMS:  What if I own it and I don’t have a vessel?  43 

Nothing says that I’ve got to have a vessel to own it.  That was 44 
never the intent. 45 
 46 
MR. STRELCHECK:  Correct.  You’re implying then that you 47 

wouldn’t be fishing it, correct? 48 
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 1 
MS. WILLIAMS:  No, I wouldn’t be fishing it, but I may own it 2 

and I may want to lease it at some point in time, but I don’t 3 
have a vessel and so when you say tie it to a vessel, that kind 4 
of scares me. 5 
 6 
MR. STRELCHECK:  You would still have an IFQ account at that 7 

point and if you are leasing it to someone else, then the 8 
allocation would have to be placed in whoever you’re leasing it 9 
to, their vessel account at that point, in order for them to 10 
operate and land that allocation. 11 
 12 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We’ve got a couple of options here.  I think 13 

we’re all getting brain dead.  It’s been a long day.  I would 14 
suggest that we take a look at the handout that Andy has.  Ms. 15 
Williams, we’ll get you a hard copy and anybody else that would 16 
like it.  Let’s take a hard look at that and we’ll recess until 17 
eight o’clock in the morning. 18 
 19 
MR. MINTON:  I’ve got one last paragraph, I think. 20 

 21 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Okay, go ahead. 22 

 23 
MR. MINTON:  Mr. Grimes discussed an issue regarding how 24 

allocations are determined under the grouper IFQ system of 25 
Amendment 29.  The amendment does not explain how allocations 26 
are determined if there is a change in the TAC or in the 27 
commercial/recreational allocation of TAC. 28 
 29 
He suggested that it be clarified in the materials that will be 30 
sent out for the referendum that the commercial quotas will be 31 
determined by multiplying the commercial allocation by the TAC.  32 
The committee considered this presentation to be informational 33 
only, and no action was needed.  Mr. Chairman, that concludes 34 
the report. 35 
 36 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Minton.  Is there -- 37 

 38 
MR. GRIMES:  One thing I just wanted to correct is that 39 

currently the amendment explains how changes in TAC are handled 40 
under the program and this committee or this council has had 41 
some discussion in the past that changes in allocation are not 42 
tied to the IFQ program and so changes in allocation would be 43 
handled the same way changes in TAC are and that is simply that 44 
the amount of fish that go into the program are allocation times 45 
the total TAC and that’s the commercial quota for the year that 46 
gets divided up under the program. 47 
 48 
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I just wanted everyone to be clear and understand and agree to 1 
allow staff to get together and put that clarifying language in 2 
the appropriate places in the document before it is sent out to 3 
eligible voters in the referendum.  That is it, thank you. 4 
 5 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  What’s the council’s desire relative to this 6 

issue?  I would suggest that we recess until -- 7 
 8 
MS. FOOTE:  You had suggested eight o’clock, but the public 9 

thinks that mariculture is coming up at 8:30 and so if we do 10 
start at eight, I would suggest that it be other topics than the 11 
joint committee report.  Reef Fish might be just a few minutes. 12 
 13 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  After reconsidering my previous statement, 14 

8:30 would be a very appropriate time to start and so we will 15 
carry over --  16 
 17 
MR. GRIMES:  Just so the record reflects it, everyone concurred 18 

with staff doing that.  Nobody said anything.  They just kind of 19 
looked around and shook their heads and so yes indeed -- 20 
 21 
MS. WALKER:  I’m too brain dead, and I want that on the record, 22 

to concur with anything. 23 
 24 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  The council concurs that we will recess 25 

until 8:30 in the morning and we’ll finish these several items 26 
and move to the Aquaculture Amendment.  Thank you all. 27 
 28 
(Whereupon, the meeting recessed at 5:55 p.m., October 29, 29 
2008.) 30 
 31 

- - - 32 
 33 

October 30, 2008 34 
 35 

THURSDAY MORNING SESSION 36 
 37 

- - - 38 
 39 
The Full Council of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 40 
Council reconvened in the Bon Secour Bay Room of the Renaissance 41 
Hotel, Mobile, Alabama, Tuesday morning, October 30, 2008, and 42 
was called to order at 8:30 a.m. by Chairman Tom McIlwain. 43 
 44 
CHAIRMAN TOM MCILWAIN:  All the council member take their seats, 45 

please, and let’s call our meeting to order.  We completed 46 
yesterday the Reef Fish Committee report and we had an item 47 
relative to some of the regulations of the IFQ, red snapper IFQ, 48 
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that they’re proposing to change some operational rules with.  1 
Andy, would you kind of refresh our memories?  I think everybody 2 
was about brain dead yesterday at that point and so if you would 3 
refresh our memories and bring us back up to date. 4 
 5 
MR. STRELCHECK:  I won’t go into detail, but essentially, 6 

yesterday I was bringing to your attention some suggested 7 
changes that we would like to make to the IFQ program.  Any 8 
changes that are made would have to be through rulemaking.  We 9 
wanted to get your input on these proposed changes, if you had 10 
any concerns with what we were suggesting. 11 
 12 
The reason we were bringing it forward to you at this meeting 13 
was the fact that it will also relate to the grouper IFQ program 14 
that’s proposed in Amendment 29 and we would like to make sure 15 
that whatever language is in Amendment 29 would be consistent 16 
with the recommendations coming forth from this meeting, but 17 
whatever changes take place will still have to be published in 18 
the Federal Register and go through proposed and final 19 
rulemaking. 20 
 21 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  You had a handout and also it was emailed to 22 

you the day before yesterday.  Does anybody have any questions 23 
or comments or concerns? 24 
 25 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Shep, this question is to you.  It’s going to be 26 

a real easy one.  You’re not going to have to go look up a bunch 27 
of stuff.  With the council adopting these changes -- I don’t 28 
have the amendment in front of me and I don’t know how it 29 
changes anything, if it changes anything substantially. 30 
 31 
I know those guys had a referendum that they went to and they 32 
voted on the plan as it stood.  With these changes, are these 33 
guys going to have to go back out and vote again? 34 
 35 
MR. GRIMES:  No, certainly not.  This is just red snapper, 36 

right?  What’s going to happen -- These are largely just 37 
administrative details as to how we implement some of the 38 
specifics of the program and we want to make both any eventual 39 
grouper IFQ and a red snapper IFQ be identical in that respect, 40 
with regard to the online tracking and creation of accounts and 41 
landing notification and all that. 42 
 43 
Most of this is just housekeeping and I think it’s something 44 
that the Fisheries Service could do on its own, certainly, based 45 
on some of the provisions that are in the red snapper plan, but 46 
I believe they wanted to bring it back to the council to make 47 
sure that you had input on it and agreed with what they were 48 



 106 

considering doing. 1 
 2 
MS. WILLIAMS:  If I may, one quick question to Andy.  Now, I can 3 

go out there and I can buy these shares and I can put these 4 
shares -- Do I have to put my shares into one of these accounts 5 
before I go out there and perhaps sell them to someone else? 6 
 7 
MR. STRELCHECK:  The way the program would work is if you’ve 8 

harvested red snapper and you’re coming back to shore -- By the 9 
time you’ve had your three-hour notification, you would have to 10 
inform us of what vessel you’re coming in on, how much you’re 11 
expecting to land, and that vessel account associated with the 12 
particular vessel you’re coming in on must have sufficient 13 
allocation to cover the landings that you are reporting. 14 
 15 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I guess the answer is I can hold them and not 16 

have them in an account, because you’re only using these 17 
accounts to help enforce to make sure that whomever is landing 18 
these fish, that they have them in an account.  Is that right? 19 
 20 
MR. STRELCHECK:  That’s correct. 21 

 22 
MS. MORRIS:  Andy, you’ve posed choices or suggestions in three 23 

topic areas and so the first is the landing limitation that Kay 24 
has been talking about and I would suggest that the council’s 25 
preference in that is these vessel accounts. 26 
 27 
The second is red snapper IFQ assignees and I would suggest that 28 
the best solution there would be to define what’s meant by 29 
assigned allocation in the definitions.  Then the third is the 30 
IFQ vessel endorsement and it seems like your recommendation, 31 
which I would concur with, is that we should eliminate this 32 
requirement. 33 
 34 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Andy, do you want to respond? 35 

 36 
MR. STRELCHECK:  Let me respond to the second part.  Defining 37 

the IFQ vessel assignees wouldn’t be necessary if we set up 38 
these vessel accounts, because at that point anyone onboard on 39 
the vessel would be covered by the allocations assigned to the 40 
vessel. 41 
 42 
MR. GILL:  Andy, I guess that gets to the heart of my question, 43 

which is your preference on the landing limitation is the vessel 44 
account, as opposed to the first paragraph under proposed 45 
solutions, which changes the three-hour notification 46 
requirements.  Your rationale for doing that is that you don’t 47 
have to mess with the second problem and is that a fair 48 
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assessment? 1 
 2 
MR. STRELCHECK:  With regard to the assignees?  Yes.  The same 3 

would be true also of the vessel accounts.  If you create the 4 
vessel accounts, you wouldn’t have to deal with assignees at 5 
that point.  Either option -- One of the first two options under 6 
that landing limitation would cover essentially the second 7 
issue, if selected.  It would do away with assignees and tie the 8 
allocation to the vessel or to an individual account holder at 9 
the time of three-hour notification. 10 
 11 
MR. GILL:  My point of confusion is that I differ from Julie’s 12 

position that if you just take the landing limitation by itself, 13 
I would go with the KISS system and the simplest one is the 14 
first proposed solution, which is just to modify the call-in 15 
solutions, but if I understand this right, that when you wrap 16 
around the vessel account that it eliminates the second problem 17 
-- The second problem still has to be addressed if the call-in 18 
procedure is modified and so you’ve added some complexity of 19 
what was originally a simple, at least to me, answer, but the 20 
vessel accounts wipes the slate clean on two issues and so do I 21 
have that right? 22 
 23 
MR. RIECHERS:  I’m kind of like Mr. Gill.  I actually like the 24 

first solution better and the reason I like the first solution 25 
better is it seems to me, Andy, and correct me if I’m wrong, but 26 
that one is the one that allows the most flexibility if someone 27 
is trying to land those fish and still obtain quota for them for 28 
some reason. 29 
 30 
Let’s say it was the end of the season and they’re over theirs 31 
and they’re trying to obtain quota or it’s the middle of the 32 
season and they’re over theirs and they’re trying to obtain 33 
quota.  As they obtain it, then they just basically call in and 34 
identify which IFQ shares that’s going to mark against. 35 
 36 
It seems to me that if we go the other route that we’re kind of 37 
creating another complexity of always having to know the vessel 38 
prior to, so that it can somehow be assigned.  It’s almost a 39 
prior to the trip kind of thing or two people are going to be 40 
having to call in in some way, one to assign a vessel to land 41 
IFQ shares for it and then the other one to call in and say I’m 42 
fixing to land snapper, under those shares.  Is that basically 43 
correct? 44 
 45 
MR. STRELCHECK: I’ll ask Tracy to come up and talk from a law 46 

enforcement perspective, because the second -- The vessel 47 
account system is actually the preference from a law enforcement 48 
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perspective and in terms of what you’re asking, the vessel 1 
itself would have to be assigned allocation at the point that 2 
it’s coming in to land those fish and making that three-hour 3 
notification. 4 
 5 
They’re going to have to somehow, if they don’t have allocation, 6 
locate someone that does have allocation and is willing to 7 
transfer it to their vessel account. 8 
 9 
MR. RIECHERS:  That is a two-step notification.  The first 10 

person would have to notify and say here’s a vessel that’s going 11 
to be coming in and I want them to be included as a landing 12 
vessel under my account and then the call to actually say you’re 13 
fixing to come land fish would have to come in from the vessel 14 
itself. 15 
 16 
MR. STRELCHECK:  Maybe I’m misunderstanding you, but I’m viewing 17 

it as a one-step process in terms of a landing notification.  18 
The three hours -- You’re going to tell us that I’m on Vessel 19 
ABC and I’m landing this amount of poundage on the vessel.  The 20 
law enforcement would then be able to go in and check do you 21 
have a vessel account and is that vessel account sufficient in 22 
terms of allocation to cover the landings that you’re reporting 23 
you’re going to come in and land. 24 
 25 
The whole issue of getting the allocation into that account is 26 
separate from any of the process that we deal with in terms of 27 
notification.  That’s going to be on an IFQ-holder-by-IFQ-holder 28 
basis and individual transactions occurring back and forth 29 
between the allocation holders that we don’t receive any 30 
information on, beyond just the transfers themselves. 31 
 32 
MR. GRIMES:  I’m the advocate of this vessel approach.  It was 33 

actually something that I had come up with and I’ve been pushing 34 
internally as well and from the discussions we’ve had, everybody 35 
who is a shareholder in this system automatically gets an 36 
account. 37 
 38 
We have a lot of shareholders who no longer have reef fish 39 
permits and they don’t have any fishing vessel.  They just get 40 
their shares every year and then they turn around and sell the 41 
allocation.  What happens is in the database or the electronic 42 
system that tracks all this, they end up setting up a series of 43 
accounts and they’re assignee accounts, someone who never had 44 
any share and is not a shareholder in the program, but has a 45 
reef fish permit and may have a vessel or may not have a vessel. 46 
 47 
You end with this complicated string of accounts that are there 48 



 109 

and the person who is calling in or trying to make sure -- Let 1 
me say -- You have a shareholder or you have somebody who has 2 
allocation in their account and they’re trying to make sure that 3 
the allocation is in the proper account when that person comes 4 
to land the red snapper, because right now the requirement is 5 
that when a vessel comes to the dock to land snapper that the 6 
person landing that red snapper has to have sufficient IFQ 7 
allocation in the account to cover the transaction and it’s 8 
gotten very convoluted. 9 
 10 
A lot of times, the people calling in or notifying have a number 11 
of accounts and they’re trying to figure out which account to 12 
tie it to and it’s become somewhat of an issue tracking all of 13 
it.  My suggestion has been that the one thing that you are 14 
going to absolutely know when you come to land red snapper is 15 
what vessel it’s on. 16 
 17 
The fish are always going to come on a vessel and so requiring 18 
that vessel to have an account and that allocation to be in the 19 
account for that vessel is the easiest way of tracking it and 20 
you won’t end up with this one individual with a long chain of 21 
accounts for let’s say his captain, who has an assignee account, 22 
and maybe another captain who has an assignee account and trying 23 
to keep the linkages of all this stuff together. 24 
 25 
MR. RIECHERS:  I certainly understand the simplification on 26 

National Marine Fisheries Service’s end if you were to go that 27 
way, Shep, but if I’m an owner and I have multiple vessels 28 
fishing under my account and I end up, because of my lack of -- 29 
I somehow didn’t account for it the same way it got landed 30 
exactly and I’m short in a particular vessel account, I don’t 31 
want you to tell me that I can’t land those fish or I don’t want 32 
you to give me a violation.  What I want you to do is tag it to 33 
the other vessel accounts that I might have under my particular 34 
name in that case or assigned to that particular IFQ share. 35 
 36 
Now, I think all of that can be worked out if you wanted to have 37 
tolerances and -- It seems like we’re just overcomplicating it 38 
by having this special vessel situation.   39 
 40 
I understand your viewpoint of yes, it’s real easy if that 41 
vessel has the share then they can land the share, but if there 42 
are multiple vessel accounts tied to an individual shareholder, 43 
it seems that as long as that individual shareholder has some 44 
quota left, you go ahead and accept those landings and you just 45 
take it away from wherever he has it at that point in time and 46 
then it’s up to him or her to come in and reassign that if they 47 
need to, based on the next vessel that’s going to go out or what 48 
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have you.  It seems to me we’re creating a system that’s going 1 
to cause more problems than it may fix in the long run.  That’s 2 
just my take. 3 
 4 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Mr. Grimes, to that point. 5 

 6 
MR. GRIMES:  You already have individuals who have multiple 7 

accounts and let’s say I’m the guy, I’m the shareholder, and I 8 
have four vessels that I own and operate for me.  I have a main 9 
account that I get all of my shares issued to originally.  I can 10 
go online and they’re like bank accounts. 11 
 12 
I can transfer the allocation to the different vessel accounts 13 
and if I come to -- If I have a vessel, Vessel A, coming to the 14 
dock and it has 1,000 pounds and I transfer that over to that 15 
vessel.  If I have another vessel coming in, I transfer it over 16 
to that one.   17 
 18 
It’s all done online and I think it will, in the end, certainly 19 
simplify things, because as it stands now, there are 20 
shareholders who end up with three or four different accounts 21 
and when they’re coming in -- We’ve had instances where people 22 
are calling in or coming in with red snapper and they’re saying 23 
they don’t know or which account is it and I’m calling in from 24 
Vessel A, but I’m using Account 1 and then you don’t have enough 25 
allocation in Account 1.  Then they’ll hang up and call back and 26 
I’m on Vessel 2 and do I have enough in that account?  It makes 27 
it -- Because that one individual ends up with all those 28 
different accounts, it’s just made it more complicated. 29 
 30 
DR. CRABTREE:  If I could, we need to rely as little as possible 31 

on call-ins.  We’ve had a lot of problems with call-ins, because 32 
remember when they call in, they’re generally calling an 33 
answering service, unless they’re calling in during normal work 34 
hours, and these people turn over. 35 
 36 
I think it’s in Charleston that we use and there’s a high 37 
turnover of people and they don’t understand the complexities of 38 
the system and the more information they have to collect on 39 
call-ins, the more things get confused. 40 
 41 
These folks are calling in on cell phones and the connections 42 
are bad and there are all kinds of problems with that and so 43 
we’ve been trying to get away from call-ins, to the extent we 44 
can.  That’s my concern with the first solution, is it seems to 45 
add more things that you’re going to have to provide when you 46 
call in and my experience has been that’s not very efficient. 47 
 48 
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MS. WILLIAMS:  I don’t understand.  Shep, you’re talking about 1 

tying it to these vessel accounts and I thought what I heard 2 
originally was that I can own shares and I don’t have to have a 3 
vessel.  I’m just sitting there and I’m holding them and I don’t 4 
know who I’m going to sell them to. 5 
 6 
If for some reason down the line we want the commercial industry 7 
to be able to lease, sell, whatever, to other entities, 8 
charterboats, private recreational, talk about a nightmare tying 9 
it to those vessels.  I like the idea of an account.  You’re out 10 
there and you’re fishing and as long as it’s in your account, 11 
you’re covered. 12 
 13 
MR. GRIMES:  It will be no different in terms of individuals 14 

being able to have accounts after you change the requirement 15 
that the vessel account be the one with sufficient IFQ in it.  16 
Right now, like I said, you’ll have -- It’s based on the person 17 
on the vessel that’s landing the fish and it’s the person 18 
landing the red snapper. 19 
 20 
That person landing the red snapper may be some captain that you 21 
could have just pulled off the dock to run your vessel and in 22 
order to have that person land the red snapper, you’re going to 23 
have to create an assignee account, I believe it’s the way it’s 24 
handled now, and then that person’s account is tied to your 25 
account and in some cases, you may have multiple layers of 26 
assignee accounts and it just gets complicated. 27 
 28 
You don’t know who is landing the fish necessarily from -- 29 
Tomorrow, you may end up -- Your captain is sick or you have 30 
some problem and you put somebody else in there at the last 31 
minute and then all of a sudden you’ve got to create another 32 
account to track that. 33 
 34 
Again, the vessel account is just going to be on top of the 35 
regular shareholder account, so that if you do hire a new 36 
captain or you do have a new crew change, that vessel has its 37 
account and when that vessel comes in, there has to be enough 38 
IFQ in that account to cover it and you don’t have to worry 39 
about making sure that the individual who is coming in with it 40 
has an account created and transferring from some other account 41 
and it may have been the person you expected to be your captain 42 
for that trip. 43 
 44 
I think my expectation is that we’ll actually reduce the total 45 
number of accounts that you have out there and it will make it 46 
easier to track, but it’s not doing anything to limit the 47 
capability of a shareholder to transfer their shares around or 48 
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have an individual account, even if they don’t have a vessel. 1 
 2 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion? 3 

 4 
MR. GILL:  I would like to move that we modify the red snapper 5 
IFQ system to establish vessel accounts and the vessel landing 6 
red snapper have sufficient IFQ allocation in its account to 7 
cover the red snapper being landed. 8 
 9 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Do we have a second? 10 

 11 
MS. MORRIS:  Second. 12 

 13 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We have a motion and a second.  Is there 14 

additional discussion? 15 
 16 
MR. PERRET:  I’ve obviously missed a large part of this 17 

conversation.  Is this an issue for the Service or has the 18 
holders of the IFQ stated that there’s a problem that they want 19 
addressed?  If it’s just a government problem, let’s let the 20 
government fix it without putting additional burdens on the 21 
industry.  Has the industry come forward with this request? 22 
 23 
DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t know if the industry has come forward 24 

with it or not.  Have we heard anything from them about this?  25 
We’re going to go out with a proposed rule and have public 26 
comment on it and so the industry will have an opportunity to 27 
look at what we’re doing and comment on it. 28 
 29 
Remember too that one of the reasons we’ve come to you on this -30 
- We could have just done this, but we think we need to change 31 
Amendment 29, the grouper IFQ, in a consistent way with what 32 
we’re doing here and that we need your okay with to do and we 33 
need to do it before we send it out for the referendum. 34 
 35 
MR. PERRET:  If I may, it’s one thing to propose something and 36 

then ask for input.  Why not utilize one of our advisory panels 37 
and see what the industry thinks about this before the Service 38 
puts something out and then they’ve got to respond? 39 
 40 
DR. CRABTREE:  Because, Corky, we’re getting ready to go out on 41 

the IFQ referendum for the grouper amendment and we don’t have 42 
time to convene all those and do those things.  We’ve published 43 
the final rule now on the voting procedures and so we need to 44 
get that one ready to go on it.  It’s a timing kind of thing 45 
that we need to get it done and there’s a relatively short time 46 
period to do it. 47 
 48 
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MR. GRIMES:  I wanted to add that some of your concern for 1 

industry -- The way the current system is set up and the 2 
confusion with who is on the vessel and who is landing the red 3 
snapper, it’s resulted in NOVAs being issued to fishermen 4 
because of this related confusion.  This hopefully will resolve 5 
that problem and make it clear for them. 6 
 7 
As I said from the beginning, my view is that the people may 8 
change, but there has to be a vessel there landing the fish and 9 
tying the account to the vessel is the easiest way to do it.  10 
People are going to come and go from the fishery.  Their 11 
accounts may come and go, but the fish aren’t jumping up on the 12 
dock.  They’re being brought there in a vessel and those vessels 13 
all have permits and if they have accounts, that’s the easiest 14 
way to track and monitor this, both from the industry’s 15 
standpoint and from enforcement’s. 16 
 17 
MR. PERRET:  I will agree with Dr. Crabtree on the phone-in 18 

system.  I’ve been with an individual who has tried to phone in 19 
from a cell phone.  It wasn’t a good system, but yet this is a 20 
system that we put on fishermen and they are trying to comply 21 
with it.  Hopefully, insofar as that aspect of call-in, 22 
something better will be worked out, but I’m still not convinced 23 
that the Service proposing something, without industry input on 24 
the frontend, is the way to address this.  I understand your 25 
time constraints. 26 
 27 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion? 28 

 29 
DR. CRABTREE:  Our goal is to abandon the call-in and to go to 30 

using the VMS units to do all that kind of stuff.  The problem 31 
we’ve had has been technical snags with the vendors who produce 32 
the VMS systems.  I believe, Tracy, that we are close to being 33 
able to do declarations and things on VMS.  Are we not? 34 
 35 
MR. TRACY DUNN:  We were actually hoping to announce today that 36 

we had found all the glitches and had a very smooth test and I 37 
believe we’re right there.  We just haven’t had word back from 38 
Pat that that had happened.  We are very, very close to putting 39 
that in. 40 
 41 
DR. CRABTREE:  I am going to give careful consideration to 42 

requiring that you do these things via VMS and get rid of the 43 
call-in service, unless I’m persuaded we still have to have it 44 
for some reason.  One, it costs us money to do it, but two, it 45 
just doesn’t work very well.  We may be over that hump and we 46 
may be able to abandon the call-ins entirely. 47 
 48 
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CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there any other comment or discussion?  1 
Are we ready to vote on the motion?  All those in favor of the 2 
motion say aye; all opposed.  The motion carries. 3 
 4 
DR. CRABTREE:  It would be our intent then that we also would go 5 

into Amendment 29 and make it consistent with these changes in 6 
Amendment 29 before we go out to the referendum and see folks 7 
shaking their heads in the affirmative and so that is the 8 
council’s intent, Tom? 9 
 10 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  That is the council’s intent, for you to 11 

have compatible rules with 29 and the red snapper IFQ.  Thank 12 
you all.  We’ve got one other item that we need to deal with in 13 
the Reef Fish.  It’s my understanding that -- I’m sorry, Andy.  14 
There were a couple other issues listed at the end of your 15 
presentation and do you want to address those? 16 
 17 
MR. STRELCHECK:  The second item, with regard to assignees, 18 

because of your previous motion, you don’t really need to make 19 
an additional motion.  Our intent would be to remove the 20 
designees from the IFQ system and so that would be unnecessary 21 
at this point. 22 
 23 
Then we are recommending, because you have to have an IFQ 24 
account in order to land red snapper and that account has to 25 
include sufficient allocation for that landing, that the 26 
endorsement is no longer necessary and so we’re recommending 27 
that we not require the endorsement any longer. 28 
 29 
MR. GILL:  I move that the requirement for the vessel 30 
endorsement be deleted. 31 
 32 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Do I have a second? 33 

 34 
MR. TEEHAN:  Second. 35 

 36 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  I’ve got a motion and a second.  Is there 37 

discussion?  Being no discussion, are we ready to vote?  The 38 
motion is to delete the requirement for a vessel endorsement.  39 
All those in favor say aye; all opposed like sign.  The motion 40 
carries.  Continue on, Andy. 41 

 42 
MR. STRELCHECK:  Just to be clear, we’ll make that change also 43 

in Amendment 29, to be consistent.  The other information, I 44 
don’t think you really need to vote or discuss today, but we 45 
wanted to bring those questions to your attention in terms of 46 
other things that might require changes to the program. 47 
 48 
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After the five-year period is up, the initial five years of the 1 
program, you’re allowed to obviously purchase IFQ allocation or 2 
shares if you don’t have a reef fish permit.  Right now, the 3 
problem we have, from an agency standpoint, is we collect all of 4 
the permit information from the reef fish permit holder and use 5 
that to populate our databases.  We’re going to have to come up 6 
with some separate process to track individuals that don’t have 7 
reef fish permits in our IFQ account system.  That’s something 8 
that we’ll have to work on internally. 9 
 10 
Then the other issue is whether or not the council thinks it’s a 11 
good idea to require the three-hour notification to prevent, 12 
essentially, you from landing and selling fish.  The system 13 
would not allow you to sell fish within that three-hour time 14 
window and so you would be prevented, if you hit the dock 15 
earlier than three hours, from selling it.  The system can -- 16 
Right now, it’s my understanding that it can accommodate that, 17 
but we’re not preventing people from doing that.  I just wanted 18 
to bring that to your attention and certainly hear any 19 
discussion you might have on that. 20 
 21 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Are there any comments relative to these two 22 

issues? 23 
 24 
MS. WILLIAMS:  You were talking about tracking and reef fish 25 

permits.  You just told me prior to this motion that we approved 26 
that I did not have to have a vessel.  That also told me that I 27 
didn’t have to have a reef fish permit.  If we’re going to let 28 
anybody buy these, what I thought you said was I can have them.  29 
I don’t have a vessel and I don’t have a reef fish permit and 30 
all I do is open up this account and say that I have IFQ in 31 
there. 32 
 33 
You know who has got them, because you have this main account 34 
that people are now going to draw out of and put in different 35 
vessels.  Wouldn’t you already have a method of knowing, because 36 
of who has got them, because I don’t think the intent was that 37 
you had to have a commercial reef fish permit in order to buy 38 
these. 39 
 40 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Andy, do you want to respond? 41 

 42 
MR. STRELCHECK:  You’re required to have a reef fish permit for 43 

the first five years in order to possess IFQ shares or transfer 44 
them to another reef fish permit holder.  The permits database 45 
is providing us all of the contact information for those 46 
individuals that possess IFQ shares and allocation at this 47 
point. 48 
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 1 
Beyond five years, we won’t be collecting that permit 2 
information if you don’t possess those permits and so we’re 3 
going to have to come up with some sort of separate system or 4 
process in order to track that information. 5 
 6 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Right and I understand what you’re saying, but 7 

I’m talking about after the five years and that’s why I asked 8 
you about these accounts in our discussion away from the table.  9 
Can I have this account with my IFQ shares in it and not have a 10 
vessel or a permit?  You said yes. 11 
 12 
MR. STRELCHECK:  That is correct. 13 

 14 
MS. WILLIAMS:  You can count me that way, right? 15 

 16 
MR. STRELCHECK:  Right.  What we’re concerned about here is just 17 

making sure that we have all the necessary information to track 18 
that particular account and right now, the system ties account 19 
information back to the permits database.  Because you won’t 20 
have a permit, you won’t be in the permits database and so we’re 21 
going to have to have some sort of separate system in order to 22 
track those individuals that don’t possess permits, but do 23 
possess IFQ shares and allocation. 24 
 25 
You will have an IFQ account, but we’ll have to obtain 26 
additional information associated with that account in order to 27 
track those individuals.  That’s all we’re saying. 28 
 29 
MR. MINTON:  Andy, on this three-hour thing, I want to make sure 30 

I understand what you were saying exactly, that if they called 31 
in that they were going to be in within three hours, currently 32 
they could go ahead and sell prior to the three hours.  Is that 33 
what you were saying? 34 
 35 
MR. STRELCHECK:  Yes.  Right now, the system doesn’t prevent 36 

them or lock them out of selling that allocation within that 37 
three-hour time window.  We could certainly, based on when they 38 
call in or provide the notification, prevent them from selling 39 
until that three-hour time window is up.  That three-hour 40 
notification is intended for law enforcement.  They shouldn’t be 41 
selling until that three-hour window has passed.  However, that 42 
has, in some instances, occurred.  This would be a way of 43 
addressing it, from an electronic standpoint. 44 
 45 
MR. MINTON:  I would support that.  I think that may be part of 46 

the problem we’ve had with people coming in and law enforcement 47 
not being there during the timeframe.  I think that’s a good 48 
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idea. 1 
 2 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any other discussion? 3 

 4 
MS. WALKER:  I have a question for Shep, because we’re sitting 5 

here and talking about at the end of five years these other 6 
people are going to buy the IFQ coupons.  Say Jay Doe buys the 7 
coupons and she does not have a reef fish permit.  Can she then 8 
take those fish that are commercial fish on a coupon and fish 9 
for them recreationally? 10 
 11 
MR. GRIMES:  No, not under the current program.  You have to 12 

have -- Even after the five years, you will have to have a reef 13 
fish permit in order to fish the IFQ, but you will be able to 14 
purchase or acquire IFQ without having the reef fish permit.  15 
The way it is now, even some of the people who came in as 16 
shareholders, as initial shareholders, have sold their reef fish 17 
permits and they can no longer acquire new IFQ shares.  They’re 18 
locked in where they are. 19 
 20 
After five years, this is just to facilitate transfer.  I 21 
suspect you all will see brokers popping up and you’ll get 22 
people who never fish any of it and do nothing but trade in IFQ 23 
share. 24 
 25 
MS. WALKER:  Really, when the council, or when we thought that 26 

we had created a plan that after five years these fish could be 27 
bought by anyone, charterboats or private recreational or 28 
environmental groups or whoever -- They can buy them if they 29 
have a reef fish permit, but they really can’t use them unless 30 
they want to commercial fish.  Did I understand that correctly? 31 
 32 
MR. GRIMES:  Yes, you did.  I think, in my understanding, the 33 

council was well aware of that at the time you took action on 34 
the amendment, that it was intended to expand the pool of people 35 
who could acquire it, but it was always a commercial IFQ program 36 
and that IFQ could only be landed by a commercial reef fish 37 
permit holder.  The record was crystal clear on that. 38 
 39 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Right and some of the discussion back then was 40 

the reason it was set up like that is they wanted to make sure 41 
that those fish stayed in the commercial sector, so that the 42 
consumer still had a way to get fish. 43 
 44 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion? 45 

 46 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I would think that if this council, and I’m not 47 

sure if we could or not and I guess legal would have to tell us, 48 
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if the council after the five-year period wanted to allow 1 
someone to buy and catch them recreationally and not have to 2 
have a reef fish permit -- I guess the council could do that, 3 
too.  I don’t know if it would have to go back out to a 4 
referendum or not if you made that substantial change.  Would 5 
it, Shep? 6 
 7 
MR. GRIMES:  I guess I would have to think about that.  I’m not 8 

prepared to answer it at this point.  It would depend on the 9 
nature of the changes overall and I don’t know that simply 10 
changing the requirement to have a commercial reef fish permit 11 
in order to fish the IFQ shares, that in and of itself -- I 12 
would have to think about it.  You can’t pin me down here.  13 
Sorry. 14 
 15 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Think about it and get back to us. 16 

 17 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion?  Andy and 18 

Dr. Crabtree, is this adequate information for you all to move 19 
forward? 20 
 21 
DR. CRABTREE:  Yes, I think so, Mr. Chairman. 22 

 23 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  There’s one other issue relative to Reef 24 
Fish.  There’s been a request for the council to draft a letter 25 
to the Florida Wildlife Conservation Agency to ask them to put 26 
the issue of compatible regulations on their agenda.  Do any of 27 

the Florida folks want to address that?  If not, we’re prepared 28 
to write a letter, I think.  If the council is agreeable, we’ll 29 
write a letter to the Florida Commission, asking that this issue 30 
be put on their agenda. 31 
 32 
MR. GILL:  As Bill has told us, it’s currently not on their 33 

agenda, which means the likelihood of them getting compatible 34 
any time soon is not likely to happen.  Ed brought this issue up 35 
and I think it’s an excellent idea and I fully support it. 36 
 37 
DR. CRABTREE:  If we’re writing such a letter to Florida, why 38 

would we not write a similar letter to Texas and to Alabama?  We 39 
don’t have compatible regulations right now in either of those 40 
states and so I’m not sure why we would single out Florida. 41 
 42 
MR. PERRET:  I had the same question, but I have to assume, Roy, 43 

it’s because of the administrative procedures in Florida.  This 44 
would be to get it on their December agenda and I assume the 45 
other states, it may not be as pressing an item, that they may 46 
be able to take it up in a more timely fashion.  Like Vernon 47 
doesn’t have a commission, as I appreciate it, in Alabama.  You 48 
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do?   1 
 2 
MR. MINTON:  We have an advisory board, Corky.  That’s about it.  3 

They’re advisory. 4 
 5 
MR. PERRET:  The only answer, I guess, is because of the 6 

December administrative procedure type thing. 7 
 8 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Ed, do you want to speak to that? 9 

 10 
MR. SAPP:  I would certainly be agreeable to adding that the 11 

request go to those other states as well.  The reason for 12 
bringing it up as a Florida issue is because of the timing 13 
thing.  My understanding, from talking to Mr. Teehan, is that 14 
they conceivably could get regulations in place in time for the 15 
beginning of the 2009 snapper season, but only if the issue was 16 
on the agenda in December.  As of now, it’s not on the December 17 
agenda, but I also understand that the commission staff is ready 18 
to bring the issue to the commissioners if the request is made. 19 
 20 
MS. MORRIS:  Another reason to have this motion just focus on 21 

the Florida -- It’s not the Game and Fish Commission, but it’s 22 
the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission and if we 23 
could correct the motion that way.  Another reason to limit this 24 
to Florida is because I think if we included Texas that the 25 
motion might fail and I think if we do not include Texas that 26 
the motion has a greater chance of passing. 27 
 28 
MS. FOOTE:  I don’t have any problem with sending it to all the 29 

states if you want to, but I certainly would like at least 30 
Florida’s to pass, if we could get that through.  Just a point 31 
of information, the Louisiana Commission adopts their finfish 32 
seasons at the January meeting and the last January, they 33 
instructed us to be compatible, whatever we needed to do to be 34 
compatible.   35 
 36 
I assume that’s going to be what the instruction is this 37 
January.  It was a strong support last year, but they’ve felt a 38 
little burned by what the other states have done.  I can’t 39 
promise what the commission is going to do, but a word of 40 
encouragement never hurts. 41 
 42 
MR. TEEHAN:  Vernon, it’s my understanding that Alabama chose 43 

the longer season simply because Florida had done the same 44 
thing.  It seems to me that if the Florida Commission decides to 45 
go consistent with the federal season that Alabama would 46 
probably do the same thing? 47 
 48 
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MR. MINTON:  I would assume so.  This went from our 1 

recommendations to have compatible and then the other folks got 2 
involved in it and decided that it wasn’t fair for our people, 3 
who are fishing in Florida a lot too, to have that conflict.  4 
Yes, I think you would probably see that. 5 
 6 
MR. PERRET:  I want to amend the motion.  Whether or not 7 

somebody wants to send letters to Alabama and Texas is fine, but 8 
you’ve got two states that tried to do what was requested of 9 
them.  My amendment would be that a letter also go to the two 10 
states that complied and thank them for their prior compliance 11 
and hopefully they’ll be in compliance next year, because I’m 12 
not sure what my state is going to do now.  That’s an amendment. 13 

 14 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We need a second to that. 15 

 16 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Second. 17 

 18 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We’ve got a motion and a second. 19 

 20 
MR. RIECHERS:  I certainly won’t speak against the amendment, 21 

Corky, to send a letter saying thank you for your compliance, 22 
but, folks, we’re talking about a letter to ask for something 23 
that people are well aware of.  They’re well aware of the issue. 24 
 25 
Us sending another letter at this point I don’t think is going 26 
to change either what they choose to do or whether even they 27 
choose to have it on their agenda.  That’s just my take on this.  28 
It seems to me that we’re just trying to -- I don’t know what 29 
we’re trying to do with this particular motion, other than just 30 
say, again, we would like to visit with you more about this 31 
issue, because that’s really all we’re doing and we’re 32 
continuing to visit with them about that issue and I’m sure 33 
that’s going on in Florida amongst the different factions and 34 
it’s going on in Texas and it’s probably going on in Alabama and 35 
even Mississippi and Louisiana, from what it sounds like, about 36 
what they should or should not do in regards to compatibility, 37 
on this fishery as well as many other fisheries, I might add.  I 38 
don’t really know why we would want to do this at this point. 39 
 40 
MR. PERRET:  Robin, I can understand that position.  My 41 

amendment is simply if we’re going to send a letter asking one 42 
state for compliance, I think we ought to send a letter thanking 43 
the other two for their compliance.  I’m not really sure how 44 
I’ll vote on the original motion, but I sure support the 45 
amendment. 46 
 47 
MR. TEEHAN:  I’ll probably have to abstain on this vote, but 48 
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just as a matter of explanation, Robin, I think the reason that 1 
this approach to writing a letter to Florida is being considered 2 
is for us to get anything in place, if my commission decides 3 
they want to do that, they have a two-phase process, two 4 
meetings. 5 
 6 
One has to deal with a draft rule or proposed draft rule and one 7 
has to do with a final public hearing.  Our season is scheduled 8 
to open on the 15th of April.  We only have two commission 9 
meetings between now and then to be able to get that done.  One 10 
is in December and the other is in February. 11 
 12 
In order for the commission to even consider consistency, or any 13 
changes, for that matter, to red snapper, they would have to 14 
bring it up in December.  I think that’s the motivation behind 15 
sending this letter.  We do have a process to get this into the 16 
meeting, under Federal Issues.   17 
 18 
It doesn’t have to be an agenda item specifically for red 19 
snapper, because we brief the commission at every one of the 20 
meetings on what happens at the council meetings.  We do have a 21 
placeholder, if you will, on the agenda for it, but I think the 22 
commission really needs to know that there is interest from the 23 
council that we take it up and consider it.  I know that there’s 24 
certain factions of the for-hire sector in Florida that are 25 
going to petition the commission to do the same thing. 26 
 27 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion? 28 

 29 
MS. FOOTE:  Corky, I don’t think the amendment reads exactly as 30 

you wanted it. 31 
 32 
MR. PERRET:  What I want is a letter thanking the two states 33 

that did comply with the regulation and ask for continued 34 
assistance with compliance in the future, I guess, something to 35 
that effect. 36 
 37 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Corky, is that better? 38 

 39 
MR. PERRET:  I’m happy to see Mississippi before Louisiana.  40 

Yes, that looks all right. 41 
 42 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion on the 43 

amendment?  Are we ready to vote on the amendment?  The 44 
amendment reads that a letter also go to Mississippi and 45 
Louisiana, thanking them for complying with federal red snapper 46 
regulations and asking for future compliance.  All those in 47 
favor say aye; all opposed.  The motion carries. 48 
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 1 

That brings us back to the original motion and it’s now amended.  2 
We have an amended motion and that motion reads: To request that 3 
staff send a letter on behalf of the council to the Florida Fish 4 
and Wildlife Conservation Commission requesting that they add 5 
consideration of new red snapper regulations to their December 6 
agenda and that a letter also go to Mississippi and Louisiana 7 
thanking them for complying with federal red snapper regulations 8 
and asking for future compliance.  All those in favor say aye; 9 
all opposed.  The motion carries. 10 
 11 
MR. TEEHAN:  I would like the record to show that I abstained on 12 

this vote.  Corky, should we send a little gift to Mississippi 13 
and Louisiana also with that letter? 14 
 15 
MR. PERRET:  Whatever you think would be appropriate, Mr. 16 

Teehan. 17 
 18 
MR. RIECHERS:  Mr. Chairman, I would like to offer a motion, if 19 

I could.  This motion is the motion that we discussed in the Ad 20 
Hoc Allocation Committee yesterday.  It’s to charge the Reef 21 
Fish Committee to use our current allocation guidance principles 22 
to explore the reallocation issues of those species and 23 
allocation discussions which were removed from the Reef Fish 24 
Amendments 30A and 30B. 25 
 26 

As we discussed yesterday, this just begins the process to make 27 
sure that we start putting some time in our agenda to start 28 
looking at those species that we had removed the allocation 29 
discussion in 30A and 30B and then that’s what led us down the 30 
road of creating those guidance principles and now we would look 31 
to start actually using those guidance principles and starting 32 
to see what parts of those guidance principles would work with 33 
these particular species and kind of moving us down the road in 34 
at least a look at those actual kind of overarching principles 35 
that we really haven’t tested in any way at this point in time. 36 
 37 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Do we have a second? 38 

 39 
MR. SAPP:  Second. 40 

 41 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We’ve got a motion and a second.  Is there 42 

additional discussion? 43 
 44 
MS. MORRIS:  My only concern, Robin and Ed, is that there’s 45 

plenty of discussion in those documents about the allocations 46 
that we determined to use in 30A and 30B, but what we said is 47 
that they were interim allocations and so could we reword the 48 
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motion to clarify that they’re interim allocations?  They 1 
weren’t allocation discussions that were removed from the 2 
documents.  The documents had plenty of discussion about those 3 
percentages and what we were going to base them on. 4 
 5 
MR. RIECHERS:  If I’m understanding your correction correctly, 6 

you would just want between “and” and “allocation” in the third 7 
line from the bottom, to add the words “interim allocation 8 
discussions”? 9 
 10 
MS. MORRIS:  Those species that were assigned interim 11 

allocations in Reef Fish Amendments 30A and 30B.  Is that okay? 12 
 13 
MR. RIECHERS:  Add the words “that were assigned interim 14 

allocations” and those discussions which were removed and that’s 15 
just --  16 
 17 
MS. MORRIS:  Try “were assigned interim allocations” and then 18 

delete everything down to “Reef Fish” and then put “in” in place 19 
of what you’re deleting.  Does that read all right? 20 
 21 
MR. RIECHERS:  That’s fine by me, if my seconder will be okay 22 
with that. 23 
 24 
MR. SAPP:  I’m agreeable to that. 25 

 26 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I would like a roll call vote on this motion. 27 

 28 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion on this? 29 

 30 
MR. TEEHAN:  I don’t think this locks us into necessarily 31 

reallocating anything.  It’s just opening discussions.  Is that 32 
correct, Robin? 33 
 34 
MR. RIECHERS:  That’s absolutely correct.  It’s basically trying 35 

to go down -- We’ve been discussing this for a long time in 36 
regards to some of these allocation issues and it’s allowing us 37 
to use those guiding principles we’ve now set up and some of 38 
those techniques and tools that we identified and actually see 39 
how well that’s going to work.  If some of those don’t work, 40 
there may be others in that list that will work better and 41 
that’s part of what going on with this discussion is about. 42 
 43 
MR. SAPP:  The discussion yesterday was whether it would be more 44 

appropriate to have those discussions within the Allocation 45 
Committee and I agree with doing it this way, that those 46 
discussions belong within the Reef Fish Committee. 47 
 48 
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MS. WILLIAMS:  In our Allocation Committee and the principles 1 

and the guidance, it said we had to do certain things and all of 2 
those things are not included in this motion, the basis and all 3 
of the other things and the rationale.  You’re saying there may 4 
be a reason or there may not be a reason.  We shouldn’t even be 5 
looking at it if they do not fit what we said they had to fit 6 
with our policy. 7 
 8 
MS. MORRIS:  Right, Kay, so that’s what we would do in the Reef 9 

Fish Committee.  We would take up the interim allocations and we 10 
would have to get a majority council motion to go forward with a 11 
reallocation and we would have to specify the basis for and make 12 
sure it was consistent with the principles and the purpose and 13 
objectives would all have to be specified and the majority of 14 
the council would have to say that they wanted to go ahead and 15 
reallocate. 16 
 17 
This is just -- I think this is just the obvious next step from 18 
the work of the Ad Hoc Allocation Committee, to go back into 19 
those interim allocations and apply the process that we 20 
developed and see if the council wants to do any kind of 21 
reallocation in those situations. 22 
 23 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Julie, I understand what you’re saying, but I 24 

also was thinking about on the discussions when we were working 25 
on that particular policy and in my mind, this motion does not 26 
do the things that we said that we were going to do as part of 27 
that policy. 28 
 29 
When you talk about interim allocation, this council has been 30 
assigning allocations and they had their basis for it.  They had 31 
their purpose and their needs.  It was done according to the 32 
laws.  The word “interim allocation” first came to this council 33 
from CCA and someone on this panel picked up those words, 34 
interim allocation, and not only did this council start using 35 
them as a gray area, or something to hide behind, but so did the 36 
South Atlantic. 37 
 38 
We know where interim allocations came from, which I don’t see 39 
how they were legal at the time that we used them, with those 40 
amendments, because throughout the years we have went by the law 41 
and said why we were allocating the way that we were allocating.  42 
Now, we have come up with some principles and guidance under the 43 
disguise of trying to be fair and equitable with this council 44 
when we’re looking at allocations. 45 
 46 
I don’t think we’re doing justice.  We put together that panel 47 
and they did their work and before we even get to the next 48 
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council meeting, we have a motion up there and we all know that 1 
this motion is going to go in those documents and come out with 2 
something to reallocate and if they don’t, then I was wrong, but 3 
I predict I’m right. 4 
 5 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion on the 6 

motion?  Hearing none, are we ready to vote?  The motion is to 7 
charge the Reef Fish Committee to use our current allocation 8 
guidance principles to explore the reallocation issues of those 9 
species that were assigned interim allocations in Reef Fish 10 
Amendments 30A and 30B.  There’s been a roll call vote asked 11 
for. 12 
 13 
MR. PERRET:  Has the Reef Fish Committee’s allocation guidance 14 

principles been approved by the entire council?  Was that done 15 
in my absence?  Okay.  Thank you. 16 
 17 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Okay, Dr. Leard. 18 

 19 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  Ms. Villere. 20 

 21 
MS. VILLERE:  Yes. 22 

 23 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  Dr. Shipp.  Not here.  Ms. 24 

Foote. 25 
 26 
MS. FOOTE:  Yes. 27 

 28 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  Mr. Sapp. 29 

 30 
MR. SAPP:  Yes. 31 

 32 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  Mr. Gill. 33 

 34 
MR. GILL:  Yes. 35 

 36 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  Mr. Ray. 37 

 38 
MR. RAY:  Yes. 39 

 40 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  Mr. Hendrix. 41 

 42 
MR. HENDRIX:  Yes. 43 

 44 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  Mr. Riechers. 45 

 46 
MR. RIECHERS:  Yes. 47 

 48 
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ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  Ms. Morris. 1 

 2 
MS. MORRIS:  Yes. 3 

 4 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  Dr. Crabtree. 5 

 6 
DR. CRABTREE:  Abstain. 7 

 8 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  Ms. Walker. 9 

 10 
MS. WALKER:  Yes. 11 

 12 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  Ms. Williams. 13 

 14 
MS. WILLIAMS:  No. 15 

 16 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  Mr. Pearce. 17 

 18 
MR. PEARCE:  No. 19 

 20 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  Mr. Perret. 21 

 22 
MR. PERRET:  Yes. 23 

 24 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  Mr. Minton. 25 

 26 
MR. MINTON:  Yes. 27 

 28 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  Mr. Teehan. 29 

 30 
MR. TEEHAN:  Yes. 31 

 32 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  Dr. McIlwain. 33 

 34 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  No. 35 

 36 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  It’s twelve in favor to three 37 

with one abstention and one absence. 38 
 39 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  The motion carries with twelve for, three 40 
against, one abstention, and one absence.   41 

 42 
DR. CRABTREE:  Just one last item, Mr. Chairman.  Yesterday, we 43 

took public comment on an exempted fishing permit to do some 44 
reef fish work and I just wondered if the council wanted to 45 
express any support or any concerns or if the council wanted to 46 
take a position on this, because we’re going to have to go back 47 
and make a decision on it. 48 
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 1 
MR. GILL:  Thank you, Dr. Crabtree.  I would like to commend the 2 

Gulf Fishermen’s Association for initiating this project of 3 
cooperative research in attempting to gain more data and make 4 
our lives a little bit better in terms of the decisions we 5 
reach.  I think it’s an excellent idea and I’m glad the NMFS 6 
agreed with it and I fully support it and if you would like me 7 
to make a motion to do that, I would happy to do so. 8 
 9 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Are there other comments? 10 

 11 
MR. SIMPSON:  This project was passed or approved or is being 12 

considered under the cooperative research program, which is a 13 
funding program to gain information, using fishermen or actual 14 
users.  It’s been reviewed.   15 
 16 
I looked it over and I think it’s going to contribute to the 17 
body of knowledge that we have.  Whether or not it’s definitive 18 
or the end all with information, that remains to be seen.  It’s 19 
just simply another piece of information that adds to our wealth 20 
of knowledge and I think you ought to do it. 21 
 22 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Are there other comments?  I think it would 23 

be appropriate if you should like to make a motion. 24 
 25 
MR. GILL:  I move that the council recommend approval and 26 
carryout of the EFP that is under consideration. 27 
 28 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Mr. Pearce seconds.  I’ve got a motion and a 29 

second.  Is there additional discussion?  Are you ready to vote?  30 
The motion is the council recommends approval in carrying out 31 
the EFP that is under consideration.  All those in favor say 32 
aye; opposed like sign.  The motion carries. 33 
 34 
MS. FOOTE:  I would like to go back a topic or two, if that’s 35 
okay.  Robin came in with his motion there quicker than I was 36 
ready to jump on it, but I would like to make a motion to have 37 
staff send a letter to Alabama and Texas requesting compatible 38 
red snapper regulations. 39 

 40 
MS. VILLERE:  I second. 41 

 42 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We’ve got a motion and a second.  Is there 43 

discussion on the motion? 44 
 45 
MS. MORRIS:  Our letter to Florida just asked them to put it on 46 

their agenda to discuss and this asks them to actually adopt 47 
compatible regulations.  Is that your intention, Ms. Foote? 48 
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 1 
MS. FOOTE:  I certainly wouldn’t object to adding Florida.  Who 2 
seconded it?  If my seconder agrees, I can add Florida in there, 3 
too. 4 

 5 
MS. VILLERE:  Karen, so we would send Florida two letters? 6 

 7 
MS. FOOTE:  Yes, I know they would read them both closely. 8 

 9 
MS. VILLERE:  I’ll second that. 10 

 11 
MS. MORRIS:  I would recommend against that. 12 

 13 
MR. MINTON:  If this were to pass, I assume staff would be able 14 

to roll it into one letter.  It would make more sense, to put it 15 
on the agenda and then approve it or whatever. 16 
 17 
MS. FOOTE:  What would matter to me is that the message get 18 

across.  It doesn’t matter if it’s a carrier pigeon or -- Just 19 
so that the council is going on record, again, to ask that 20 
compatible regulations be adopted. 21 
 22 
MR. TEEHAN:  I think the spirit of the first letter to ask my 23 

commission to put it on the agenda will probably be accepted a 24 
lot friendlier than this one would be.  I would also note that 25 
there’s a certain amount of hurry-up involved in getting that 26 
first letter out to my commission, because the agenda, I 27 
believe, has already gone public.  The quicker the first letter 28 
asking us to put it on the agenda -- The quicker it goes out, 29 
the better. 30 
 31 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion? 32 

 33 
MS. WALKER:  I support the motion.  Unless the members from 34 

Florida don’t want their state to comply -- I know that Vernon 35 
and I and Bob Shipp, we were not the ones to ask for Alabama 36 
state waters to stay open and I don’t support Alabama state 37 
waters being open and I don’t support Texas and Florida being 38 
open.  That’s the problem.  That’s where we’re all at right now 39 
because of that.  I support the motion. 40 
 41 
MR. GILL:  I think the council did the right thing by the first 42 

letter, because we want to get that done.  Despite the comments 43 
just made, everybody is interested in compatible regulations.  44 
However, if you want to throw a little gas on the fire, that’s 45 
what this motion does.  I would like to offer an amendment that 46 
deletes Florida. 47 
 48 
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CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We’ve got a motion and a second to delete 1 

Florida from this. 2 
 3 
MR. MINTON:  We can all create a little fire if you want to.   4 

 5 
MR. PERRET:  Everybody obviously remembers what the first letter 6 

was.  I don’t and can we get it on the board?  I thought the 7 
first letter was asking that commission to put it on the agenda 8 
for consideration of compatible regulations and what do we need 9 
a second one to go to Florida for, if my memory is right, but 10 
I’m not sure it is. 11 
 12 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  I think your memory is correct, but also 13 

included in that letter was thanking Mississippi and Louisiana 14 
for complying. 15 
 16 
DR. CRABTREE:  It might be a little more politically adept to 17 

modify the motion asking them to reconsider compatible red 18 
snapper regulations.  If you do that, I don’t see any reason to 19 
-- You’ve already asked Florida to do that, essentially, but if 20 
you feel like that’s a little more politically acceptable.  You 21 
would say send a letter to Alabama, Texas, and Florida 22 
requesting reconsideration of compatible red snapper 23 
regulations. 24 
 25 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is this modification acceptable? 26 

 27 
MS. FOOTE:  I’m the last one to be aware of what’s politically 28 

correct, but I really want them to be compatible.  If taking 29 
Florida out of it makes it easier to pass, then I would prefer 30 
it that way, but you can have an amendment and we can vote an 31 
amendment up or down. 32 
 33 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  I think we had an amendment with a second. 34 

 35 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I don’t think we should remove Florida.  In the 36 

other letter, it’s talking about new snapper regulations and 37 
what’s new about them, number one?  They know what we’re saying, 38 
but just to be clear, what’s wrong with saying compatible red 39 
snapper?  We’re just saying red snapper regulations and which 40 
ones, especially if we ever come back to this council and ask 41 
the Secretary to preempt. 42 
 43 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We have an amendment to the motion.  The 44 

amendment is to remove Florida from the letter, from the 45 
previous motion.  All those in favor say aye; all opposed.  46 
Let’s see a show of hands.  All those in favor raise your hand; 47 
all those opposed.  The motion fails five to ten. 48 
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 1 
MR. TEEHAN:  I would like the record to show that I abstained on 2 

this vote. 3 
 4 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  That brings us back to the original motion 5 

to have staff send a letter to Alabama, Texas, and Florida 6 
requesting compatible red snapper regulations.  We had a 7 
suggestion for a rewording and is that off the table or --  8 
 9 
MR. PERRET:  If the letter goes, I would assume whoever the 10 

appropriate official is, not the state of or -- I would assume 11 
it would be the head of the agencies, I guess, or maybe even the 12 
governor.  I don’t know. 13 
 14 
MR. RIECHERS:  I’ll just reiterate my points.  I actually 15 

thought Corky was going to ask for another thank-you letter 16 
associated with this one as well, but he didn’t.  I just 17 
reiterate the previous points that I made.  Folks, everyone is 18 
well aware of it in our commission and within our agency, the 19 
issues and difficulties facing us in the red snapper fishery. 20 
 21 
Certainly if this body -- Certainly Dr. Crabtree sends us 22 
letters all the time and if we want to do that, that’s fine, if 23 
the body as a whole votes for that, but to assume that we’re not 24 
aware of the situation is just a false assumption and we’re just 25 
wasting our time here talking about letters as if that’s going 26 
to encourage or not encourage groups to do something one way or 27 
the other.  With that, Mr. Chair, back to you. 28 
 29 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion on the 30 

motion? 31 
 32 
MS. FOOTE:  Part of the reason for the letter is to -- With my 33 

participation on the council, our constituents in Louisiana want 34 
this to happen and all sides of our constituency want this to 35 
happen.  Even though you all are very well aware of it, our 36 
constituency expects this council to beg for compatible 37 
regulations when we’ve adopted it as a council rule. 38 
 39 
DR. CRABTREE:  The trouble is, Robin, we’re here and this 40 

problem has been going on for about a year now and there really 41 
aren’t any discussions going on, other than at this council, 42 
with the state commissions, that I’m aware of at least, about 43 
resolving this. 44 
 45 
I think this letter needs to point out that we are looking at a 46 
substantial overrun of the quota this year and we are looking at 47 
the possibility, folks, of not having an EEZ season next year.  48 
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We’ve also passed a motion that would require charterboats to 1 
comply with that. 2 
 3 
We are in a very, very serious situation now and I’m not sure 4 
your commissions are aware of the gravity of what we’re looking 5 
at for next year or of the magnitude of the likely overruns that 6 
we’re looking at.  I think there is reason to send this letter, 7 
because if we can’t get something back from the Florida 8 
Commission and Texas Commission as to what is it that you’re 9 
looking for and how do we resolve this issue, we’re going to end 10 
up in a very bad situation. 11 
 12 
MR. RIECHERS:  Again, for you to assume that our commission is 13 

not aware of it and not having discussions about it is a wrong 14 
assumption and I apologize that you don’t believe -- I’m sorry 15 
that you don’t believe that they understand the gravity of the 16 
situation, because they do. 17 
 18 
You just mentioned or actually threatened a closure of a season 19 
and yet, you weren’t prepared to show us that data earlier in 20 
the week.  You alluded to the fact of the overruns and so again, 21 
Roy, we understand the situation.  People understand the 22 
situation, but we’re going to -- When you bring us that data, 23 
we’re going to look at what that season is going to be.  We 24 
don’t know what that season is going to be yet and then the best 25 
decisions will be made by you and by this council and by those 26 
individual commissions at that point in time as to how they 27 
should proceed and manage their waters. 28 
 29 
DR. CRABTREE:  Robin, I don’t think there’s much to be gained 30 

here by insinuating that anyone is hiding anything.  We went 31 
through and we have the MRFSS Wave 4 numbers and it’s on the 32 
website.  We were over the quota, MRFSS alone, by something 33 
around 230,000 pounds. 34 
 35 
We don’t have the Texas numbers, Robin.  You have those numbers, 36 
I assume, but we don’t and so we don’t know the full extent of 37 
this and as soon as we have it, we’ll let you know, but is your 38 
commission aware that Wave 4 numbers already put us over the 39 
quota?  I don’t know that and I don’t know what it is your 40 
commission is looking for in order to work this out. 41 
 42 
If you want to come to this council and report to us in more 43 
detail about all this, I would like to hear it, but I don’t 44 
think insinuating that anyone is hiding anything is productive 45 
at all. 46 
 47 
MS. WILLIAMS:  If you look at the information that was provided 48 
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to us looking at landings over time from 1982 to 2006 and then 1 
if you go by the time period that the recreational AP was 2 
looking at, with Alabama taking 35 percent of the allocation and 3 
Florida taking somewhere around 32 percent and Texas taking 4 
somewhere around 18 percent, that left Mississippi 3 percent and 5 
Louisiana around 11 percent. 6 
 7 
The three states that do not have compatible regulations are 8 
impacting this fishery, this recreational fishery, and our 9 
fishermen from the State of Mississippi want to fish longer and 10 
they are going to be shut out of the little percentage that they 11 
do take if these states remain open. 12 
 13 
MR. TEEHAN:  My commission is on record as saying that they 14 

would reconsider when they made their decision last year to not 15 
have a consistent season.  I just want to make that plain.  The 16 
other two comments that I have is I would think that the word 17 
“consistent” instead of “compatible” would be a little bit more 18 
user friendly in this motion and to answer a question that 19 
somebody raised a little while ago, a letter to Florida should 20 
go to the chairman of my commission and I can provide that 21 
mailing information. 22 
 23 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Ms. Foote, would you agree to that wording 24 

change? 25 
 26 
MS. FOOTE:  Yes, “consistent” would be fine.  In the previous 27 

letter to Louisiana, it should go to the head of the commission. 28 
 29 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Does the seconder approve that?  Okay.  30 

We’ve got a motion and a second.  The motion is to have staff 31 
send a letter to Alabama, Texas, and Florida requesting 32 
consistent red snapper regulations.  All those in favor say aye; 33 
all opposed.  The motion carries. 34 
 35 
MR. MINTON:  Mr. Chairman, could we note for the record that I 36 

abstained? 37 
 38 
MR. TEEHAN:  Could we note for the record that I abstained also? 39 

 40 
MS. MORRIS:  Mr. Chairman, could we have a break? 41 

 42 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  This concludes our Reef Fish, the couple 43 

little items that we didn’t finish up yesterday afternoon.  44 
We’ll take a five-minute break and we’ll come back and start the 45 
Joint Reef Fish/Mackerel/Red Drum Committee. 46 
 47 
(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 48 
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 1 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  The first issue that we need to discuss is 2 

the Joint Reef Fish/Mackerel/Red Drum.  Go ahead, Ms. Foote. 3 
 4 

JOINT REEF FISH/MACKEREL/RED DRUM COMMITTEE REPORT 5 

 6 
MS. FOOTE:  This is the summary written in Tab J.  All members 7 

of all committees were there.  We adopted the agenda and adopted 8 
the minutes. 9 
 10 
Andy Strelcheck discussed the additional modifications suggested 11 
by the IPT to the preferred alternatives in the Aquaculture 12 
Fishery Management Plan summarized in Tab J, Number 4.  Every 13 
time after this when I refer to a page number, it’s from that 14 
Tab J, Number 4.  Each preferred alternative under each action 15 
was discussed in sequential order.   16 
 17 
In Action 1, Preferred Alternative 2, the committee recommends 18 
and, I so move, to adopt the revisions from page 1 to the top of 19 
page 3 in Action 1, Aquaculture Permit Requirements, 20 
Eligibility, and Transferability, as written to clarify the 21 
council’s intent. 22 
 23 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 24 
discussion?  All those in favor of the motion say aye; all 25 
opposed.  The motion carries. 26 
 27 
MS. FOOTE:  It is the council’s intent for NOAA Fisheries 28 

Service to publish a second notice if a Gulf aquaculture permit 29 
is approved for issuance after public comment.  After discussion 30 
of the public notice and public comment period, the committee 31 
recommends, and I so move, the approval of the Notice of Intent 32 
to Issue a Gulf Aquaculture Permit language on page 3 in Action 33 
1, Preferred Alternative 2.   34 
 35 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 36 
discussion?  All those in favor of the motion say aye; all 37 
opposed.  The motion carries. 38 

 39 
MS. FOOTE:  The suggested revisions to Action 2, Preferred 40 

Alternative 3, Application Requirements, Operational 41 
Requirements, and Restrictions, were discussed.  The committee 42 
recommends, and I so move, to incorporate the recommended 43 
revisions in Action 2 from page 4 through page 9. 44 
 45 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 46 
discussion?  All those in favor of the motion say aye; all 47 
opposed.  The motion carries.   48 
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 1 
MS. FOOTE:  Suggested revisions to Action 3, Preferred 2 
Alternative 2, Duration of Permit, were discussed and the 3 
committee recommends, and I so move, to incorporate the 4 
recommended revisions in Action 3 on page 9, with the deletion 5 
of “the dealership is”. 6 
 7 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 8 
discussion on the committee motion?  Hearing none, all those in 9 
favor of the motion say aye; all opposed.  The motion carries. 10 

 11 
MS. FOOTE:  Action 4, Preferred Alternative 4, Species Allowed 12 

for Aquaculture and Included in the Aquaculture Fishery 13 
Management Unit, had no suggested changes.  Next, suggested 14 
revisions to Action 5, Preferred Alternative 3 were discussed.  15 
The committee recommends, and I so move, to incorporate the 16 
recommended revisions in Action 5 on pages 9 and 10. 17 
 18 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We’ve got a committee motion.  All those in 19 
favor of the committee motion say aye; all opposed.  The motion 20 
carries. 21 

 22 
MS. FOOTE:  There was substantial discussion over prohibiting 23 

Habitat Areas of Particular Concern for Highly Migratory 24 
Species, such as bluefin tuna, to aquaculture siting, because of 25 
the substantial area that it may encompass in the Gulf.  The IPT 26 
recommended that only HAPC, Special Management Zones, and 27 
permitted reef areas as specified in 50 CFR 622, or in other 28 
words, council defined areas, as well as coral reefs, 50 CFR 29 
622.2, be excluded.   30 
 31 
After discussion over Action 6, Preferred Alternative 3, Marine 32 
Aquaculture Siting Requirements and Conditions, the committee 33 
recommends, and I so move, to incorporate the recommended 34 
revisions in Action 6, Preferred Alternative 3, on pages 10 and 35 
11. 36 
 37 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Shep, we heard that the bluefin spawning area 38 

yesterday was substantial.  It showed the area.  They really did 39 
not have a -- They had a generic paper as far as aquaculture was 40 
concerned on the effects and different things.  If they do pass 41 
to label that particular area as a habitat that has particular 42 
concerns about it, how do we go about incorporating their 43 
recommendations into this document?  Would we do it here or 44 
somewhere else? 45 
 46 
MR. GRIMES:  Down the road, once they’ve done something, I guess 47 

you could amend this FMP to incorporate any of those changes, 48 
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but I would reiterate what I said to the committee, in that 1 
impacts to that area, once it’s officially designated, would be 2 
something that the RA would be able to take into consideration 3 
in approving any site-specific permit and given the public 4 
notice process that’s associated with issuance of that permit, 5 
the public would also have an opportunity to comment at that 6 
time. 7 
 8 
While I believe this was removing a prohibition on siting 9 
facilities within all HAPCs, it wouldn’t prohibit the Regional 10 
Administrator from considering that and potentially even using 11 
that fact as a basis for denying a specific site. 12 
 13 
MS. WILLIAMS:  One more thing.  That’s the concern that I have 14 

with the Regional Administrator approving or denying.  In order 15 
to alleviate some of the heartburn that he would have over that 16 
from various individuals, would not it be better for this 17 
council to just go ahead and say we’re not going to allow them 18 
in those areas? 19 
 20 
MR. GRIMES:  I guess I wouldn’t, in my position, make the value 21 

judgment that it’s better to -- That’s a decision for this group 22 
to decide, but, again, it is something that would be vetted 23 
through this Federal Register notice and the very public 24 
process.  Folks could comment on it, including anyone on this 25 
council. 26 
 27 
Like I say, these factors are already taken into consideration.  28 
I know some of the committee discussion was just concerned that 29 
this proposed HAPC, and I believe it is proposed, or at least 30 
the HAPC under consideration, is enormous.  If you automatically 31 
prohibited anything from existing within that site, you just 32 
took out an area of the Gulf of Mexico probably the size of 33 
Texas. 34 
 35 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I also thought that when the committee was 36 

discussing this, most of those areas, it was a strip off of 37 
Louisiana that you might be able to have an aquaculture facility 38 
there, whereas in the deeper water it wouldn’t be viable.  I 39 
don’t think that we’re really talking about this huge area.  I 40 
think we’re just actually addressing that small area, where it 41 
might could happen, off Louisiana. 42 
 43 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there further discussion?  This is a 44 

motion, committee motion, to recommend to incorporate the 45 
recommended revisions to Action 6, Preferred Alternative 3, on 46 
pages 10 and 11.  Hearing no other discussion, all those in 47 
favor of the motion say aye; opposed.  The motion carries. 48 
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 1 
MS. FOOTE:  The suggested revisions to Action 7, Preferred 2 

Alternative 2, Restricted Access Zones for Marine Aquaculture 3 
Facilities, were discussed and recommendations from the Coast 4 
Guard on letter size printed on the buoys were discussed.  After 5 
further discussion, the committee recommends, and I so move, to 6 
incorporate the recommended revisions in Action 7, Restricted 7 
Access Zones for Marine Aquaculture Facilities, on page 11, 8 
including changing four inches to six inches. 9 
 10 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion 11 
on the committee motion?  Hearing none, all those in favor of 12 
the motion say aye; opposed.  The motion carries. 13 
 14 
MS. FOOTE:  Suggested revisions to Action 8, Preferred 15 
Alternative 2, Recordkeeping and Reporting, were discussed.  The 16 
committee recommends, and I so move, to incorporate the 17 
recommended revisions in Action 8, Recordkeeping and Reporting, 18 
on pages 11 through 15. 19 
 20 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We have a committee motion. 21 

 22 
MS. MORRIS:  I would like to make an amendment to the committee 23 
motion and the amendment would be in Alternative 2(c)(1) that 24 
major escapement would be defined as an escape of 10 percent of 25 
the cultured organisms.  Currently, the plan specifies that 20 26 

percent would constitute a major escape and I think that’s too 27 
many, if all of the production we envision in our preferred 28 
option for MSY/OY -- If we reach the sixty-four-million pounds, 29 
we could, at the 20 percent escape level, have 2.8 million 30 
pounds of escapes without it being reported and I think that’s 31 
too high and I think it should be at 10 percent, the definition 32 
of major escape. 33 
 34 
MR. HENDRIX:  Second. 35 

 36 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We’ve got a second.  Is there discussion on 37 

the amendment?  Hearing none, are we ready to vote on the 38 
amendment?  The amendment is to change the major escape to 39 
defined as 10 percent in Alternative 2(c)(1).  All those in 40 
favor say aye; opposed.  The motion carries. 41 
 42 

Now we’ll go back to the original committee motion, which would 43 
incorporate that change.  We have an amended motion to 44 
incorporate the recommended revisions in Action 8, Record 45 
Keeping and Reporting, on pages 11 through 15 and to change 46 
major escape as defined in 10 percent in Alternative 2(c)(1).  47 
Any other discussion?  Hearing none, all those in favor say aye; 48 
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opposed.  The motion carries. 1 

 2 
MS. FOOTE:  Suggested revisions to Action 9, Preferred 3 
Alternative 2, Biological Reference Points and Status 4 
Determination Criteria, the committee recommends, and I so move, 5 
to incorporate the recommended revisions in Action 9, Biological 6 
Reference Points and Status Determination Criteria, and include 7 
“no individual can be permitted to produce more than 20 percent 8 
of optimum yield.”  9 

 10 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 11 
discussion?  Hearing none, all those in favor say aye; opposed.  12 
The motion carries. 13 

 14 
MS. FOOTE:  Suggested revisions to Action 10, Preferred 15 
Alternative 3, Framework Procedures, the committee recommends, 16 
and I so move, to incorporate the recommended revisions in 17 
Action 10, Framework Procedures, on pages 16 through 18. 18 

 19 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 20 
discussion on the committee motion?  Hearing none, all those in 21 
favor of the committee motion say aye; all opposed.  The motion 22 
carries. 23 

 24 
MS. FOOTE:  Next, Carrie Simmons summarized the public comments 25 

and question-and-answer session held this week and then a table 26 
of locations and attendance of aquaculture public hearings were 27 
explained, stating that the summaries from each public hearing 28 
were available for review. 29 
 30 
Next, Harlon Pearce summarized the Louisiana Stake Holders 31 
Conflict Resolution Forum on Offshore Aquaculture and that was 32 
sponsored by Louisiana Sea Grant. 33 
 34 
Then, Andy Strelcheck gave a summary of the written letters, 35 
documents, and public comments received on the Draft 36 
Programmatic Environmental Impact Statement during the public 37 
comment period, which ended this past Monday.  Several 38 
organizations expressed concern about various aspects of the 39 
DPEIS.  Roy Crabtree also reported that a comment letter from 40 
the Environmental Protection Agency had just been received. 41 
 42 
Several committee members expressed concern about these issues.  43 
Shepherd Grimes recommended to the council that the Aquaculture 44 
FMP be delayed for final action, in order to allow adequate time 45 
for review of recent DPEIS comments, a review of the draft of 46 
proposed regulations, and for final edits to the Aquaculture 47 
FMP.  He urged the council members to consider the Aquaculture 48 
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FMP a unique and complex document.    1 
 2 
Due to the response of public comment letters, the committee 3 
recommends, and I so move, that the Aquaculture FMP reflect 4 
changes and improvements in the plan, the rough draft and 5 
regulations be refined, and that the plan undergo final review 6 
by General Counsel prior to considering final action in January 7 
of 2009. 8 
 9 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 10 
discussion?  All those in favor of the committee motion say aye; 11 
all opposed like sign.  The motion carries. 12 
 13 
MS. FOOTE:  Mr. Chairman, that concludes my report. 14 

 15 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  There was one other issue.  Andy had put 16 

together a list of issues that we needed to take a look at.  17 
Andy, would you give us your input, please? 18 
 19 
MR. STRELCHECK:  Based on the committee’s discussion and the 20 

public comments received, we want to bring back as final a 21 
document as we possibly can for the next meeting.  I went 22 
through the public comments and developed a bulleted list of 23 
issues that were identified by the public.  Many of these have 24 
been addressed, but I would ask that the council look through 25 
this list and see if there’s anything that hasn’t been addressed 26 
or that needs to be further discussed.  I also, at the end, have 27 
some specific questions. 28 
 29 
We as a planning team can edit the document, but the 30 
alternatives won’t be changed in the final FMP coming into the 31 
next meeting and so we want to make sure that you’ve 32 
incorporated as many of the changes to the actions and 33 
alternatives as possible, so we bring back as final of a 34 
document as we can. 35 
 36 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  You’ve all had opportunity to look over 37 

these issues and comments.  Is there discussion? 38 
 39 
MR. HENDRIX:  I think, Andy, you did a great job in summarizing 40 

some of the new things.  As you said, almost all of these have 41 
been either discussed or brought up in front of the council in 42 
the process of developing this document.  If you have any that 43 
you see specifically on this list that have not been addressed, 44 
could you identify those, please? 45 
 46 
MR. STRELCHECK:  There are certainly questions at the end that 47 

we need answers to.  Those are the things that the planning team 48 



 139 

has certainly identified.  In terms of public comments, there’s 1 
been numerous recommendations in terms of a more comprehensive 2 
baseline assessment of the physical site itself, more so than 3 
just a video survey, or that additional information and detail 4 
be provided prior to permit issuance and review with regard to 5 
the site itself. 6 
 7 
There was recommendations, and you just made a motion in terms 8 
of escapement, to notify the agency of all escapes and not just 9 
a percentage of escapes, as defined as major escapement.  In 10 
terms of other issues, the issue of environmental liability has 11 
also been mentioned on numerous occasions.  I know the council 12 
has discussed that at length, but it’s been brought up again to 13 
your attention and there’s -- I’ll leave it at that. 14 
 15 
MS. MORRIS:  In Action 2, we require a bond, which is kind of a 16 

liability thing, but it’s for the removal of structures and 17 
removal of fish stock in case the operation is abandoned, but we 18 
really don’t require a bond to address the potential 19 
environmental damage and so much of the public’s concern has to 20 
do with damage to the bottom and pollution and environmental 21 
damage.  I would like us to talk one more time about whether it 22 
makes sense to include an environmental liability bond in the 23 
plan. 24 
 25 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there discussion on this point? 26 

 27 
MR. HENDRIX:  We’ve had quite a bit of discussion about this, 28 

Julie, as you know.  One of the big problems associated with 29 
this is, in the first place, these environmental bonds do not 30 
exist.  The reason they don’t exist is because unless you can 31 
have a well defined risk and identify the risk, you can’t 32 
establish a bond or any type of coverage along those lines. 33 
 34 
I’ve talked with insurance companies and a number of other 35 
council members and staff have discussed it with other entities 36 
and these environmental bonds are currently not available. 37 
 38 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion? 39 

 40 
MR. GRIMES:  I would also add that some of the discussion that I 41 

recall in the development of this document is just that there 42 
are so many safeguards built into the program, reporting and 43 
monitoring, that that was believed to reduce the risk of much of 44 
this and address, or at least avoid, some of the likelihood of 45 
environmental catastrophe, let’s say, and that weighed against 46 
the need to require the assurance bond to cover environmental 47 
liability, as well as the removal of structures. 48 
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 1 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Shep, I don’t think all of those monitoring tools 2 

is going to do anything if a hurricane comes through and wipes 3 
that facility out.  Those fish are going to escape into the 4 
wild.  There’s no doubt in my mind.  There’s no assurance 5 
against that.  We know on the Gulf coast that we are going to 6 
have hurricanes.  We know it.  We don’t think it.  We know it. 7 
 8 
I believe that should one come through and wipe out that 9 
facility that we’ve got to have some sort of protection.  If 10 
you’re willing to go into that business and risk the entire Gulf 11 
of Mexico, then this council could come up with some ways to -- 12 
Come up with a policy of ways to issue some type of assurance 13 
bond. 14 
 15 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion? 16 

 17 
MR. HENDRIX:  Kay, we’ve already addressed this in this 18 

document.  What risk are you talking about? 19 
 20 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I’m talking about if a hurricane comes through 21 

and it blows the pens from -- Let’s say there’s an operation in 22 
Alabama or off Alabama and those pens end up somewhere in 23 
Mississippi, Louisiana, or Texas.  We know those hurricanes has 24 
such a force they can pick up ships and put them on the highway.  25 
That in itself could harm the traditional fisheries, fishermen, 26 
and fish stocks, potentially, in the Gulf of Mexico. 27 
 28 
MR. MINTON:  Kay, what do you think would be the difference in 29 

Texas’s stocking program of red drum into the bays and Gulf, 30 
utilizing a similar program for brood stock replacement that 31 
this plan has in it, as opposed to fish escaping from that pen?  32 
I don’t personally see a lot of difference, because we’re 33 
already required that they be genetically the same stocks that 34 
are in the Gulf.  We required that they move a certain portion 35 
of the brood stock through the system, which is just good 36 
management. 37 
 38 
If they escape, I don’t see that that wouldn’t do anything in 39 
terms of -- It’s a miniscule number, in terms of the whole Gulf, 40 
and so I don’t see where that could be a real problem, even if 41 
they did all escape.  In fact, a lot of the companies that had 42 
proposed this before were willing to place 10 percent or 20 43 
percent or whatever of the stocks that they raised into the Gulf 44 
for being allowed to use that portion of the Gulf for their 45 
operation. 46 
 47 
I just don’t see a difference from Alabama or Louisiana or 48 
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Mississippi or Texas having a stocking program and putting those 1 
fish directly in there, as opposed to them using these cages. 2 
 3 
DR. CRABTREE:  I was going to bring up that similar sort of 4 

point.  We’ve addressed this by putting a lot of restrictions on 5 
what you can raise and grow out in these cages, so that if there 6 
is an escape it’s not likely to have any real catastrophic 7 
impacts. 8 
 9 
As Vernon pointed out, we have had stocking programs for any 10 
number of species all around the country, where we’ve 11 
deliberately reared and grown things and released them.  I think 12 
you’re right that there may well be hurricanes occasionally and 13 
there may be escapes as a result, but it seems that, because of 14 
the safeguards we’ve built in here, that the effects of those 15 
escapes is not likely to be severe. 16 
 17 
MR. HENDRIX:  To address the other item Andy mentioned about the 18 

environmental assessment, in Action 6 we tried to create a 19 
pretty extensive list over the years of discussion.  The 20 
objective there was to really try to create a framework for an 21 
environmental assessment in Action 6. 22 
 23 
We even included a catch-all phrase at the end that the National 24 
Marine Fisheries Service or NOAA Fisheries would have the 25 
ability to consider other impacts associated with siting the 26 
project.  That was the objective, to try to create as general a 27 
group of recommendations as possible, so we could allow NOAA 28 
Fisheries to address all these potential impacts. 29 
 30 
MR. SIMPSON:  I hesitate to get into this, but that’s just only 31 

one aspect of this.  What about liabilities associated with a 32 
lost facility on vessels?  What about cleaning up after a storm 33 
and debris?  What about utrification?  I don’t want to get into 34 
all of that, but I like the concept of somebody being 35 
responsible for that facility as it might affect somebody else, 36 
just like if your vehicle or house or something is destroyed or 37 
you cause a problem to something.  I’m not sure that that’s not 38 
something we shouldn’t be concerned about. 39 
 40 
MR. GRIMES:  I believe there would be some liability under 41 

existing laws, but I would say look at it now.  When you permit 42 
a fishing vessel to go out there, if it’s a large fishing 43 
vessel, and the vessel sinks and its gear is littered on the 44 
bottom or it spills, we don’t require any sort of liability 45 
coverage for that and it’s really the same thing. 46 
 47 
After Katrina, who was paying for all the shrimp vessels that 48 
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were washed five miles inland?  If oil is released and there are 1 
contaminants associated with it, I think CERCLA and other 2 
liability laws would be applicable and people could potentially 3 
be held financially responsible.  Other than the scale of it, 4 
it’s no different than what’s occurring now, I don’t believe. 5 
 6 
MR. HENDRIX:  Also, Larry, if there is debris clean-up after a 7 

storm or whatever catastrophe damages the equipment, the bond 8 
that’s included in the document already will pay for that clean-9 
up, as opposed to a commercial fishing vessel, which has no 10 
requirement to do the same. 11 
 12 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there any other discussion? 13 

 14 
MS. MORRIS:  I had one more topic that I wanted to bring up and 15 

it’s something that Andy called out to us as well and that’s the 16 
idea of protocols for the benthic assessments that are required 17 
for the permit application. 18 
 19 
In Action 2, we’ve got a requirement that -- It’s XI, a 20 
description of endangered and threatened species, essential fish 21 
habitat, wild marine fishes, wild invertebrates, migratory birds 22 
present at the proposed site, including their abundance and 23 
distribution. 24 
 25 
Then in Action 6, on page 54, we require a video survey of the 26 
bottom underneath the proposed facility, but wouldn’t it be 27 
helpful, and this is one of the suggestions in the comment 28 
letters, to have some protocols about how you want that baseline 29 
data to be provided, instead of just a list of tell us about the 30 
invertebrates and the fishes and the invertebrates.   31 
 32 
Wouldn’t it be good to have some protocols to let the permittees 33 
know, the permit applicants know, how to provide that 34 
information, so that it would be standard format and we would 35 
know that we were getting good information that could be used as 36 
a baseline to compare any changes that take place after the 37 
facility is put in place? 38 
 39 
I still view this whole thing as a pilot that we should be 40 
assessing and monitoring and improving and it would be good to 41 
have good, rigorous baseline data.  I like the idea that’s 42 
coming in from public comment that we should have protocols for 43 
that baseline benthic assessment and we don’t really call for 44 
that right now in the plan. 45 
 46 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  I would like some discussion on this, but 47 

let me point out that we’ve been doing baseline assessments in 48 
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the Gulf.  I’ve been involved in a number of them over the years 1 
and they’re pretty standardized protocols and it might be that 2 
we could adopt some of those as an appendix to this document.  3 
There are some pretty extensive baseline assessments that have 4 
been done throughout the Gulf by a number of different 5 
organizations over the years. 6 
 7 
MS. MORRIS:  I think that would be a good improvement to the 8 

plan, to have baseline assessment protocols for the bottoms 9 
underneath the proposed sites. 10 
 11 
MR. HENDRIX:  To that point, Mr. Chairman.  Julie, if you’ll 12 

remember in our discussion, this originally, as I recall, came 13 
from the IPT as a recommendation.  We had a pretty lengthy 14 
discussion on it and the objective of this is to have the 15 
baseline video, with the idea that you have that basic 16 
information for future reference.  We discussed that at length.  17 
That’s the objective of having it, so that when you do future 18 
video surveys, you have a point of comparison there. 19 
 20 
MS. MORRIS:  I think the video is helpful, but the video doesn’t 21 

go into the benthos and doesn’t tell you what’s buried in the 22 
bottom and it doesn’t really give you any sediment quality 23 
indications in terms of pollutant loads or nutrients or those 24 
kinds of things. 25 
 26 
I think that the video is a pretty superficial, quick kind of 27 
assessment and I think it’s an important component, but I think 28 
the kinds of things that Tom is talking about would be an added 29 
improvement to the plan. 30 
 31 
MR. HENDRIX:  Under the list of items included under Action 6, 32 

there’s no reason that NOAA Fisheries couldn’t include a bottom 33 
sampling protocol as part of the requirements for the 34 
application. 35 
 36 
MS. MORRIS:  You would support adding that to the plan? 37 

 38 
MR. HENDRIX:  What I’m saying is I think it’s already in the 39 

plan.  Any of those options are available to NOAA Fisheries to 40 
use as means of monitoring what’s going on with these projects. 41 
 42 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion? 43 

 44 
MS. MORRIS:  I guess I’m going to have to make a motion that we 45 
include protocols for baseline assessment of the marine 46 
ecosystem at the aquaculture site to the plan. 47 
 48 
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CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Do we have a second to the motion? 1 

 2 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I’ll second it. 3 

 4 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We have a motion and a second.  The motion 5 

reads: To include protocols for baseline assessment of the 6 
marine ecosystem at the aquaculture site in the plan.  7 
Discussion? 8 
 9 
MR. PERRET:  What are the protocols and who establishes them? 10 

 11 
MS. MORRIS:  Tom’s suggestion was that NOAA Fisheries has those 12 

protocols well established for other work they do for other 13 
purposes in the Gulf of Mexico and so my intention is that those 14 
would be utilized. 15 
 16 
MR. PERRET:  It would be NOAA establishing the protocols? 17 

 18 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  I could say from my past life that when I 19 

did work for NOAA Fisheries that we issued a few exempted 20 
fishing permits and there was a very extensive list of 21 
activities that included macrofauna and infauna and microfauna 22 
and the bottom habitat, describing -- There’s a whole laundry 23 
list of things that has to be included. 24 
 25 
MR. RIECHERS:  As I understand what we’re doing here, Corky, is 26 

we’re basically just tasking Andy with those specific items out 27 
of this list that we would want to have him prepared to come 28 
back. 29 
 30 
Whether we reference it in the document and attach it as an 31 
appendix or whatever, those protocols would be laid out somewhat 32 
in the next draft, so that we would have that available to us in 33 
January.  Am I under the correct understanding? 34 
 35 
MR. STRELCHECK:  Just for clarification, if this is approved by 36 

the council today, we would incorporate this as part of the 37 
alternatives in Action 6, probably associated with that video 38 
survey at that point.  We can certainly work with researchers 39 
and other people that are involved in evaluating these systems 40 
and coming up with protocols for operations. 41 
 42 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion on the 43 

motion?  The motion reads: To include protocols for baseline 44 
assessment of the marine ecosystem at the aquaculture site in 45 
the plan.  All those in favor of the motion say aye; all opposed 46 
like sign.  The motion carries.  Mr. Strelcheck, are there other 47 

items that we need to address? 48 
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 1 
MR. STRELCHECK:  Along those same lines, as part of that, 2 

there’s a recommendation to develop some sort of guidelines for 3 
the video surveys and so I guess for just clarification of 4 
intent, that would also be part of that. 5 
 6 
There was a recommendation to establish some sort of restriction 7 
to prevent products from flooding the market.  I just want to 8 
bring that to your attention.  I don’t think there’s really 9 
anything you can do in terms of restricting that, but it’s 10 
something to consider. 11 
 12 
There was a question, under the duration of the permit, in terms 13 
of renewal being limited to five years and why not just consider 14 
ten years or some other timeframe, but ten years was 15 
recommended, since it was a ten-year issuance.  Then we don’t 16 
specifically prohibit endangered or threatened species in the 17 
plan.  This has been a concern. 18 
 19 
The Endangered Species Act does prohibit the take of endangered 20 
species and threatened species we’ve never allowed the take of 21 
for this type of commercial purpose.  However, species of 22 
concern would still be allowed and so there’s been concern about 23 
allowing species of concern.  I’ll bring those to your attention 24 
and I have a few more. 25 
 26 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there discussion on these issues? 27 

 28 
MS. MORRIS:  Andy, in the letter from the Ocean Conservancy, 29 

they refer to a July 2008 NOAA study on offshore aquaculture, 30 
economic considerations, implications and opportunities.  It 31 
seems like the first issue you brought up about flooding the 32 
market with product, it seems like if you engage some discussion 33 
from that NOAA report in the document that that would help 34 
illuminate those kinds of problems and I would suggest that you 35 
do that. 36 
 37 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I also think that as all of the fishing gear out 38 

there, since this constitutes fishing, that we’re going to have 39 
to have something in that document as it relates to species even 40 
of particular concern, not necessarily endangered. 41 
 42 
I mean we’re looking at a fishing gear right now it doesn’t say 43 
in the biological opinion, because they don’t have the 44 
biological opinion out yet, or an updated biological opinion.  45 
If you go by the old one, it says that they’re not endangered 46 
and that there’s basically no threat, if you go by the 2005 47 
biological opinion on the turtles. 48 
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 1 
I’ve got to believe on an aquaculture facility that we’ve got to 2 
have something there, because I don’t know how they interact 3 
with turtles or anything else that is endangered or we have 4 
particular concerns over. 5 
 6 
MR. STRELCHECK:  Let me clarify this recommendation is 7 

pertaining to the species that you would actually be allowing 8 
for aquaculture and you’re not allowing for the culture of sea 9 
turtles or other endangered or threatened species.  Sea turtles 10 
are listed under the Endangered Species Act currently and that 11 
listing has remained unchanged, I believe, since 1978. 12 
 13 
The concern is if there’s any species that you’re currently 14 
allowing for aquaculture that would in the future be listed as 15 
species of concern or endangered or threatened, having a 16 
specific prohibition against allowing those species, we haven’t 17 
included as a provision in this document with regard to 18 
endangered or threatened species, because the Endangered Species 19 
Act applies to endangered and threatened species, species of 20 
concern. 21 
 22 
There aren’t any prohibitions that would prevent someone from 23 
using those particular species for aquaculture and so the 24 
council could consider prohibiting species of concern.  Right 25 
now, I don’t believe there’s any that are listed in the Gulf of 26 
Mexico that would apply, but if there is a species of concern 27 
listed in the future, that would certainly apply for 28 
aquaculture, if you so chose. 29 
 30 
MR. HENDRIX:  Any provision like that I believe would prevent 31 

any type of stock enhancement program, which could be a valuable 32 
tool in reestablishing some threatened species or species of 33 
concern.  Therefore, I really think -- That was included several 34 
times in our discussions in developing this document and I still 35 
believe that could be a future tool for helping those species. 36 
 37 
MR. MINTON:  I had the same comment.  You could do that on land, 38 

for example Gulf sturgeon, release those, but you’re saying here 39 
you could do -- Meaning that you could propagate them on land 40 
and release them from like a state agency or a federal agency, 41 
but then you just said they couldn’t do it in a pen situation. 42 
 43 
I don’t think that makes a lot of sense.  If in fact we follow 44 
the other protocols which are already in here, including the 45 
genetic diversity and the other things like that, I think you 46 
might be in fact inhibiting recovery of some of these species. 47 
 48 
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CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion? 1 

 2 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Andy, have there ever been any interaction of 3 

turtles with aquaculture facilities? 4 
 5 
MR. STRELCHECK:  Based on the review of literature that I’ve 6 

looked at for New Hampshire, Puerto Rico, and Hawaii, I’m not 7 
aware of any interactions, but we do discuss those in the 8 
document, to the extent that there might have been interactions.  9 
It should be included in the document.  I’m not as familiar, 10 
obviously, with the international literature and certainly there 11 
could be interactions, but I can’t speak to those at this point. 12 
 13 
MR. HENDRIX:  In answer to Ms. Williams’s question, yes, there 14 

have been interactions, between both marine mammals and sea 15 
turtles, between a research and development project in the Gulf 16 
of Mexico that had an exempted fishing permit.  They were 17 
reported to NOAA Fisheries. 18 
 19 
MS. WILLIAMS:  That is my concern.  If we put a facility out 20 

there, you’re saying yes, there have been interactions.  Well, 21 
then they need to allow some sort of take or incidental whatever 22 
as they do have interactions with one of these facilities.  We 23 
are going to treat this as a piece of fishing gear as far as I’m 24 
concerned. 25 
 26 
MR. HENDRIX:  That’s true and there were interactions and 27 

observations, but there were no mortalities, nor were there any 28 
injuries to any of the endangered species. 29 
 30 
MS. WILLIAMS:  If I may, under endangered species, it doesn’t 31 

have to be necessarily mortality.  They look at takes. 32 
 33 
MR. HENDRIX:  There were no takes involved. 34 

 35 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Andy, do you have enough information to go 36 

on? 37 
 38 
MR. STRELCHECK:  We’ve prohibited specific areas in the Gulf of 39 

Mexico from having aquaculture facilities sited within their 40 
boundaries.  There was a recommendation about establishing not 41 
only those areas prohibited, but also buffer zones around those 42 
areas, so to prevent a facility from being sited very close to 43 
the boundary of a particular area.  I bring that to your 44 
attention as a concern. 45 
 46 
DR. CRABTREE:  Just to Kay’s concerns, we will do a Section 7 47 

consultation on this amendment, just like we do on all federal 48 
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actions.  We will look at the potential impacts on endangered 1 
and threatened species, because that’s part of the legal 2 
requirements we have. 3 
 4 
MR. GRIMES:  I would point out that at this point, my 5 

understanding is there have been no reported takes or no 6 
documented takes of sea turtles in any aquaculture operation in 7 
the United States to date.  There is information out there and 8 
so this does not appear to be a big problem, certainly from the 9 
perspective of the listed species we have in the Gulf of Mexico. 10 
 11 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you.  Andy, are there other issues you 12 

need to bring forward? 13 
 14 
MR. STRELCHECK:  A couple other issues.  I’m not sure if the 15 

council has any ideas in terms of developing alternatives or if 16 
you would want to provide them more as objectives in the plan, 17 
but there’s been a lot of comments about concerns of use of 18 
forage fish as feeds and regulating that or limiting the use of 19 
forage fish in feeds. 20 
 21 
There also have been recommendations about establishing some 22 
sort of limitations on fish densities and this is associated 23 
with a particular facility and the density of fish or cultured 24 
organisms at a facility and the potential impacts it poses to 25 
water quality and the benthos and putting limits on those. 26 
 27 
Those are very similar concerns as to what’s laid out in the 28 
California Oceans Act and also that have been discussed at the 29 
national level.  It might be something the council wants to 30 
discuss. 31 
 32 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there discussion on this issue? 33 

 34 
MR. HENDRIX:  During the development of the document, we have 35 

discussed this a number of times and as far as the density 36 
issues go, that’s something that good management practices by 37 
the operators are going to determine.  38 
 39 
They’re going to determine the densities and as part of their 40 
applications, they would have to present that information to 41 
NOAA Fisheries as part of the operating procedures.  You’re 42 
going to get -- NOAA Fisheries will have an opportunity to 43 
review those and make recommendations along those lines. 44 
 45 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there any other discussion or any other 46 

points? 47 
 48 
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MR. STRELCHECK:  I have the four questions at the very end that 1 

were identified by the IPT.  The first is in terms of permit 2 
transfer, is it the council’s intent that when a permit is 3 
transferred that the ten-year time for that permit wouldn’t 4 
continue and it would actually be the timeframe from the initial 5 
issuance of that permit?  If a permit is transferred after five 6 
years, it would only be valid for an additional five years or is 7 
your intent for it to be valid for the next ten years once that 8 
transfer occurs? 9 
 10 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there discussion? 11 
 12 
MR. GILL:  My take on that is that it does not restart the 13 

clock, that you’re transferring the permit itself and whatever 14 
the conditions attached to that permit are what you’re 15 
transferring. 16 
 17 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there other discussion?  I believe the 18 

consensus of the group is that it does not restart the clock. 19 
 20 
MR. STRELCHECK:  Then related to transfer provisions, we 21 

obviously have in the document that permits can be transferred.  22 
I wanted to have the council discuss whether there’s any 23 
circumstances under which you would not allow a transfer.   24 
 25 
For example, if a permit is being transferred to another 26 
company, but they’re also proposing to move the site, we’re 27 
going to, essentially, have to reevaluate all of the siting 28 
information and permits.  It wouldn’t really be beneficial in 29 
terms of a transfer in that situation and there’s certainly 30 
other circumstances where that could apply, where we’re going to 31 
have to conduct a comprehensive review of the permit, regardless 32 
of whether it’s a new permit at that point or a transfer. 33 
 34 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there discussion on this point? 35 

 36 
MR. HENDRIX:  The original discussion we had on this was that 37 

any major changes in the operations, whether it be a significant 38 
expansion or a change in site, would require a new application 39 
or at least notification to the agency.  I think your example 40 
there was a good example, that if they decided to transfer the 41 
permit and change the site, that would require a new 42 
application.  Is that currently the IPT and your understanding 43 
there, Andy? 44 
 45 
MR. STRELCHECK:  That certainly would be our recommendation, 46 

from the team’s perspective.  We will need to write some 47 
language to that effect in the rule, as well as in the FMP.  48 
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We’ll have to have some liberty to address that particular 1 
issue. 2 
 3 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  I think it’s the consensus of the council 4 

that we would like to have some language incorporated into that. 5 
 6 
MR. STRELCHECK:  In the rule itself, it allows for 120 days 7 

prior to when a facility wants to have their permit effective.  8 
We’ve talked about an extensive public comment and notice period 9 
and we, at the last meeting, discussed whether this timeframe is 10 
sufficient or if we wanted to lengthen that timeframe.  The 11 
IPT’s perspective is 120 days is likely going to be too short, 12 
given the new public comment and notice procedures. 13 
 14 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there discussion? 15 

 16 
MS. MORRIS:  Do you have a discussion for an alternative 17 

reasonable period of time? 18 
 19 
MR. STRELCHECK:  We don’t have a specific recommendation.  The 20 

key will be when the clock starts for that 120-day period or 21 
whatever other period is chosen, but in our view, until the 22 
application is complete and we have received all of the 23 
information necessary for review of that application, the clock 24 
won’t begin.  We think maybe six months would be adequate, 180 25 
days. 26 
 27 
MS. MORRIS:  I would suggest that we change that to 180 days. 28 
 29 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Do we need a motion to do that or can we 30 

agree consensus-wise to do that? 31 
 32 
MS. MORRIS:  I move that it be 180 days instead of 120 days for 33 
review. 34 
 35 
MR. HENDRIX:  Second. 36 

 37 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We have a motion and a second.  Any 38 

additional discussion?  The motion is to change the 120 days for 39 
review to 180 days.  Is there additional discussion?  All those 40 
in favor of the motion say aye; all opposed.  The motion 41 
carries. 42 
 43 
MR. STRELCHECK:  The last item I’ll bring to your attention is 44 

the escapement requirement for reporting major escapement 45 
currently pertains to a twenty-four-hour time period and we were 46 
wondering if the council wanted to also add to that definition 47 
of major escapement to include a cumulative level of escapement 48 
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over a more extended period of time, so that that information 1 
would be reported to us. 2 
 3 
MS. MORRIS:  It seems like a good idea.  Joe, based on your 4 

experience, are the escapes things that kind of dribble out in 5 
small amounts everywhere or are they major escapes or are both 6 
kinds of escapes common in the industry? 7 
 8 
MR. HENDRIX:  No, they’re usually one-time events or as a result 9 

of some interaction with a ship strike or a net rupture or 10 
something like that.  It’s going to be a short-term event, but 11 
we do need some sort of definition for the 20 percent escapement 12 
motion you passed earlier and I thought we had that in the 13 
document. 14 
 15 
MR. STRELCHECK:  We do have a definition for major escapement 16 

that relates to a twenty-four-hour time period, but whether we 17 
would want to expand that definition to also include a 18 
cumulative level of escapement over a longer timeframe, we put 19 
an example of X percent over a thirty-day period, to cover major 20 
escapement that might not be occurring on a one-time basis, but 21 
cumulatively over a several week period. 22 
 23 
MS. MORRIS:  I would make a motion to add to that that a 24 
cumulative 10 percent escapement over a thirty-day period would 25 
also be reported.  Then I have a question.  I’m going to make 26 

that motion and then I have a question. 27 
 28 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  There’s a motion and a second.  Discussion? 29 

 30 
MS. MORRIS:  Are we talking about from one multi-pen operation 31 

when we say cumulative or are we talking about Gulf-wide when we 32 
say cumulative? 33 
 34 
MR. STRELCHECK:  One specific facility. 35 

 36 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion on the 37 

motion? 38 
 39 
MR. MINTON:  Joe, help me here, but if you’re stocking in 40 

juvenile fish, a certain size, and you have -- I don’t know what 41 
your pens will hold, because I’ve never done this with pens, but 42 
just when you stock them, at least in the major stockings that 43 
I’ve been with, you’re using an estimate.   44 
 45 
You’re using a weight relationship where you go in and subsample 46 
the population and then take that weight of fish that equals so 47 
many per pound and then you weigh those out in pounds and you’re 48 
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going to have a plus or minus level of stocking density 1 
somewhere hopefully less than 10 percent, but it could be that 2 
high, depending on variability of the size of fish that you 3 
stock. 4 
 5 
If you’ve got very uniform fish, obviously your numbers at 6 
stocking will be much tighter, but using numbers like 10 percent 7 
and then over a period of month -- I really have trouble with 8 
the practicality of trying to do that.  I just don’t see how a 9 
person at sea will be able to track something like that when I 10 
know for a fact we would have trouble tracking that in a pond 11 
environment, based on experience. 12 
 13 
I’m just -- Julie, I see your point, but I don’t see how it 14 
could really and truly be done and so I can’t support it right 15 
now, because I just think you’re asking for something that 16 
industry could not comply with, even if they really tried very 17 
hard. 18 
 19 
MR. GRIMES:  Isn’t it reporting it upon discovery of the 20 

escapement?  Mr. Strelcheck, isn’t that correct? 21 
 22 
MR. STRELCHECK:  That’s correct. 23 

 24 
MR. GRIMES:  Once the facility discovered that it had this 25 

escapement, that’s when its duty to report would attach. 26 
 27 
MS. MORRIS:  Vernon, I would be far more comfortable with all 28 

escapes being reported for every thirty-day period, if the 10 29 
percent is a problem.  It seems like what we’re interested in is 30 
monitoring the level of escapes.   31 
 32 
We now have a requirement that a 10 percent escapement in one 33 
catastrophic event be reported, in one twenty-four-hour period, 34 
that that be reported, but some kind of monitoring and reporting 35 
of all the escapement, I would be far more comfortable with that 36 
than a 10 percent reporting. 37 
 38 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Additional discussion? 39 

 40 
MR. HENDRIX:  Julie, to include this is -- If this makes you 41 

feel better, I don’t have any problem with it, but Vernon’s 42 
point is well taken.  Determining a 10 percent loss is 43 
difficult.  The more important consideration here is the 10 44 
percent loss is an indication of poor management, because any 45 
company that loses 10 percent of their growing stock is losing a 46 
tremendous amount of money. 47 
 48 
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I can assure you that the operator is going to be much more 1 
concerned than NOAA Fisheries or any other agency about losing 2 
any fish at all, just because of the economics of the situation. 3 
 4 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Additional discussion on the motion? 5 

 6 
DR. CRABTREE:  It seems to me that any company that’s losing 10 7 

percent of their product every thirty days and doesn’t know it 8 
is going to go out of business real fast, because no one is 9 
going to be able to survive with that amount of loss, I wouldn’t 10 
think. 11 
 12 
MS. MORRIS:  The question here is whether you want that to be 13 

reported to you or not, Roy.  If you could comment on whether 14 
you would like to know about thirty-day losses of 10 percent 15 
escapement or if you would like to know about all escapements 16 
for a thirty-day period, I would be interested in what you would 17 
want to know. 18 
 19 
DR. CRABTREE:  I think that the motion on the board and 20 

reporting that is a good idea.  I don’t see that it’s that much 21 
of a downside. 22 
 23 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there additional discussion?  Hearing 24 

none, the motion is to add a cumulative 10 percent escapement 25 
over a thirty-day period to the document.  All those in favor of 26 
the motion say aye; opposed like sign.  The motion carries.  27 

Andy, does that conclude your concerns? 28 
 29 
MR. STRELCHECK:  Yes.  I just wanted to mention that certainly 30 

that doesn’t cover all the public comments received and we’re 31 
going to have to go over these very carefully and make sure that 32 
all of these have been addressed in the document, but this will 33 
certainly help give staff additional direction in revising the 34 
FMP as we bring it back to you in January.  Thank you. 35 
 36 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Mr. Hendrix, do you have a comment? 37 

 38 
MR. HENDRIX:  Yes, one specific item that Mr. Strelcheck 39 

included on this list in several places, ban use of drugs and 40 
chemicals.  The document clearly states that the intent of the 41 
program is that only FDA-approved drugs or chemicals will be 42 
allowed to be used in that. 43 
 44 
The reason these drugs and chemicals have been approved for use 45 
in concentrated aquatic animal production facilities is because 46 
they’re safe and effective therapeutics for growing fish and 47 
there are only, as I recall, eight approved items. 48 



 154 

 1 
MS. MORRIS:  Joe, have they been approved for use in open net 2 

offshore situations?  It’s different if you have a pond and 3 
everything is going to be contained and monitored.  Have these 4 
drugs been approved for offshore open net application? 5 
 6 
MR. HENDRIX:  Yes and they’ve also been approved for ponds, 7 

which have discharges into estuaries, where they would have much 8 
greater impacts than the open ocean, where you have a much 9 
greater dilution factor. 10 
 11 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Andy, thank you very much.  I think the IPT 12 

has its instructions to bring us back a document, the EIS rule, 13 
in January for final consideration.  Thank you.  That concludes 14 
our aquaculture issues.  We’re going to move into the committee 15 
reports.  We really don’t have time to take a break at this 16 
point in time.  The first committee report will be Budget and 17 
Personnel.  Let me reorder that.  Let’s do Operator Permits 18 
first and then Budget and Personnel. 19 
 20 

OPERATOR PERMITS COMMITTEE REPORT 21 

 22 
MS. WALKER:  I’m going to make all of these real quick.  The 23 

committee members discussed a letter from SSA and NMFS’s 24 
response, that both the owner and the operator are responsible 25 
for violations.   26 
 27 
Following discussions, the committee recommends, and I so move, 28 
to not require federal commercial and charter/head vessel/boat 29 
operator permits in the Gulf of Mexico. 30 
 31 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 32 
discussion?  Hearing none, all those in favor of the motion say 33 
aye; opposed like sign.  The motion carries. 34 
 35 
MS. WALKER:  That concludes my report. 36 

 37 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you very much.  Go ahead, Dr. Shipp. 38 

 39 
BUDGET/PERSONNEL COMMITTEE REPORT 40 

 41 
DR. SHIPP:  This is for the Budget/Personnel Committee.  The 42 

agenda was adopted.  Ms. Readinger referred to Tab M, Number 2, 43 
Status of 2008 Funding.  She noted that the accrued and 44 
anticipated expenditures through 12/31/08 totaled $2,494,843.  45 
The CY 2008 funding and previous year carryover funding total 46 
$2,889,760.  Therefore, it is anticipated to have a cumulative 47 
surplus of $394,917 that can be used in 2009.   48 
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 1 
Ms. Readinger advised the committee that in 2008 the council 2 
received the following funds: $1.9 million base; $102,000 3 
regulatory streamlining; $128,000 NEPA; $75,000 LAPP; $284,000 4 
new money, the Gulf Council’s share of $2.2 million that was 5 
divided between the eight councils based on the workload 6 
analysis percentage; and $30,000 for SEDAR.  $2,533,000 is the 7 
total 2008 funding, excluding the 2005 to 2007 cumulative 8 
carryover funding. 9 
 10 
Ms. Readinger added that the council will be operating under a 11 
continuing resolution until at least the end of the first 12 
quarter in 2009 and therefore, the carryover funding will be 13 
used during that time.  Typically, NOAA has awarded the council 14 
25 percent of its prior year base funding if a final 15 
appropriations bill has not been approved before the council’s 16 
calendar year start date. 17 
 18 
Dr. Leard reviewed the activities portion of Tab M, Number 3.  19 
Dr. Crabtree pointed out that a gag grouper assessment update 20 
will occur in 2009 and this activity should be included in the 21 
budget.  Dr. Leard agreed and also noted that if the council 22 
concurs with the recommendation to not pursue an operator permit 23 
amendment that the costs of the gag grouper activities would 24 
replace the costs for the operator permit amendment. 25 
 26 
Ms. Readinger reviewed the administrative portion of the 27 
proposed calendar year 2009 budget, starting on page 3 of Tab M, 28 
Number 3.  Mr. Perret questioned why the 2009 budget for SSC 29 
activities was less than the 2008 budget category.   30 
 31 
Ms. Readinger pointed out that in developing the current year 32 
budget that historical costs are considered.  All travel 33 
activities are budgeted based on full member attendance.  Last 34 
year, the council budgeted $122,000 for SSC travel.  However, 35 
the nine-month year-to-date SSC outlay is much less than the 36 
amount budgeted, mainly due to lack of full SSC attendance.  37 
Consequently, the 2009 budget was adjusted accordingly. 38 
 39 
On behalf of the committee, I so move to approve the calendar 40 
year 2009 budget, totaling $2,941,900, as indicated in Tab M, 41 
Number 3, with the addition of the activities necessary for gag 42 
grouper. 43 
 44 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We’ve got a committee motion and we’ve 45 

agreed not to pursue permits at this time.  Is there discussion 46 
on the motion?  Hearing none, all those in favor of the motion 47 
to approve the calendar year 2009 budget, totaling $2,941,900, 48 
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as indicated in Tab M, Number 3, with the addition of the 1 
activities necessary for grouper say aye; opposed.  The motion 2 
carries. 3 

 4 
DR. SHIPP:  Mr. Chairman, that concludes my report.  The 5 

committee then went into a closed session to discuss personnel.  6 
I will simply report that that closed session discussed the 7 
progress of the search for an Executive Director and the plan is 8 
for the applicants to be reviewed and perhaps interviewed in 9 
Tampa and hopefully by the January meeting we possibly could 10 
have interviews set up. 11 
 12 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Dr. Shipp.  We’re going to move 13 

to Law Enforcement and Ms. Walker. 14 
 15 

LAW ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 16 

 17 
MS. WALKER:  There were two motions made in Law Enforcement.  18 
The first was I so move to approve the Gulf of Mexico 19 
Cooperative Law Enforcement Strategic Plan for 2009 through 20 
2012. 21 
 22 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We’ve got a committee motion.  Is there any 23 
discussion?  All those in favor say aye; all opposed.  The 24 
committee motion passes. 25 
 26 
MS. WALKER:  Following discussion, the committee recommends, and 27 
I so move, to approve the Gulf of Mexico Cooperative Law 28 
Enforcement Operations Plan for 2009 through 2010. 29 
 30 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  I’ve got a committee motion.  Is there 31 

discussion? 32 
 33 
MR. SIMPSON:  That’s a cooperative plan with the states and we 34 

approved that at our last meeting about two weeks ago. 35 
 36 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you.  All those in favor of the 37 
committee motion say aye; opposed.  The motion carries. 38 
 39 
MS. WALKER:  Mr. Chairman, this concludes my report. 40 

 41 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you very much.  The next committee is 42 

the Outreach and Education Committee and Ms. Walker. 43 
 44 

OUTREACH AND EDUCATION COMMITTEE REPORT 45 
 46 
MS. WALKER:  Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.  The committee 47 
met and recommended, and I so move, to convene our Outreach and 48 
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Education AP. 1 

 2 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We’ve got a committee motion.  Is there 3 
discussion?  Hearing none, all those in favor of the committee 4 
motion say aye; opposed.  The motion carries. 5 

 6 
MS. WALKER:  Mr. Chairman, that concludes my report. 7 
 8 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  The next committee is Habitat Protection and 9 

Mr. Hendrix. 10 
 11 

HABITAT PROTECTION COMMITTEE REPORT 12 

 13 
MR. HENDRIX:  We had a presentation at the Habitat Protection 14 

Committee from Ms. Sari Kiraly from Highly Migratory Species 15 
concerning the Amendment 1 to the Essential Fish Habitat Fishery 16 
Management Plan.  She discussed a number of issues and one of 17 
the overriding things is there are no negative impacts from 18 
fishing activities. 19 
 20 
The analysis of fishing and non-fishing impacts showed that HMS 21 
fishing gears do not have a negative impact on EFH and that 22 
other fishing gears do not have a negative impact on HMS EFH.  23 
Therefore, National Marine Fisheries Service was not proposing 24 
any new management measures at this time.   25 
 26 
The non-fishing impact analysis examined potential impacts from 27 
coastal development, agriculture, dredging, marinas and 28 
navigation projects, oil and gas exploration, and renewable 29 
energy projects.  The Habitat Protection Committee did not have 30 
any recommendations on the Draft Amendment at this time.  Mr. 31 
Chairman, this concludes my report. 32 
 33 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Hendrix.  We’re going to move 34 

to Migratory Species and Ms. Walker. 35 
 36 

MIGRATORY SPECIES COMMITTEE REPORT 37 

 38 
MS. WALKER:  The Migratory Species Committee heard scoping 39 

documents, Amendments 3 and 4, to the Consolidated HMS FMP.  The 40 
committee had no recommendations.  Under Other Business, Mr. 41 
Pearce brought up an issue with the enforcement of yellowfin and 42 
bigeye tuna and their minimum size limit. 43 
 44 
The regulations allow the head to be removed, provided that no 45 
person shall remove the head of a bigeye tuna or yellowfin tuna 46 
if the remaining portion would be less than twenty-seven inches 47 
from the fork of the tail to the forward edge of the cut.  48 
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However, fishermen are being ticketed for removing the head and 1 
tail, even when the fish is larger than twenty-seven inches. 2 
 3 
He indicated that he’ll address this issue further at full 4 
council and I wanted to add one more thing.  Mr. Sapp had asked 5 
what type of a reduction, what percentage of a reduction, that 6 
HMS was looking for in blacknose sharks and Mr. Atran ran that 7 
and it was a 78 percent reduction. 8 
 9 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Mr. Pearce, do you have a comment? 10 

 11 
MR. PEARCE:  I’m not going to make that motion, because we’re 12 

working at it in a different angle right now and so I’m going to 13 
withdraw that motion. 14 
 15 
MS. WALKER:  That concludes my report, Mr. Chairman. 16 

 17 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We’ll move to Marine Reserves and Mr. 18 

Hendrix. 19 
 20 

MARINE RESERVES COMMITTEE REPORT 21 

 22 
MR. HENDRIX:  The Marine Reserves Committee met with all members 23 

present.  We had a presentation from Mr. Joe Uravitch, Director 24 
of the National Marine Protected Areas Center.  He gave a 25 
presentation on the National System of Marine Protected Areas 26 
and noted that MPAs encompass about one-third of the US EEZ, but 27 
the majority allow multiple uses and fewer than 1 percent 28 
prohibit all extractive activities. 29 
 30 
He also brought the committee’s attention to the MPA Federal 31 
Advisory Committee.  It’s taking nominations in November 2008 to 32 
appoint fifteen new members to replace members whose terms 33 
expire in November of 2009.  The committee had no 34 
recommendations for the council, Mr. Chairman, but wanted to ask 35 
if the council would like to send a representative or appoint a 36 
representative for this committee or if there’s any other 37 
discussion on it. 38 
 39 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there any other discussion relative to 40 

membership?  Hearing none -- 41 
 42 
MR. HENDRIX:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  That concludes my 43 

report. 44 
 45 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  The next item on the agenda is a Report of 46 

the SSC Review of the Five-Year Research Plan and Carrie is 47 
going to make that presentation. 48 
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 1 
REPORT OF THE SSC REVIEW OF THE FIVE-YEAR RESEARCH PLAN 2 

 3 
DR. CARRIE SIMMONS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  If you would 4 

please turn to Tab O, the five-year research list of priorities 5 
and economic and sociocultural recommendations for 2010 through 6 
2015.  This was a group effort between council staff, the SSC, 7 
the SEP, the Science Center, some folks got involved, and the 8 
NMFS staff. 9 
 10 
I’m just going to briefly give an overview and then if the 11 
council would like to go back and discuss a particular section 12 
in more detail, we can, due to time.  There are four sections.  13 
The first three sections are the research priorities and within 14 
these, the first section was a broad based, multipurpose 15 
research and monitoring program to collect a variety of data for 16 
a number of species. 17 
 18 
In priority, those were fishery independent studies and there’s 19 
several things under each of these, a fishery dependent, 20 
estimation of discards, and a large scale tagging program.  21 
That’s on page 1. 22 
 23 
On page 2, the second section, it took individual species 24 
research recommendations and prioritized those and all of those 25 
species should have the first section applied or be considered, 26 
to fill in the gaps where necessary. 27 
 28 
Then under each species that is prioritized, if there’s 29 
additional areas or needed research, that was identified, such 30 
as particular problems with aging of older fish, such as the 31 
deepwater groupers.  On to page 5, the Section 3 for the 32 
ecosystem-based management recommendations, in priority those 33 
were data collection, model development, and continued 34 
monitoring and research on marine protected areas.  On page 8 35 
were the economic and sociocultural recommendations and those 36 
are prioritized. 37 
 38 
The SSC wanted me to note that they would like this to be a 39 
living document, where changes could be made throughout time, 40 
and they would like to start earlier on this research plan and 41 
if there’s not any further questions or discussion, this 42 
concludes my report. 43 
 44 
DR. SHIPP:  Are there any questions for Carrie?   45 

 46 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Carrie.  Under your report, you have 47 

something listed on page 8, and 9 as well, economics and 48 
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sociocultural recommendations.  When I looked at those, it 1 
looked like -- I see where you’ve got them Level 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 2 
and 6.  Just about all of those are going to have to be done 3 
together and not one above any of the others. 4 
 5 
In order to have some kind of a model, you’re going to need the 6 
data for all of these, because I see on Number 1 it talks about 7 
some recreational and Number 2, it talks about some commercial 8 
and Number 3, I guess it talks about commercial and Number 4, it 9 
talks about recreational.  They’re just split off and I don’t 10 
understand how -- Under the priorities, are you just going to do 11 
one and not do any of the others or are you going to do all of 12 
them combined?  I just don’t think you can just do 1, 2, 3, 4, 13 
5, 6, and so forth. 14 
 15 
DR. SIMMONS:  Can I refer that question to Assane? 16 

 17 
DR. ASSANE DIAGNE:  If I may put it this way, that all of the 18 

items listed there are high priority items, but in discussing 19 
with the SSC, they preferred for us to have some type of 20 
priority and the order of priority that you see there reflects 21 
the data needs, because as you are well aware, on the commercial 22 
sector we have much more data to address some of these issues.  23 
That is the only thing that the priority order reflects, but 24 
you’re absolutely correct that when it comes time to do the 25 
research that all of these are of the highest priority. 26 
 27 
MS. WILLIAMS:  If I might add, on those, Assane, especially with 28 

what the council just passed with looking at allocations, just 29 
about all of that is going to be extremely important, as well as 30 
there are some items that was left out, but I will more than 31 
happy to, rather than take up council time, call and discuss 32 
those with you and perhaps you can add them, if you find it 33 
appropriate. 34 
 35 
MR. RIECHERS:  Carrie, on SEDAR-9, Gulf of Mexico greater 36 

amberjack -- You may have covered this and I was scrolling and I 37 
apologize if you did, but you don’t have any bullets under that.  38 
Is that just to say that we should go back to SEDAR-9 and look 39 
at their recommendations for research and you just considered 40 
all of those as Priority Code A? 41 
 42 
DR. SIMMONS:  What we were thinking with that is on the first 43 

page, the first section, all of these should apply to amberjack, 44 
but because there weren’t specific aging issues or fecundity 45 
issues, we didn’t put those, list those, under there. 46 
 47 
MR. SIMPSON:  I just want to compliment Carrie.  I sat in on the 48 
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conference call where the SSC discussed this about a week ago 1 
and Carrie and others, I assume, went back and reformatted and 2 
it’s a much better document.  She did a good job on this, I 3 
think, reformatting. 4 
 5 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Any other comments? 6 

 7 
MR. PERRET:  That’s an example of hiring an employee that had to 8 

face us at a table with all of us shooting questions at her. 9 
 10 
DR. SIMMONS:  Thank you both very much.  I have to say that Luiz 11 

Barbieri from the SSC helped me a lot as well. 12 
 13 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Are there any comments or questions?  Thank 14 

you, Carrie.  We need a motion to approve the five-year research 15 
plan. 16 
 17 
MS. MORRIS:  So moved. 18 
 19 
MR. GILL:  Second. 20 

 21 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We’ve got a motion and a second.  The motion 22 

is to approve the SSC five-year research plan. 23 
 24 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  It’s not the SSC plan.  That 25 

should be taken out.  It’s your plan. 26 
 27 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  All those in favor say aye; all opposed.  28 
The motion carries.   29 

 30 
ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LEARD:  I just wanted let you know 31 

that the five-year research plan is a council plan.  The SSC 32 
recommends.  That’s the way the law reads it and what will 33 
happen with the five-year research plan is it will be 34 
distributed to headquarters, as well as to the Region and the 35 
Center. 36 
 37 
What it’s used for is for them, in their planning for the 38 
development of projects that they would fund for research.  All 39 
the councils have to submit those and we’re on a pretty tight 40 
schedule.  Actually, we’re a little late.  I believe John 41 
Boreman wanted it as of about Monday and so we’ll get the letter 42 
out first thing next week.  Thank you. 43 
 44 

OTHER BUSINESS 45 
 46 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  That brings us to Other Business.  If you’ll 47 

look at Tabs Q, R, S, and T, they’re written reports.  I want to 48 
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recognize Mr. Doug Fruge, who is leaving us. 1 
 2 
MR. DOUG FRUGE:  I just wanted to say that over the years I view 3 

my association with this council as having been a very valuable 4 
opportunity and a very valuable experience.  I’ve been 5 
associated with the council for probably about sixteen or 6 
seventeen years, off and on, sort of. 7 
 8 
I’ve seen a lot of changes and I’ve constantly been in awe of 9 
the amazing amount of complexity and difficulty involved in the 10 
issues that this council faces.  I think it’s every bit as 11 
complex and difficult as any natural resource issues anywhere in 12 
the country and you have my tremendous awe and respect for what 13 
you do. 14 
 15 
I hope that over the years I’ve been of some little value in 16 
helping to move things along.  I appreciate the plaque that was 17 
given to me yesterday and I’ll value it and it will be a 18 
constant reminder of the many hours that I’ve sat through 19 
council meetings. 20 
 21 
I just want to add that with my departure that I’m likely not to 22 
be replaced for a number of months.  It could be an extended 23 
period of time and probably not until we actually get a budget 24 
for our agency.  In the meantime, I’m going to urge Linda 25 
Kelsey, our Assistant Regional Director for Fisheries, that she 26 
try to maintain some level of contact with the council and to 27 
attend meetings when she has the opportunity or to send someone 28 
else to maintain that involvement with the council. 29 
 30 
I will miss everyone on the council and involved in management 31 
of Gulf fisheries and involved in the fisheries as well.  I 32 
can’t say that I will miss the council meetings, however.  Good 33 
luck into the future. 34 
 35 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Doug, and good luck to you.  Doug 36 

is moving to Colorado and so he’ll miss this warm climate. 37 
 38 
MS. MORRIS:  Just keep in mind many places in Colorado are in 39 

the Gulf of Mexico watershed and so you’re still connected and I 40 
really appreciate all the contributions you’ve made, especially 41 
to habitat and ecosystem kinds of issues on the council. 42 
 43 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you.  There are several other items of 44 

business that we listed on the agenda, two of which involve 45 
potential travel for me and I wanted to bring them before the 46 
council. 47 
 48 
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I have been invited to make a presentation at the World 1 
Aquaculture Meeting.  I think this is a U.S. chapter meeting.  2 
It will be in Seattle in February and registration is -- If I go 3 
ahead and register early, if you approve it, it’s about $150 4 
less than if we wait and so I would ask for your approval to 5 
travel to Seattle to make a presentation and discuss our 6 
aquaculture amendment at that point. 7 
 8 
MR. PERRET:  Will we have an opportunity to review your comments 9 

prior to you making them? 10 
 11 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  I can send you a copy of them right now.   12 

 13 
MR. PERRET:  Do you need a motion? 14 

 15 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  I guess we need a motion. 16 

 17 
MR. PERRET:  I so move. 18 
 19 
MR. HENDRIX:  Second. 20 

 21 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Is there any other discussion on the motion?  22 
All those in favor of the motion to approve sending Dr. McIlwain 23 
to the World Aquaculture Meeting in Seattle, Washington, in 24 
February say aye; all opposed.  The motion carries. 25 
 26 

The second travel is I’ve been invited, again, to attend the 27 
MAFAC meeting on November 12 and 13 in New Orleans, again to 28 
make a presentation on our aquaculture FMP.  It’s my 29 
understanding that MAFAC pays my travel expenses over there.  I 30 
would, again, ask your permission to attend that on your behalf. 31 
 32 
DR. SHIPP:  So moved. 33 
 34 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  We’ve got a motion.  Do we have a second? 35 

 36 
MR. PERRET:  Second. 37 

 38 
MR. GILL:  I would note, for the record, that there are several 39 

others of us as well, on different issues, that have been asked 40 
to address that meeting. 41 
 42 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  That’s correct.  MAFAC is meeting in the 43 

Gulf for a change and we have an opportunity to talk about some 44 
of our Gulf issues.  I don’t know that we’ve had a meeting down 45 
here in a long time. 46 
 47 
MS. WALKER:  I gave a fish fry for them. 48 
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 1 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  When was the -- I’ve been away from the 2 

MAFAC world for a long time.  We’ve got a motion to approve 3 
sending Dr. McIlwain to the MAFAC Meeting in New Orleans, 4 
Louisiana.  Is there additional discussion?  Hearing none, all 5 
those in favor say aye; opposed same sign.  The motion carries.  6 

I would like to recognize Dr. Crabtree. 7 
 8 
DR. CRABTREE:  Just a few things I wanted to make you aware of.  9 

Following the last round of storms in the Gulf, we issued TED 10 
exemptions for Louisiana and Texas.  The Louisiana TED extension 11 
expired, I think, over the weekend.  We extended it yesterday 12 
for another thirty days for a portion of Louisiana.  It would be 13 
from the western end of Timbalier Island to the 14 
Plaquemines/Jefferson line, out to fifteen miles. 15 
 16 
We’re in the process now of reviewing a request for an extension 17 
for Texas.  We also published in the Federal Register this week 18 
a rule establishing different additional protections for elkhorn 19 
and staghorn corals, which were listed as threatened under the 20 
Endangered Species Act I think about a year ago. 21 
 22 
I wanted to make sure that everyone is aware that we intend to 23 
reopen the deepwater grouper and tilefish fisheries on November 24 
1 for ten days.  We determined that there was a sufficient 25 
amount of quota left to allow one more trip and then the IFQ 26 
voting procedures final rule for the grouper referendum 27 
published this week as well and there were no changes to that 28 
rule from the proposed rule and so we are on track to go forward 29 
with the referendum, I believe, in December.  That’s all I 30 
wanted to point out, Mr. Chairman. 31 
 32 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  To that, Dr. Shipp? 33 

 34 
DR. SHIPP:  Roy, at the last meeting, if I recall, Greg Abrams 35 

presented some landings data that seemed really far different 36 
from what we had seen before.  Has anything come of that?  Did 37 
he formally submit those landings to you? 38 
 39 
DR. CRABTREE:  I have heard nothing from Mr. Abrams since that 40 

meeting. 41 
 42 
MR. SIMPSON:  Yesterday, in lieu of a director’s report, I 43 

handed out a “Compact News”.  I want you all to take a look at 44 
that.  I think it’s a little more reader friendly and we’re 45 
going to start reintroducing that.  It’s designed to be an 46 
online newsletter and so there’s a couple of dinosaurs that get 47 
hard copies and if you want one, other than Corky, than I would 48 
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be happy to send that to you.  Take a look at it and see what 1 
you all think. 2 
 3 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Simpson. 4 

 5 
MR. PERRET:  Mr. Minton, do you recall we approving that 6 

expenditure for Mr. Simpson to send things out that way?  We 7 
need to check on that.  Dr. Crabtree, you talked about the TED 8 
exemptions and I’m sure what’s left of the shrimp industry 9 
appreciates that.  Could you, Mike, Robin, or Karen comment on 10 
shrimping effort?  Do we have any idea what kind of activity is 11 
going on in that part of the Gulf? 12 
 13 
DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t have anything recent, particularly since 14 

the storms. 15 
 16 
MS. FOOTE:  I understand that harvest is down, probably a 17 

multiple number of factors.  I don’t know if it’s storm debris 18 
or the price of fuel or the low price of shrimp.  At this point, 19 
there is some effort going on, but harvest is lower than we 20 
expected. 21 
 22 
MR. RIECHERS:  I’m more like Roy.  I don’t know that we can 23 

really comment on the amount of effort at this point.  I can 24 
comment on the number of vessels that would have been affected 25 
in the areas.  Over 500 Gulf boats licensed in that area would 26 
have been affected and over 200 bay and bait shrimp boats would 27 
have been affected, which is our inside water boats. 28 
 29 
Certainly within the context of folks asking us for the 30 
exemption, there at least is some level of activity going on, 31 
people trying to fish out there.  Our bay season closes November 32 
30th.  Of course, our white shrimp season will be kicking in a 33 
little bit more.  We’re certainly going to, as Dr. Crabtree 34 
said, go ahead and -- Our exemption is set to expire November 7 35 
and we will be applying for that extension. 36 
 37 
MR. PEARCE:  We have a problem with some of the extensions in 38 

Louisiana and I believe they’re only going to give another 39 
extension to some areas in Plaquemines Parish, when it sure 40 
would be nice to have extensions on the TED in all the areas in 41 
lower coast Louisiana, because we’re still having major problems 42 
with debris and we would like to be able to stretch it across 43 
the state. 44 
 45 
DR. CRABTREE:  We are willing to relook at that, Harlon, but we 46 

need documentation and at this point, the only area we have 47 
documentation on is the area we’re extending on.  If folks can 48 
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provide us with documentation, we will relook at it. 1 
 2 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Dr. Shipp, I’ll ask Greg Abrams about those 3 

landings and in defense of Mr. Abrams, he has been ill, I think 4 
hospitalized, and possibly had surgery.  That may be why Dr. 5 
Crabtree hasn’t heard from him. 6 
 7 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Kay.  Any of the other directors 8 

want to -- 9 
 10 
MR. TEEHAN:  I just would like to thank everybody who 11 

participated in the chili cook-off and thank Dr. Shipp for 12 
providing a location and congratulate Corky as having the best 13 
chili of the bunch and the DNA reports should be coming back 14 
early next week and I will distribute those.  The only other 15 
thing I have to say is how about the Phillies? 16 
 17 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  I’m happy to report that we really didn’t 18 

have to do any extensive investigation on the voting 19 
irregularities.  It proved to be accurate. 20 
 21 
MR. MINTON:  I just wanted to comment that I don’t know if he 22 

had the best chili, but he did have the most votes, right?  I 23 
sent out my director’s report and apparently Trish sent it 24 
electronically around and Bob Jones responded to Dr. Crabtree 25 
and to Corky, I guess, and Corky sent me his response about us 26 
superseding federal law off of Alabama and that’s not what 27 
happened. 28 
 29 
We have joined with Florida, Louisiana, and Mississippi, I 30 
think, to allow our offices to enforce federal violations in the 31 
EEZ in state district courts.  We’re not changing any of the 32 
laws or regulations.  It just allows us to prosecute those and 33 
those have been in response to the load the federal courts have 34 
and their inability to prosecute what they call minor 35 
violations, especially in the recreational sector. 36 
 37 
It has put our officers in kind of a bind previous to this law 38 
passage, in that they would intercept let’s say a violation of 39 
the bag limits and under the federal guidelines, unless it was 40 
twenty fish over the limit or something like that, they were 41 
issued a warning. 42 
 43 
If they were to intercept that same vessel in state waters, 44 
because we have compatible regulations with the federal, we 45 
would take them to court.  You’ve got two ways of handling the 46 
same violation.  This law allows us to take that individual’s 47 
violations in the EEZ and prosecute it in federal court and I’ve 48 
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sent a response to Mr. Jones and I copied you, Roy and Corky, 1 
that that’s what we’re trying to do and we’re not alone in it 2 
and I think it’s a good thing to do. 3 
 4 
I’ve also been encouraged by the joint enforcement agreement 5 
that we’ve had.  I hope Mr. Jones understands that if he has any 6 
more questions, I’ve asked him to call me. 7 
 8 
DR. CRABTREE:  I just wanted to congratulate Corky as well on 9 

his victory in the chili cook-off.  Corky is always pointing out 10 
how he’s been around longer than just about anyone else and it’s 11 
always good and gratifying to see someone in their twilight 12 
years be recognized.  Congratulations, Corky. 13 
 14 
DR. SHIPP:  I didn’t plan to comment on the voting, but we live 15 

in an era where the margin of error is plus or minus and I am 16 
told by Trish, and I hate to get you in this, but the top three 17 
were all so far ahead of everybody else and they were all within 18 
the margin of error of each other.  We’ll just end it on that 19 
note. 20 
 21 
MR. PERRET:  I want to compliment my competitors.  They fought a 22 

good fight, but obviously they were out-cooked by a superior 23 
chef and I will be autographing cookbooks at the next meeting 24 
and I’ll give each of you a special deal.  It was Teehan’s idea 25 
and I think it was a great idea. 26 
 27 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Mr. Chairman, I would like to thank you and the 28 

rest of the council members for allowing me to ask many 29 
questions about aquaculture and I appreciate the input.  There’s 30 
a lot of questions that were left out, many of which I asked for 31 
the constituency, and I, as others around this council, probably 32 
feel like it’s time to go ahead and vote that amendment up or 33 
down and let the lawyers do whatever they want to do.  Thank 34 
you. 35 
 36 
CHAIRMAN MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Ms. Williams.  I would like to 37 

thank the council for your hard work over the last several days.  38 
It made my job easier by keeping your nose to the grindstone and 39 
I think we’ve had a very, very productive meeting and I was 40 
extremely pleased with the public comment yesterday. 41 
 42 
As chairman, I thought that was one of the best that we’ve had 43 
since I’ve been in this position.  I would like to thank those 44 
who testified and I think I said this yesterday as well.  I 45 
think we’ve had a really good exchange this week.  Dr. Leard 46 
reminds me that check-out time is 12:00 and I notice that we 47 
have finished our agenda and so hearing no other business to 48 
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come before the council, I declare us adjourned. 1 
 2 
(Whereupon, the meeting adjourned at 11:45 a.m., October 30, 3 
2008.) 4 
 5 

- - - 6 
7 
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